
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Local Pension Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 28 February 2020 at 9.30 am 

Location: Guthlaxton, County Hall, Glenfield. 

Contact: Miss C Tuohy (0116 305 5483). 

Email: cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
Item  Report By  Marked 

 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 
2020.  
 

 
 

(Pages 5 - 10) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

Review of Delegated Powers to Heads of 
Departments.  
 

Director of Law 
and Governance 
 

(Pages 11 - 16) 

7.  
  

Quarterly Stewardship Report Update and RI 
Training.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 17 - 52) 

 There will be a powerpoint presentation by LGPS Central’s 
Stewardship Manager for this item. 
 

 

8.  
  

LGPS Central Product Development Update.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 
 

(Pages 53 - 58) 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


9.  
  

Funding Strategy Statement and Investment 
Strategy Statement.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 59 - 122) 

10.  
  

Pension Fund - Business Plan and Budget 
20/21.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 123 - 138) 

11.  
  

Summary Valuation of Pension Fund 
Investments and Investment Performance of 
Individual Managers.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 139 - 188) 

12.  
  

Risk Register and Internal Controls.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 189 - 202) 

13.  
  

Date of Next Meeting – 19 June 2020. 
 

 
 

 

   
14.  

  
Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

15.  
  

Exclusion of the Press and Public. 
  
The public are likely to be excluded during consideration of the 
remaining items in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (Exempt Information). 
 

 
 

 

16.  
  

LGPS Central Limited - Quarterly Investment 
Report 
 

LGPS Central 
 

 

17.  
  

IFM Investors Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

18.  
  

JP Morgan Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

19.  
  

Colliers Capital Quarterly Report.  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

20.  
  

Kames Active Value Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

21.  
  

Kames Capital Quarterly Report.  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

22.  
  

LaSalle Quarterly Report.  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

23.  
  

Ruffer Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

24.  
  

Aspect Capital Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

25.  
  

Pictet Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

26.  
  

Ashmore Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

27.  
  

Legal and General Investment Manager 
Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

28.  
  

M&G Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

29.  
  

Millennium Global Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

30.  Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report  Fund Manager  



    

 
 
 
TO: 
   

Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) 
Mr. T. Barkley CC  
Mr. P. Bedford CC 
Leicester City Council 
 

Dr. S. Hill CC 
Mr. M. Hunt CC 
 

Cllr. D. Bajaj 
Cllr. R. Govind 
 

 

District Council Representatives 
 
Cllr. C. Frost  
Cllr. M. Graham MBE 
 
 
University Representative   
  
Mr. Z. Limbada 
 

 

 

Staff Representatives  
  
Mr. N. Booth 
Ms. J. Dean 
Mr. A. Wilson  
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Local Pension Committee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Friday, 24 January 2020.  
   

PRESENT: 
Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Mr. P. Bedford CC 

 

Dr. S. Hill CC 
Mr. Max Hunt CC 
 

Leicester City Council 
 

 

Cllr. R.Govind 
Cllr. D. Bajaj 
 

 

District Council Representative 
 
Cllr. C. Frost 
 
University Representative 
 
Mr. Z. Limbada 
 
Staff Representatives  
  
Mr. N. Booth 
 

Mr. A. Wilson 
 

 
 

1. Chairman’s Announcement.  
 
The Chairman and all members of the Committee thanked Mr. R. Bone for his long 
standing commitment and contribution to the Leicestershire Pension Fund as an 
employee representative which ended following the Fund’s Annual General meeting.  
 

2. Minutes.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 
Following questions from Mr. Z. Limbada concerning the proposed Financial Strategy 
Statement (FSS) and the potential financial impact on certain employers, the Director of 
Corporate Resources reassured the Committee that the Authority continued to engage 
with employers concerning their proposed contribution rates and any outstanding issues 
would be resolved prior to the employer contribution rates coming into effect on 1 April 
2020. 
 
 
 
 

5 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

3. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

4. Questions asked by members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

5. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. No declarations were made. 
 

6. Urgent items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

7. Responsible Investment Plan 2020.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which sought 
approval for a Responsible Investment (RI) Plan 2020 which set out the Fund’s approach 
to improving its management of responsible investment risks. A copy of the report 
marked “Agenda Item 6” is filed with these minutes. 

 
The Director informed Members that the term responsible investment referred to the 
integration of financially material environmental, social and corporate governance factors 
into investment processes. RI had relevance both before and after a decision to invest 
and was a core part of the Fund’s fiduciary duty.  
 
Arising from the discussion the following points were noted:- 

 
i) Officers would bring the items listed within the Plan to the Committee for 

consideration as they became available, such as the Climate Risk report which 
could be expected in Q3 of 2020/21. 
 

ii) The Director informed members that RI reporting would initially focus on the 
Fund’s investments managed by LGPS Central (Central) and Legal and General 
Investment Management (LGIM), with a scope to increase reporting from individual 
investment managers in the future. Members were pleased that RI reporting was 
being improved and felt it would enable the Committee to have a wider oversight of 
the Fund’s activities.  

 
iii) LGPS Central’s RI approach focused on engagement with investment managers 

rather than exclusion. This allowed the fund the opportunity to influence 
companies RI behaviour through stewardship, rather than waive that ability 
through a divestment approach. This was standard across the pools. 

 
iv) LGPS Central, LGIM and the Fund’s other investment managers had the ability to 

hold the companies to account, greater than the Fund could as a single entity. 
Pooling of resources enabled a stronger voice to engage, which was further 
enhanced through LGPS central’s use of Hermes, an active asset manager with   

6



 
 

 

a focus on positive engagement and intervention to improve RI performance and 
sustainability.  
 

v) The Committee felt it would be beneficial for the Fund to develop its own stance on 
Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) factors in order for all investment 
managers to understand the Fund’s requirements. The Director informed Members 
that work was underway to integrate ESG into manager selection and monitoring. 

 
Members thanked officers for producing a comprehensive plan and looked forward to 
receiving future reports on the matter. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
a) That the Responsible Investment Plan 2020 be approved; 

 
b) That the Director of Corporate Resources be authorised to make any necessary 

minor alterations following the Local Pension Board’s consideration of the Plan. 
 

8. Overview of the Leicestershire Pension Fund Asset Allocation Strategy.  
 
The Committee considered a report from the Director of Corporate Resources which 
provided an overview of the Fund’s current strategic investment allocation activity in year 
and a summary of the proposed future allocation. A copy of the report marked “Agenda 
Item 7” is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from the discussion the following points were noted:- 
 

i) Since the last review of the strategy in January 2019 the Fund had transferred its 
active listed global and emerging markets equities to LGPS Central’s (Central) 
equivalent products; and entered into an agreement with Central to provide 
advisory services for its Property, Targeted Return and Emerging Market Debt 
asset classes. 

 
ii) Over the previous year Central had developed a more formal approach to product 

development to improve accountability and delivery through enhanced 
communication and clarification of responsibility between Central and each partner 
fund. This enabled Central to focus its resources on asset classes that partner 
funds were most interested in.  

 
iii) The Director of Corporate Resources acknowledged that pooling had been slower 

than initially anticipated, resultant from staff turnover and the complexities involved 
with pooling across the partner authorities. Section 151 officers across the partner 
funds had recognised these issues and had set up meetings to ensure each 
authority was aligned in their approach to ensure collective working. Ultimately the 
savings originally presented prior to the pool being established were reliant on 
each fund transferring the majority of its assets to LGPS Central.  

 
iv) Members noted that Government had not yet produced statutory guidance 

following the consultation in January 2019 regarding LGPS asset pooling. It was 
expected, considering the direction of the consultation, that upcoming guidance 
would stipulate future investments would need to be attained through pooling, not 
via the fund’s own individual manager appointments. In the meantime, the Fund 
would keep a consideration of its allocations with a view to invest in Central as 

7



 
 

 

products were developed. It was considered most cost effective to utilise Central’s 
services as much as it could, due to its cost of running. 

 
v) Virtually all of the Fund’s equity asset classes were pooled through Central’s 

investment services, advisory services or Legal and General Investment 
Management (LGIM) passive management. LGIM’s services were deemed cost-
effective and it was not proposed to move the mandate to Central as it would be 
unlikely to generate a cost saving. 

 
vi) The Fund had previously committed £10million to LGPS Central’s Private Equity 

Fund, however following the loss of the Investment Director no product was 
launched for 2019/20. The Investment Subcommittee, at its meeting on 16 October 
2019, agreed to commit £30million to Adams Street Partners to maintain the 
Fund’s allocation to Private Equity. 
 

vii) The Investment Subcommittee had also agreed at its meeting on 16 October 2019 
to commit £100million to Partners Group Fund V in the absence of a developed 
Private Credit product from Central. The Director reiterated that any future 
investment in Private Credit would also be dependent on government guidance. 
The Director informed the Committee that Private Credit was a relatively new 
investment line that had arisen following the banking crises, and while it had 
performed well for the Fund since its inception it was unlikely that opportunity for 
yield would always be there.  

 
viii)Central were providing the advisory services for the Fund’s Property Assets which 

made up 9% of the Fund’s total assets as at 30 September 2019. Work was 
ongoing by Central to look at the potential for partner funds to transfer existing 
assets into a Property Asset Fund. Any potential costs to the fund’s would be 
considered as part of product development and a business case. Like all products 
launched it would need approval of all partner funds. Property made up a 
significant portion of the proposed £250million saving that had been stated in the 
original business case for LGPS Central and if other partners were unable to 
engage in the product then the savings might need to be reprofiled. 

 
ix) The Fund’s Property holding was focused on holdings in England as experience in 

overseas property markets had been volatile. The Fund had other asset classes 
that focused on the overseas markets. 

 
x) The Fund had expressed interest in LGPS Central developing an Infrastructure 

product however there had originally been limited appetite with partners. Another 
partner fund has now indicated a potential interest and a product may now be 
developed later in 2020.  

 
xi) Progress had been made with Central’s Emerging Market Debt fund, and 

subsequent to a successful tendering exercise it was hoped to be launched early 
summer 2020. 

 
xii) Plans to develop a Multi Asset Credit fund were in early stages and would 

progress subject to sufficient interest from other partner funds. 
 

xiii)  Discussions were ongoing with Central regarding a Targeted Return fund, 
however it seemed like there was limited appetite among the other fund’s. 

 

8



 
 

 

xiv) The Fund’s current investment with Timberland was close-ended and investment 
would be returned to the Fund as it matured. Future investment in Timberland 
would depend on the statutory guidance produced by government and the time 
frame for allowing investment outside of pooling. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

9. Exclusion of the Press and Public.  
 

RESOLVED: 
  
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the remaining items of business on the grounds that they involved 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12(A) of the Act. 

  
10. Annual Review of the Asset Strategy and Structure.  

 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which was 
accompanied by appendices produced by the Fund’s Investment Consultants Hymans 
Robertson. The report recommended a number of changes to Leicestershire Fund’s 
strategic investment benchmark and portfolio structure. A copy of the report marked 
“Agenda Item 10” is filed with these minutes. The report and appendices were not for 
publication by virtue of Paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 
Representatives from Hymans Robertson provided the rational for the recommended 
changes set out in the report and responded to questions from the Committee regarding 
the Fund’s revised strategic benchmark. The Committee were advised the changes 
presented evolution, rather than revolution and would help the Fund achieve its overall 
objectives. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
a) That the revised strategic benchmark for the Fund, as shown below, be approved; 

 

9



 
 

 

 
 

b) That the Investment Subcommittee consider, over the course of 2020, the 
changes necessary to align the Fund’s investment with the revised strategic 
allocation; 
 

c) That the Investment Subcommittee be also asked to consider, over the course of 
2020, the product launches by LGPS Central or other investment managers, and if 
necessary, the appropriate commitments to be made by the Fund, including the 
investments to divest; 

 
d) That the current notional exposure of £340million to the Millennium currency 

overlay be terminated. 
 

 CHAIRMAN 
24 January 2020 

 

10



 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 28 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

REVIEW OF DELEGATED POWERS TO HEADS OF 
DEPARTMENTS 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE  
 

Purpose of the Report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s approval of 

changes made to delegations previously granted to the Director of 
Corporate Resources and the Director of Law and Governance following 
a review of all Chief Officer delegations.   

  
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions  
 
2. The County Council’s Constitution operates a general scheme of 

delegation to Heads of Departments in relation to both executive and 
non-executive functions, supplemented by a series of specific decisions 
which: 
 
(i) define which officer is to be authorised to act as the “Proper 

Officer” for specified purposes; and 
 

(ii) give additional delegated powers to Heads of Departments in 
relation to particular issues or areas of activity. 

 
3. The Accounts & Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require the Council to 

prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) in which 
areas for development or review are identified to ensure the Council’s 
governance arrangements are robust.   
 

4. On 6 February 2020 the Employment Committee approved revisions to 
some non-executive delegations granted to the Director of Corporate 
Resources and the Director of Children and Family Services made as 
part of this review. 

 
Background  
 
5. The Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Government Act 2000 

enable a local authority to delegate the exercise of any executive and 
non-executive function to an officer.  Locally, such delegations are 
governed by the following: 

 

11 Agenda Item 6



(a) The General Scheme of Delegation to the Chief Executive and 
Heads of Departments – This is set out in Section D, Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution and has recently been updated as part of the 
Constitution annual review approved by full Council in September 
2019 
 

(b) Specific Delegations to Chief Officers –The County Council is 
legally obliged to maintain a list of powers delegated to officers 
(other than those which are considered ‘one off’ delegations and 
which expire within a period of time or at the conclusion of a 
particular task/project).   
 

(c) Proper Officer Provisions – Under various legislation the County 
Council is required to designate ‘the proper officer’ to be 
responsible for carrying out duties specified in that legislation.  

 
6. The Chief Executive has delegated authority under the general scheme 

to make consequential amendments to any of the specific delegations to 
a Chief Officer as is necessary to reflect changes in legislation and to 
ensure the delegation remains fit for purpose.  However, intermittently it 
is considered good practice for the Council to conduct a more 
fundamental review of these delegations.  The last such review was 
carried out and completed in 2011. 
 

7. The Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a key corporate 
document that is intended to provide an accurate representation of the 
corporate governance arrangements the County Council has put in place 
during the year.  It also highlights those areas where significant gaps or 
improvements are required.   
 

8. As part of the AGS certification process in 2017/18, one action identified 
was to review the specific delegations to Chief Officers as referred to in 
paragraph (b) above. 

 
9. Officers of the Chief Executive's Department have therefore been 

reviewing the list of specific delegations across the County Council on a 
phased basis.  As the delegations cover both executive and non-
executive functions changes have been and will be recommended to the 
Cabinet and other relevant Boards and Committees for approval as 
appropriate.   

 
Proposed Changes  
 
10. Three changes have been made to the delegations regarding pensions 

and which therefore fall within the remit of this Committee.  These are 
set out in the Appendix attached which also details briefly the reasons 
for the proposed changes. 
 

11. Two of the changes made relate to the management of complaints and 
are made to take account of the two-stage process required under 

12



Pension Regulations.  Generally, complaints relate to a person’s rights 
or liabilities under the pension scheme and these are at first instance 
dealt with by the scheme employer (Stage I).  If the employee seeks a 
review of that decision this is then referred to the County Council as the 
administering authority for the pension fund (Stage II).  The current 
delegation authorises the Director of Law and Governance to manage 
Stage II of the process. 
 

12. On rare occasions, however, the County Council will be required under 
the Regulations to also manage Stage I of the complaint process, i.e. 
where the complaint relates to a person’s previous service or 
employment, the crediting of additional pension under the Regulations, 
or the amount of benefit or return of contributions a person is/may be 
entitled to out of the fund.  The delegations have been updated to reflect 
this.   
 

13. As there is the potential for a conflict of interest where the Council deals 
with both Stage I and Stage II of the process, the delegations have been 
amended to enable the Director of Corporate Resources to become 
involved at Stage II or for the Director of Law and Governance to appoint 
an external person to manage the process. 
 

14. One further minor change has also been made to the delegations to the 
Director of Corporate Resources which relate to the management of the 
scheme to ensure the Director can approve all types of individual 
investment provided these are in line with the strategy approved at 
member level. 

 
Resource Implications 
 
15. There are no resource implications arising from this report. 
 
Timetable for Decisions 
 
16. Subject to the approval of the Committee the revised delegations will 

become effective immediately. 
 

Recommendations  
 
17. It is recommended that the revised delegations set out in the Appendix 

to this report be approved. 
 
Background Papers  
 
Constitution of Leicestershire County Council 
 
Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 
 
25 September 2019 - Report of the Constitution Committee to the full County 
Council – Review and Revision of the Constitution - 

13



http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s148317/CONSTITUTION%20COMMIT
TEE%20-%20A.%20Review%20of%20the%20Constitution.pdf 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure  
 
None. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications/Other Impact Assessments  
 
None.  

 
Officer to Contact  
 
Lauren Haslam 
Director of Law and Governance 
Tel: 0116 305 6240 
Email: lauren.haslam.leics.gov.uk 

 
Anthony Cross 
Head of Law 
Tel: 0116 305 6169 
Email: Anthony.cross@leics.gov.uk 
 

14

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s148317/CONSTITUTION%20COMMITTEE%20-%20A.%20Review%20of%20the%20Constitution.pdf
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s148317/CONSTITUTION%20COMMITTEE%20-%20A.%20Review%20of%20the%20Constitution.pdf


APPENDIX 

Delegations to the Director of Law and Governance 

 Power Reasons for Change 

 Local Government Pension Scheme 

Complaints 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(a) 

 

In respect of applications received by the 

County Council as the administering authority 

for the Leicestershire County Council Pension 

Fund under the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013 (or such other 

regulations as come in to force from time to 

time), power to: 

act as the adjudicator and determine 

applications at Stage I of the process; 

To reflect current 

Regulations and the 

Councils responsibility to 

manage complaints as 

both the responsible 

authority for the LCC 

Pension Fund and as a 

scheme employer.  The 

delegation has also been 

aligned with a related 

delegation to the Director 

of Corporate Resources to 

manage the potential for a 

conflict of interest in the 

County Council having to 

deal with both Stages I and 

II of the complaints 

process. 

(b) act as the adjudicator and determine 

applications at Stage II of the process provided 

that the Director will not exercise this 

delegation in respect of any application that he 

or she has previously been involved in at Stage 

I; 

(c) delegate the functions in (a) and (b) above to 

an external person or body where the Director 

considers this to be appropriate, in particular 

where it is necessary to avoid any potential 

conflict of interest. 

 [Note – The Director of Corporate Resources 

holds a delegated power to act, where 

appropriate, in cases where the Director of Law 

and Governance is unable to do so.] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



Delegations to the Director of Corporate Resources  

 

 Power Reasons for Change 

 Local Government Pension Scheme 

Complaints 

 

 In respect of applications received by the 

County Council as the administering authority 

for the Leicestershire County Council Pension 

Fund under the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013 (or such other 

regulations as come in to force from time to 

time), power to act as the adjudicator and 

determine applications at Stage II of the 

process where the Director of Law and 

Governance is unable to do so. 

To align with current 

Regulations and a related 

delegation given to the 

Director of Law and 

Governance. 

 Management of Pension Fund Investments  

 

 

(a) 

In respect of pension fund investments, power 

to:-  

implement policies agreed by the Local 

Pension Committee or the Investment 

Subcommittee; 

 

(b) approve individual investments within the 

strategy agreed by the Local Pension 

Committee or the Investment Subcommittee; 

To cover all types of 

individual investments 

within the strategy agreed 

at member level. 

(c) approve arrangements to obtain single tenders 

or tenders on a ‘cost plus’ basis where it is 

considered by the Director that no advantage 

would be gained by seeking competitive 

tenders; 

 

(d) take action between meetings which is 

considered urgent after consultation with the 

Chairman of the Local Pension Committee or 

his or her nominee, and subject to the details 

of such action being reported for information 

to the next appropriate meeting. 

 

 

16



 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 28 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT UPDATE AND RI TRAINING 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on LGPS Central’s (Central) 
approach to Responsible Investment and quarterly stewardship report (Appendix 
A). 
 

Background 
 

2. Leicestershire County Council Officers have developed a 2020 Responsible 
Investment (RI) Plan (Appendix A) with LGPS Central’s in-house RI team which 
was agreed by the Committee on 24 January 2020.  One of the items on the plan 
was to bring to the Committee LGPS Central’s quarterly stewardship report and for 
Local Pension Committee members to undertake RI Training. 

 
3. The term ‘responsible investment’ refers to the integration of financially material 

environmental, social and corporate governance (“ESG”) factors into investment 

processes. It has relevance both before and after the investment decision and is a 

core part of our fiduciary duty. It is distinct from ‘ethical investment’, which is an 

approach in which the moral persuasions of an organisation take primacy over its 

investment considerations. 

4. The term stewardship is defined by the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC) 

Stewardship Code (2020 version): “Stewardship is the responsible allocation, 

management and oversight of capital to create long-term value for clients and 

beneficiaries leading to sustainable benefits for the economy, the environment and 

society.” 

LGPS Central Responsible Investment 
 

5. Central’s approach to RI and Engagement carries two objectives: 
 

i. Support the Company’s objectives:-  
ii. Be an exemplar for RI within the financial services industry and raise 

standards across the marketplace 
 

These objectives are met through three pillars:-  

 Selection of assets  

 Stewardship of assets 

 Commitment to transparency and disclosure 
 

 
17 Agenda Item 7



 

 
 

6. Central identified four Stewardship themes in conjunction with Partner Funds to 
target to ensure focused engagement on themes that are important to them.  The 
presentation (Appendix B) to be delivered by Central’s Stewardship manager will 
highlight specific examples relevant to the Fund. 

 
LGPS Central Stewardship October – December 2019 

 
7. During the quarter, Central, (either directly, in collaboration or via contracted 

stewardship provider) have engaged with 1561 companies on 2876 engagement 
issues.  Engagement covered 754 issues and achievement of some or all objectives 
in 678 occasions.   
 

8. In line with the four agreed Stewardship themes Central engaged as follows:- 
 

i. Climate change – engagement comprised 319 companies and 377 
engagement issues.  Engagement activity on 175 issues with achievement 
on some or all objectives on 137 occasions.  For example, together with ten 
other investors Central co-filed a shareholder resolution at Barclays Plc 
asking the company to disclose targets to phase out the provision of finance 
to energy and utility companies that are not aligned with Paris Agreement 
goals. 

 
ii. Single-use plastics – the engagement set comprised 24 companies with 33 

engagement issues.  Engagement activity on 17 issues with achievement on 
some or all objectives on seven occasions.  For example, Central, with a 
group of other investors, led by Hermes EOS, met the Head of Packaging 
Campaigns alongside the investor relations director at a large UK retailer. 
The aim was to understand the current plans to reduce packaging, including 
plastics packaging.  A key question was if the company set clear targets for 
reduction. The company explained that, in principle, they would like to see 
100% reduction where possible, because a lower target may not incentivise 
some suppliers to aim high. 

 
iii. Fair tax payment and tax transparency - the engagement set comprised 

10 companies with 13 engagement issues. Engagement activity on four 
issues with achievement on some or all objectives on one occasion.  
Responsible tax behaviour is a relatively new theme for both investors and 
companies. Central are therefore actively seeking collaboration with 
likeminded investors and have in this quarter formed a collaboration with four 
other European investors. 

 
iv. Technology and disruptive industries - the engagement set comprised 43 

companies with 82 engagement issues.  Engagement activity on 25 issues 
with achievement on some or all objectives on 11 occasion.  Central have 
this quarter continued collaborative engagement, led by the New Zealand 
Crown-owned investors, aiming for social media companies to strengthen 
controls around the live streaming and distribution of objectionable content. 
The engagement is targeting Alphabet, Facebook and Twitter.   

 
 

18



 

9. Please note that these statistics are not specific to products that Leicestershire 
Pension Fund has invested with Central.  In future, and as part of the Funds RI Plan 
the Committee will receive more detailed reporting on voting and stewardship 
undertaken by Central. 

 
Recommendation 

 
10. It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee notes the Quarterly 

Stewardship Report. 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

11. None. 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix A: LGPS Central quarterly stewardship report, third quarter 2019-20 
Appendix B: LGPS Central RI presentation 
 
Background Papers 
 
Responsible Investment Plan 2020 – Local Pension Committee - 24 January 2020 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s150781/Responsible%20Investment%20Plan%202020.pdf 

 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 

19

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s150781/Responsible%20Investment%20Plan%202020.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Quarterly Stewardship Report

THIRD QUARTER,  2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

21

ctuohy
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



Responsible Investment 
& Engagement
LGPS Central’s approach

OBJECTIVE #1

Support the Company’s  
investment objectives

OBJECTIVE #2

Be an exemplar for RI within the 
financial services industry & raise 
standards across the marketplace

LGPS Central’s approach to Responsible Investment & Engagement carries two objectives: 

These objectives are met through three pillars: 

Our Selection 
of assets

Our commitment to 
Transparency and 

Disclosure

Our Stewardship 
of assets

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Responsible 
Investment & 
Engagement 
Framework

Stewardship 
Code

Voting 
Principles

Voting 
Disclosure

This report covers Central’s stewardship activity. Our stewardship efforts are supplemented by global engagement and voting services 

provided by Hermes Equity Ownership Services (Hermes EOS). For more information please refer to Central’s Responsible Investment & 

Engagement Framework and UK Stewardship Code Compliance Statement.

2
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

22

https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/LGPS-Central-Responsible-Investment-and-Engagement-Framework.pdf
https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/c819a6ad-8ad9-422d-85db-5cc2d400a40f/LGPS-Central-Ltd-Stewardship-Code-Statement-(2018).pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/LGPS-Central-Voting-Principles.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/2020-02-12_Q3-VoteByVoteDisclosure.pdf


Introduction and 
Market Overview

When the EU introduced its Action Plan on Sustainable 

Finance in March 2018 one might have expected a 

relatively slow policy-making process. However, 

regulatory initiatives are being rolled out including new 

climate benchmarking and disclosure regulations which follows 

a recommendation from a Technical Expert Group on sustainable 

finance set up to assist implementation of the plan. At the core 

of the Action Plan lies a goal of creating a common language for 

companies and their investors on what can be considered “future 

fit”, and through that enhance transparency and minimise the risk of 

greenwashing. That common language and understanding is being 

Regulation is shaping “Sustainable Finance” across markets and 
the whole investment chain is under renewed scrutiny to live up 
to new, yet evolving standards 

01

captured in a sustainable taxonomy which, starting with climate 

mitigation and adaptation activities, will set out what can or cannot 

legitimately be considered a sustainable economic activity. This 

should spur better dialogue between companies and investors and 

allow investors to compare “apples with apples” when assessing 

for instance same-sector companies on a given sustainability 

parameter. During the last quarter, the EU took a major step 

towards internationalising this work by launching an International 

Platform on Sustainable Finance (IPSF). The IPSF is aiming for 

considerable global political clout and has already assembled a 

number of heavyweight international organisations as ‘observers’. 

3
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

23



Country members will be represented by national authorities at 

finance/treasury ministry, central bank or supervisor level, and 

must be responsible for developing environmentally sustainable 

finance policies and initiatives in their respective jurisdiction. It is 

interesting to note that founding members are, alongside the EU 

countries, largely found outside of the OECD and include Argentina, 

Canada, Chile, China, India, Kenya and Morocco.  

In tandem with clearer and higher regulatory expectations, we see 

that asset owners are asking more of their asset managers and 

are increasingly ready to call out managers that do not deliver 

genuine ESG integration. During the last quarter, ShareAction 

published a report that examines how 57 of the world’s largest 

asset managers voted on 65 shareholder resolutions linked to 

climate change. According to the report US asset managers are 

clear laggards in terms of proxy voting on climate, while European 

asset managers lead the way. A number of CA100+ investor 

signatories fail to support resolutions at CA100+ focus companies. 

However, disclosure resolutions such as resolutions on corporate 

lobbying and climate-related disclosures seem to have entered the 

mainstream and gather more support. Resolutions on targets and 

transition planning filed by retail shareholders on the other hand, 

have received fewer votes than those filed by institutional investors 

in 2019. In December 2019 a group of shareholders put forward a 

resolution to BlackRock asking for a review of their 2019 proxy voting 

record and an evaluation of the company’s proxy voting policies and 

guiding criteria related to climate change. The resolution also asks 

that a summary report on this review and its findings shall be made 

available to shareholders and be prepared at reasonable cost, 

omitting proprietary information. Larry Fink (BlackRock CEO) has 

placed climate change at the centre of his January 2020 letters to 

CEOs and shareholders, and we are discussing engagement action 

with peers both in Europe and in the US in order to build on this 

momentum. 

The banking sector is also facing greater scrutiny. In the UK, banks 

are now stress-tested for climate risk. During the last quarter, 

The Bank of England (BoE) published its ground-breaking new 

framework to stress test the largest UK banks and insurers for 

climate risks. The BoE will ask firms to model their exposures 

to three climate scenarios: The catastrophic business-as-usual 

scenario where no further climate action is taken; a scenario where 

early policy action delivers an orderly transition to the targets set 

in Paris; and a third where late policy action leads to a disorderly 

and disruptive transition. It will build on the improved reporting 

of climate risks prompted by the Taskforce on Climate-related 

Financial Disclosure (TCFD). Last quarter also saw signatory 

banks of the Principles for Responsible Banking make a collective 

commitment on climate. The 36 banks in question committed to 

align their portfolios to reflect and finance the low-carbon, climate-

resilient economy required to limit global warming to well-below 2, 

striving for 1.5 degrees Celsius. In Sections 3 and 4 below we touch 

on examples from the banking sector where LGPS Central has 

either co-filed or voted in favour of a climate-related shareholder 

resolution. Just as we expect Paris-alignment from corporations 

in their strategies and operations, we expect banks to define and 

disclose targets to reduce exposure to fossil fuel assets across 

sectors in line with the climate goals of the Paris Agreement.

Technology sector companies continue to be under scrutiny from 

regulators who are increasingly concerned with the dominance of the 

large internet players. Companies like Google, Apple and Facebook 

could be held to higher standards of proof in cases concerning anti-

competitive behaviour. The EU anti-trust chief, Margrethe Vestager, 

is considering the proposal that digital platforms suspected 

of anti-competitive behaviour be required, in certain cases, to 

demonstrate clear gains for their users, rather than the EU having 

to prove the damaging effects on consumers. Vestager suggested 

in an FT interview that companies such as Google should bear 

extra responsibilities because they are so dominant that they have 

become “de facto regulators” in their markets. Beyond anti-trust, 

investors are continuing to express concern over a lack of social 

media content control. After nearly a year of engagement with big 

tech companies on this issue (following the Christchurch attack in 

March 2019, part of which was live streamed on Facebook), success 

has been mixed. However, the number of investors taking part in 

this collaborative effort has grown to nearly 100. That number is 

testament to an investor concern which we predict will not go away 

until we see real change both at governance and operational levels 

to effectively prevent and remove objectionable content on social 

media (see further detail in Section 3 below). 

4
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

24



Engagement

In order to use our resources efficiently, our engagement 

work focusses mainly on key stewardship themes that 

have been identified in collaboration with our partner 

funds. These themes are touched on in more detail 

under Section 3 below. We continue, however, to employ a broad 

stewardship programme – beyond just our targeted themes 

– covering issues like fair remuneration, board composition, 

diversity, and human rights, to name but a few. We also employ a 

diverse range of engagement tools including filing of shareholder 

resolutions when this ties in with our overall engagement effort. 

 
 
 

EXPRESSION OF CORE CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE EXPECTATIONS

During the last quarter we have initiated dialogue with several 

companies following our shareholder voting over contentious ESG 

issues, including core corporate governance standards. This allows 

us the opportunity to explain to companies the rationale for our 

voting decisions and to express expectations for the next proxy 

season. It is one way of making sure that voting matters and to 

signal that we will persist on issues that are of critical importance 

to shareholders. In one case, we are engaging a UK-registered bank 

on their remuneration policy and practices. Our concern is that 

their Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) allows for overly generous 

awards in certain ‘good leaver’ circumstances, and that this could 

be treated as a standard application, rather than under genuinely 

exceptional circumstances. We are furthermore concerned by the 

02
This quarter our engagement set1 comprised 1561 companies with 2876 engagement issues2. There 
was engagement activity on 754 engagement issues and achievement of some or all engagement 
objectives on 678 occasions. Most engagements were conducted through letter issuance or company 
meetings, and we or our partners mostly met or wrote to the Chair or a member of senior management.

1 This includes engagements undertaken directly, in collaboration, and via our contracted Stewardship Provider. This quarter’s total includes 726 companies written to as part of the International Mining 
and Tailings Initiative collaboration.   

2 There can be more than one engagement issue per company, for example board diversity and climate change.

5
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

25



fact that pension arrangements for executive directors are set 

at a level which is significantly higher than the wider workforce. 

Since the 2019 AGM where the remuneration policy was met 

with substantial opposition from shareholders, the company has 

decided to halve total executive pension awards with effect from 

January 2020. We will however continue to probe the company on 

how the pension award is calculated. The UK Corporate Governance 

Code states that only basic salary should be pensionable. There is 

some room for interpretation on what “basic salary” is and we will 

seek further clarity from the company on whether their calculation 

is in line with best practice. 

With two other companies, one in the energy sector and one in 

the automotive sector, we have expressed concern over lack 

of independence as well as relevant skills and experience on  

their boards. In our Voting Principles we acknowledge that the 

most effective boards include a diversity of skills, experiences and 

perspectives. Both companies have expressed a willingness to  

engage on this and other issues, including climate change-related 

targets and corporate lobbying. In the case of the automotive  

company, their shareholder structure is such that more than 

90% of shares are held among three shareholders which causes 

a lack of independence for board members who represent 

a majority shareholder. We aim to encourage the company 

to continue internal discussions around the advantages of 

having a more independent board. The company has set 

targets to move up the female contingency at all levels of the 

company and its Board currently has 30% gender diversity.    

 

TRANSPARENCY IN CORPORATE LOBBYING

As a long-term, diversified investor we want to see companies well 

in control of both direct and indirect lobbying through industry 

associations. This requires a combination of good governance, 

oversight and transparency on the part of the company. Policy and 

regulation greatly influence how companies operate and on an issue 

like climate change, negative lobbying works against the creation 

of necessary regulation that will support the transition to a low-

carbon economy. We are concerned that companies across sectors 

and markets do not always disclose their lobbying activities (direct 

and indirect) and that, in many instances, the industry associations 

of which a company is a member advocate in a manner which is 

not aligned with sustainability strategies and targets set by the 

corporation itself. With our long-term investment horizon, we would 

like as much certainty as possible from policy makers around e.g. 

climate policy, and if companies lobby in a negative manner we 

view it as an investment risk. During the last quarter we co-filed 

shareholder resolutions at three US companies; Honeywell Inc., 

Citigroup and Eli Lilly. While the three companies are in different 

sectors; aerospace, banking and pharma respectively, the common 

denominator is that they are currently not sufficiently transparent 

about their lobbying activities. The resolutions we co-filed were 

of the same wording, asking each company to provide a report, 

updated annually, disclosing expenditures, policies and procedures 

governing lobbying, both direct and indirect, and grassroots 

lobbying communications. While negative climate lobbying is an 

underlying concern to us, the resolutions are worded to encompass 

lobbying in other policy areas where there may be misalignment 

with the long-term sustainable growth of the company and with 

the company’s stated public policy and corporate responsibility 

positions. We have collaborated with US investor peers in filing the 

resolutions and are seeking dialogue with the above companies 

leading up to respective AGMs this spring.

6
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

26



3

Stewardship 
Themes

03

In order to be efficient and targeted in our engagement, we 
prioritise specific Stewardship Themes

In collaboration with our Partner Funds, we 

identified four themes at the start of the current 

financial year which are given particular 

attention in our ongoing stewardship efforts. 

 

These are: 

• Climate change 
• Single-use plastics, 
• Fair tax payment and tax transparency 
• Technology and disruptive industries

Identifying core themes that are material to our investment horizon 

helps direct engagement and it also sends a signal to companies of 

the areas we are likely to be concerned with when we meet them. 

Given that engagement requires perseverance and patience, we 

expect to pursue the same themes over a one to three-year horizon, 

and in some cases – like with climate change – a longer time 

period. In our Annual Stewardship Plan (ASP) we have adopted a 

strategy of seeking to combine collaborative engagement alongside 

direct engagement with companies. We also aim to encourage the 

establishment and promotion of best practice standards through 

industry standard setting or regulation. 

7
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

27



CLIMATE CHANGE 

This quarter our climate change engagement set comprised 319 

companies with 377 engagements issues1 . There was engagement 

activity on 175 engagement issues and achievement of some or all 

engagement objectives on 137 occasions. 

Since inception, LGPS Central has been an active member of the 

Climate Action 100+ initiative (CA100+), alongside the Transition 

Pathway Initiative (TPI) and the Institutional Investor Group on 

Climate Change (IIGCC). We are currently co-leading or in the focus 

group of ongoing engagements with eight companies that are part 

of the CA100+ initiative. The majority of these engagements are 

with oil & gas, and mining companies. We met the Chair, Company 

Secretary and Head of Sustainability of a major mining company 

during this quarter to discuss scope 1 and 2 GHG targets alongside 

scope 3 GHG assessments. While scope 3 emissions remain a 

particular challenge, not least in relation to steel making whose 

carbon intensity is ‘hard to abate’, the company is actively exploring 

low-carbon metallurgical innovation in collaboration with an 

academic institution in one of their key markets. We will continue 

this engagement and expect the company to explain further 

how it will revise scope 1 and 2 targets and continue its scope 3 

assessments as well as their TCFD reporting during Q1 of 2020. 

Also, as part of the CA100+ collaboration and led by Hermes EOS, 

we met the CEO alongside Head of Environment and Company 

Secretary at a UK-listed utility company. The discussion centred 

around how climate is embedded in the purpose, vision and strategy 

of the company, and how the company is managing the pace of 

activity/investment in low carbon solutions. While the company 

has already reduced its own carbon emissions by 26% and is now 

setting a new 10-year target for a further 35% reduction, most of 

the company’s emissions are associated with its customers’ use 

of energy, rather than its own operations. We are encouraged by 

the company’s ongoing and increasing focus on how customers can 

lower their carbon footprint, for instance through pilot projects for 

“Zero CO2 homes”. The company has set a 25% customer emissions 

reduction target by 2030 on a 2015 baseline, which we welcome, 

but we would like a clearer demonstration that it has undertaken 

detailed scenario analysis to understand the business and customer 

implications of limiting climate change to below 2°C.

Together with 10 other investors LGPS Central co-filed a shareholder 

resolution at Barclays Plc asking the company to disclose targets to 

phase out the provision of finance to energy and utility companies 

that are not aligned with Paris goals. The resolution aligns with 

LGPS Central’s responsible investment beliefs on climate change 

as a materially impactful trend. What we ask of companies outside 

the banking sector is that they manage financially material climate 

risks in line with the Paris goals. With this resolution, we want to 

send the same signal to banks, whose loan books could face similar 

risks. Responsibility for the timeline and details of the phase out 

would be at the Board’s discretion and the company would be 

required to start disclosing in 2021. We are seeking dialogue with 

Barclays together with the other co-filers following the submission 

of the proposal and it is clear that the company is willing to have a 

constructive dialogue. We will emphasise to Barclays that energy 

and utility companies that do align their businesses with the Paris 

goals would not be included in the scope of the phase out. We view, 

therefore, the resolution as a request for good risk management by 

Barclays, and not as a shareholder-enforced divestment request.

4 There can be more than one climate-related engagement issue per company. 

• 377 engagements in progress

• Majority of engagements undertaken via CA100+

• First climate-related resolution filed at 

European bank

PROGRESS 137

ACTIVITY 175

DIRECT

STEWARDSHIP
PROVIDER

PARTNERSHIP

ENGAGEMENT VOLUME BY TYPE

ENGAGEMENT VOLUME BY OUTCOME

8
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

28



SINGLE-USE PLASTICS

This quarter our single-use plastics engagement set comprised 24 

companies with 33 engagements issues. There was engagement 

activity on 17 engagements and achievement of some or all 

engagement objectives on seven occasions. 

Together with a group of other investors, and led by Hermes EOS, 

we met the Head of Packaging Campaigns alongside the Investor 

Relations Director and Senior Investor Relations Manager at a 

large UK retailer. Our aim was to understand the current plans to 

reduce packaging, including plastics packaging. The company has 

a central packaging reduction plan and strategy to remove, reduce, 

reuse and recycle packaging. The company works along their value 

chain, including with commercial teams, customer teams, suppliers 

and buyers in order to achieve strategic alignment from their value 

chain. A key ask from us is that the company sets clear targets for 

reduction. The company explained that they, in principle, would like 

to see 100% reduction where possible, because a lower target may 

not incentivise some suppliers to aim high. Alongside engagement 

on the company’s packaging strategy, we have also signalled an 

interest in discussing their ambitions relative to two specific 

industry standard initiatives that LGPS Central actively supports: 

Plastic Pellet Management and “Ghost Gear” (lost and abandoned 

fishing equipment), respectively. 

We have initiated a dialogue with a multinational food manufacturing 

company headquartered in the US to discuss how the company 

oversees the management of environmental, reputational and 

regulatory risks stemming from plastic pollution across its product 

development, operations and value chain. In this engagement, we 

are working alongside five other investors, the majority of whom 

are European based whereas one is based in the US. We aim to 

discuss with the company how environmental risk in the company’s 

packaging strategy are managed and how that risk affects decisions 

for new products and technologies. We would also like to explore 

how the company is working to minimize negative impacts and how 

it introduces environmentally friendly, decomposable packaging for 

all products and regions. As an example, the company currently sells 

individually packaged portions of cereal which come in a plastic tub 

with a plastic lid. From a long-term investment perspective, we are 

concerned with both environmental risks and reputational risks 

stemming from changing consumer awareness and behaviour that 

the company carry by continuing to bring such products to market. 

The company has responded positively in the first instance and is 

agreeable to engage on the issues we have raised with them. 

• 33 engagements during the quarter 

• Productive engagement with large UK retailer on 

reduction of packaging, including plastics packaging

• Collaborative engagement initiated with US food 

manufacturer

DIRECT

STEWARDSHIP
PROVIDER

PARTNERSHIP

PROGRESS 7

ACTIVITY 17

ENGAGEMENT VOLUME BY TYPE

ENGAGEMENT VOLUME BY OUTCOME

9
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

29



FAIR TAX PAYMENT AND TAX TRANSPARENCY

This quarter our tax transparency engagement set comprised 10 

companies with 13 engagements issues. There was engagement 

activity on four engagements and achievement of some or all 

engagement objectives on one occasion. 

On the tax theme, we have joined a recently established investor-

collaboration and are initiating engagements both directly and 

through the initiative. For our direct engagements we have 

contacted a selection of UK companies that are among our largest 

holdings and that operate in sectors we view as vulnerable to this 

theme. These include amongst others, pharmaceuticals, banks and 

technology companies. For example, we have initiated dialogue with 

a pharmaceutical, multinational company asking them to explain 

their tax strategy and policy, and their current level of transparency 

around corporate value generation across countries. Recent best 

practice standards, such as OECD’s Base Erosion and Profit Shifting 

(BEPS) project (launched in 2015) aims to ensure that multinational 

enterprises are by 2020 taxed where their economic activities take 

place, and value is created. We have expressed to the company 

that we would expect them to strive for that practice. We have also 

encouraged the company to consider if and how it might attain the 

Fair Tax Mark4. The company has given an initial, positive response 

and is agreeable to engage with us.

Responsible tax behaviour is a relatively new theme for both 

investors and companies. We therefore actively seek collaboration 

with likeminded investors and have in this quarter formed a 

collaboration with four other, European investors. Through this 

collaboration we aim to engage not only the obvious laggards but 

also companies that are already being more transparent. This is 

in order to increase our own learning and to better capture best 

practices in responsible tax behaviour as they evolve. 

At the backend of this quarter, a new tax standard was launched 

by the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI). This is the first global 

standard to guide corporations on responsible tax behaviour and 

tax transparency. Whereas the existing OECD Base Erosion and 

Profit Shifting (BEPS) project asks companies to report to tax 

authorities, the new GRI standard asks companies to report on their 

tax behaviour to stakeholders including investors. The standard 

is voluntary and asks companies to disclose their approach to 

tax (including tax havens), their tax governance, control and risk 

management, their stakeholder engagement, and to provide a 

country-by-country reporting. The latter will shed light on whether 

profits are reported where economic activity takes place. This level 

of reporting will allow investors the ability to appraise a company’s 

tax strategy and how that ties in with the overall business strategy 

and planning. 

• 13 engagements during the quarter

• Engagement initiated with UK companies in 

vulnerable sectors 

• Global Reporting Initiative launches new standard for 

responsible tax behaviour

DIRECT

STEWARDSHIP
PROVIDER

PARTNERSHIP

PROGRESS 1

ACTIVITY 4

ENGAGEMENT VOLUME BY TYPE

ENGAGEMENT VOLUME BY OUTCOME

4 https://fairtaxmark.net/getting-the-mark/criteria-and-standards/

10
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

30



TECHNOLOGY AND DISRUPTIVE INDUSTRIES

This quarter our technology and disruptive industries engagement 

set comprised 43 companies with 82 engagements issues. There 

was engagement activity on 25 engagement issues and achievement 

of some or all engagement objectives on 11 occasions.

We have this quarter continued our collaborative engagement, 

led by the New Zealand Crown-owned investors, aiming for social 

media companies to strengthen controls around the live streaming 

and distribution of objectionable content. The engagement is 

targeting Alphabet, Facebook and Twitter. The initiative started 

following the Christchurch terror attacks in March 2019, which 

were initially streamed live on Facebook. While each quarter so 

far has seen some progress, we are currently discussing ways of 

ramping up the engagement to see stronger action by all companies 

and more willingness to engage the full group of concerned 

investors. Through a separate investor initiative, albeit partially 

interlinked, we are asking Alphabet to establish a Human Rights 

Risk Oversight Committee of the Board of Directors, composed of 

independent directors with relevant experience. We are concerned 

about the various human rights-related risks that technology 

sector companies face, such as weak human and labour rights 

in technology supply chains, workforce displacement through 

automation, content management, data privacy and malicious 

political interference. If these risks are not managed well, they 

could translate to investment risks in our portfolios. Alphabet has 

not responded, and a shareholder proposal has been put forward 

to the company regarding this issue. We will continue engagement 

on the issue of human rights risk oversight and management and 

expect to support the resolution if it is admitted to the AGM. 

On our behalf, Hermes EOS engages technology companies on 

a broad spectrum of vulnerabilities via its Social as well as its 

Strategy, Risk & Communication themes. As an example, Hermes 

EOS engaged a large-cap technology company on various ESG 

issues, including workforce related issues, and how best to report 

on these to investors. The company sought Hermes EOS’ views on 

a range of ESG ratings and benchmarks in its efforts to prioritise 

those that are more valued by investors. Focusing on the most 

relevant public disclosures should prove more time efficient and 

also give fairer access to information for all stakeholders, who 

may not be able to pay for subscriptions to privately disclosed 

information. The company was encouraged to participate in the 

Workforce Disclosure Initiative (WDI), an initiative with 137 investor 

signatories which asks companies to disclose how they manage 

workers in their direct operations and supply chains. Hermes EOS 

will continue to engage the company on workforce related issues, 

including corporate governance, child labour risks alongside risks 

linked to cobalt supply chains and also carbon emissions reduction 

targets.

• 82 engagements in progress 

• Collaborative engagement with social media 

companies (Alphabet, Facebook and Twitter) on 

content control

• Human rights including workers’ rights continue to be 

on our radar for tech company engagements

DIRECT

STEWARDSHIP
PROVIDER

PARTNERSHIP

PROGRESS 11

ACTIVITY 25

ENGAGEMENT VOLUME BY TYPE

ENGAGEMENT VOLUME BY OUTCOME

11
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

31



3
3

Voting04

POLICY

For UK listed companies, we vote our shares in accordance with a 

set of bespoke UK Voting Principles. For other markets, we consider 

the recommendations and advice of our third-party proxy advisor.

COMMENTARY

On behalf of our clients, we continued to vote shares at company 

meetings between October and December 20195.

GLOBAL

Over the last quarter we made voting recommendations at 285 

meetings (2,269 resolutions). At 131 meetings we recommended 

opposing one or more resolutions. We recommended voting with 

management by exception at two meetings and abstaining at two 

meetings. We supported management on all resolutions at the 

remaining 150 meetings.

5 The data presented here relate to voting decisions for securities held in portfolios held within the company’s Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) 

Board Structure 39.2%

Shareholder resolution 6.4%

Amend articles 1.3%

Audit and accounts 2.9%

Poison pill/Anti-takeover device 0.3%

Other 1.3%

Remuneration 43.7%

Capital structure and dividends 4.8%

GLOBAL VOTES AGAINST AND ABSTENTIONS BY CATEGORY

Total meetings in favour 52.6%

Meetings astained 0.7%

Meetings with management by exception 0.7%

Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 46.0%

12
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

32



3

UK

We made voting recommendations at 41 meetings (290 resolutions) 

over the last quarter. We recommended voting against or abstaining 

on 37 resolutions over the same quarter.

We made voting recommendations at 59 meetings (616 resolutions) 

over the last quarter. We recommended voting against or abstaining 

on 38 resolutions over the last quarter. 

At the AGM of mining company BHP Group, we supported 

a shareholder resolution asking the company to suspend 

memberships of industry associations whose record of advocacy 

since 2018 demonstrates, on balance, inconsistency with the Paris 

goals. This is in line with recommendations from LAPFF and from 

our service provider, Hermes EOS. Negative lobbying works against 

the creation of the necessary regulatory environment to support the 

transition to a low-carbon economy. While BHP is taking leadership 

in climate change action and disclosure, we believe it is warranted 

to ask the company to go a step further in avoiding climate-negative 

industry association lobbying. The shareholder resolution received 

22% support at the BHP Group Plc’s AGM in London on 17 October, 

which is a substantial level of support.

We voted against a new remuneration policy for Whitbread Plc, a 

hotel and restaurant group, at the company’s last AGM. Whitbread 

disposed of Costa to The Coca-Cola Company in January 2019 and 

hence revised its business plan to focus more on its hotel business. 

The new remuneration policy put to the AGM, is in response to this 

revised business plan. The new policy replaces a performance-

based long-term incentive structure with a non-performance 

based one. This leads to higher certainty of consistently high 

level of pay regardless of performance. While under the new 

remuneration policy there will be no further awards made under 

the existing Long-Term Incentive Plan, that reduction is in our view 

not sufficient to justify the higher certainty of pay through the new 

plan. As explained in our Voting Principles we have a high regard 

for Remuneration Committees willing to explore alternatives to the 

traditional LTIP structures, which are often poorly designed and 

overly complex. However, on this this occasion we voted against the 

Restricted Share Plan which forms part of the new remuneration 

policy, for the same reasons as stated above. 

EUROPE EX-UK

Board Structure 28.9%

Shareholder resolution 5.3%

Poison pill/Anti-takeover device 2.6%

Remuneration 60.5%

Capital structure and dividends 2.6%

Total meetings in favour 56.1%

Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 43.9%

Total meetings in favour 69.5%

Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 30.5%

Board Structure 27.0%

Capital structure and dividends 8.1%

Audit and accounts 8.1%

Other 10.8%

Remuneration 40.5%

Amend articles 5.4%

13
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

33



3

At the Greek retail company Jumbo SA’s AGM we voted against the 

election of board directors because all board member elections 

were presented under one item. We consider board elections as 

important items for shareholders and we view it as good practice 

that directors should be elected individually, so that there is 

individual accountability. Since it is current market practice in 

Greece to elect a single slate of directors the bundling into one vote, 

this element may not be a determining factor alone to opposing 

board elections in this market. However, in the case of Jumbo, it is 

an additional concern to us that the proposed board is not at least 

one-third independent. 

We voted against management at approximately half of the AGMs 

held in Europe ex UK this quarter. In the majority of these cases we 

expressed concern over a combination of core corporate governance 

practices including remuneration which is not appropriate relative 

to performance, issuance of equity with the risk of diluting existing 

shareholders as well as lack of board diversity and commitment. 

These are issues which we continue to raise both in voting and 

engagement with companies not just in the European market but 

across geographies. 

We made voting recommendations at 36 meetings (417 resolutions) 

over the last quarter. We recommended voting against or abstaining 

on 69 resolutions over this quarter.

NORTH AMERICA

At the AGM of Cisco Systems, we voted for the CEO’s pay although 

it is around 1.4x the peer median. The company has performed 

exceptionally well on a 1 and 3-year Total Shareholder Return basis 

relative to peers. More than 75% of long-term pay for the CEO is 

performance-conditioned, so a below-target shareholder return 

would substantially reduce the pay in the future. Ahead of the AGM, 

Board Structure 50.7%

Shareholder resolution 10.1%

Remuneration 39.1%

Total meetings in favour 19.4%

Meetings with management by exception 5.6%

Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 75%

Cisco increased shareholding requirements for the CEO and Non-

Executive Officers (NEOs). We generally take a view that significant 

executive shareholdings in the company helps align interests of 

executives and shareholders. In addition, Cisco extended clawback 

policies to performance shares as well as other forms of pay, which 

allow recall of pay awards under certain circumstances such as 

misconduct. This is a major shift in policy and a substantial new 

protection against malpractice given that the vast bulk of CEO/

NEO pay is through performance-based shares. We voted for a 

shareholder resolution requiring that the CEO and Chair roles be 

split because we consider that general best practice, and also given 

the complexity of this business and the disruption inherent to the 

technology sector. The latter resolution, although it did not pass, 

received nearly 30% support from shareholders. 

At Microsoft’s AGM we voted against the ratification of the executive 

compensation (advisory vote). While acknowledging the company’s 

long-term performance, we are concerned about the significant 

increase in the CEO base salary this year which include elements 

that are not strongly performance based. Our concerns are centred 

around the amount and timing of share buybacks (the re-acquisition 

by a company of its own stock) that the company has completed. 

These buybacks coincided with the share price peak, which was 

shortly followed by the increase in CEO base pay, without any 

company disclosure on efforts to mitigate the effect of buybacks on 

share price. We did not support a shareholder resolution asking the 

company to report on the company’s global median gender pay gap, 

policies and related risks. 

14
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

34



3

EMERGING AND FRONTIER MARKETS

We made voting recommendations at 39 meetings (266 resolutions) 

over the last quarter. We recommended voting against or abstaining 

on 23 resolutions over this quarter.

NWS Holdings Limited is a capital goods company and the 

conglomerate flagship of New World Development (see separate 

narrative in this Section under “Developed Asia”). At the AGM, we 

voted against the election of three board directors over concerns 

that they have too many other board commitments. Adding to our 

concern, two of these board directors serve on the company’s 

audit committee which has allowed excessive non-audit fees 

At Hong-Kong registered company New World Development (an 

investment holding company), we voted against several governance-

related resolutions that were put to the AGM during last quarter. 

We voted against the re-election of two board members. In one 

case the board member has too many board commitments and in 

the other case the board member has failed to attend at least 75 

percent of board and committee meetings without a satisfactory 

explanation. Per LGPS Central’s Voting Principles, the capacity of a 

board director to make a full commitment to their appointment is 

an important aspect of board composition. We also voted against 

a proposal that sought to approve the issuance of shares without 

applying rights of pre-emption (i.e. without allowing existing 

investors first opportunity to buy a new issue of stock). Whilst 

companies require flexibility to manage their share capital without 

undue constraint, our concern is that this proposal will dilute the 

rights of existing shareholders. The resolution sought approval 

to disapply pre-emption rights on new issuances of a value up to 

20% of share capital but, mindful of the UK’s Pre-Emption Group 

guidelines, we believe a 10% limit is more appropriate. 

One third of the meetings we voted at in this market were at 

Japanese companies. While dialogue between investors and 

Japanese companies has improved in recent years, there are some 

ongoing challenges relating to key corporate governance standards 

Board Structure 65.6%

Capital structure and dividends 21.9%

Remuneration 9.4%

Amend articles 3.1%

Board Structure 47.8%

Shareholder resolution 4.3%

Amend articles 4.3%

Audit and accounts 26.1%

Remuneration 8.7%

Capital structure and dividends 8.7%

Total meetings in favour 74.4%

Meetings astained 5.1%

Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 20.5%

Total meetings in favour 60.7%

Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 39.3%

including board composition. In more than half of the cases 

where we this quarter voted against management of a Japanese 

company, it related to inadequate board composition, either a lack 

of independence, or of diversity. Even companies that operate 

internationally and derive a majority of revenues from overseas 

often have boards comprised solely of Japanese nationals, who are 

typically over a certain age – late 50s upwards. Given this, and the 

large number of executive directors, boards tend to lack diversity 

of experience, skills and age. This issue will continue to stay on our 

radar for voting and engagement with Japanese companies. 

DEVELOPED ASIA
We made voting recommendations at 28 meetings (192 resolutions) 

over the last quarter. We recommended voting against or abstaining 

on 32 resolutions over this quarter.

15
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

35



3

without sufficient explanatory disclosures (we also voted against 

the approval of the company’s external auditor). We also voted 

against a proposal that sought to approve the issuance of shares 

without applying rights of pre-emption (i.e. without allowing 

existing investors first opportunity to buy a new issue of stock). The 

resolution sought approval to disapply pre-emption rights on new 

issuances of a value up to 20% of share capital but, mindful of the 

UK’s Pre-Emption Group guidelines, we believe a 10% limit is more 

appropriate.  

Sasol Limited, an integrated chemicals and energy company, 

has seen project costs overrun by USD 4 billion since the 2014 

inception of its Leak Charles Chemical Project (LCCP). At the news 

of this in May 2019, the company’s share price fell by c. 13% 

and subsequently fell further (to c. 42%) leading up to the AGM 

last quarter. We voted against the election of the CFO Paul Victor 

given his direct accountability for material failure of controls in 

connection with LCCP and his position as a senior executive during 

the period in question. We also voted against the members of the 

Audit Committee, thus signalling that we hold them accountable 

for the internal control failings that have been identified at Sasol 

in connection with the LCCP. While the resolution to re-elect these 

board directors passed, they were met with significant opposition 

from shareholders (varying between c. 17% and 30% opposition).     

We made voting recommendations at 82 meetings (488 resolutions) 

over the last quarter. We recommended voting against or abstaining 

on 112 resolutions over the last quarter.

AUSTRALIA & NEW ZEALAND

We voted against Westpac Banking Corporation’s recommendations 

on three resolutions at their AGM this quarter. We opposed the 

re-election of a board director who is also the Chair of the Audit 

Committee (AC) due to governance and risk failures identified at 

the Royal Commission and by Austrac. Austrac is the Australian 

government entity overseeing anti-money laundering and counter-

terrorism financing laws. We also voted against the remuneration 

report, which allows for bonus payments of up to 55% of the 

maximum opportunity despite failing to meet key financial indicators. 

We supported a shareholder proposal asking Westpac to disclose 

its strategies and targets for reducing exposure to fossil fuel assets 

in line with Paris goals. These include the elimination of exposure 

to thermal coal in OECD countries by no later than 2030. None of the 

three resolutions went the way we had voted, but it is noteworthy 

that the re-election of the AC Chair and the Remuneration Report 

received 42% and 35.90% opposition respectively. The shareholder 

proposal received a substantial 16.9% support. 

At the AGM of Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd (ANZ) 

we cast our vote in support of two climate-related shareholder 

resolutions in line with advice from LAPFF. One resolution asks for 

disclosure on strategies and targets for managing exposure to fossil 

fuel assets in line with the climate goals of the Paris Agreement, 

and the other asks that any lobbying through industry associations 

be aligned with Paris goals. Owing to the vagaries of the company’s 

current constitution the advisory resolutions were not put to vote 

at the AGM. However, ANZ’s Chairman acknowledged shareholder 

concern around lobbying alignment and committed during the AGM 

to undertake a review of industry associations during 2020 and to 

report on the findings. We will continue to engage ANZ and other 

banks on the issues of managing their exposure to fossil fuel assets 

in line with the Paris goals. The same issue has been raised with 

Barclays Plc through a shareholder resolution that LGPS Central 

co-filed alongside 10 other investors in December 2019. 

Board Structure 30.4%

Shareholder resolution 8.9%

Remuneration 58.9%

Capital structure and dividends 1.8%

Total meetings in favour 40.2%

Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 59.8%

16
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

36



Industry Participation05
LGPS Central is an active participant in the debate on good corporate and investor practice. We value 
collaboration with peer investors and with industry initiatives, which gives a stronger voice and 
more leverage in engagement.

The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) in 

the US is proposing changes to rules on shareholder 

proposals and proxy advisers that would introduce major 

impediments to effective investment stewardship and efficient 

engagement between minority shareholders and corporations 

on ESG issues. The changes significantly raise the ownership 

requirements for co-filing a resolution and the percentage support 

a proposal must receive to be resubmitted. This makes it more 

difficult to submit and sustain proposals. Over this quarter, the PRI 

has done extensive analysis of the implications of the proposed 

changes and concluded that hundreds of resubmitted ESG 

shareholder resolutions would now, if the changes are implemented, 

fail to make the ballot. Furthermore, hundreds of successful ESG 

related resolutions would now fail to make the ballot. This means 

that, if finalised, the SEC’s proposed amendments would in many 

cases hinder discussion of emerging ESG issues before investors 

have the chance to analyse and incorporate the latest thinking 

into voting behaviour. The changes relating to proxy advisers, 

requiring proxy advisory firms to allow companies to review and 

comment on recommendations before investors even see them, 

will greatly limit investors’ access to independent advice. There is 

a further risk that the SEC’s proposed changes will undermine the 

independence of proxy advice and cause unwarranted delays in an 

already compressed process. As a universal investor with minority 

stakes in companies across sectors and markets, LGPS Central 

views the proposed SEC amendments with great concern. We have 

signed a PRI-coordinated letter that has been submitted to the SEC 

urging them to consider our concern and to preserve the existing 

framework. The letter was signed by 193 investors managing over 

$11.5tn USD in assets. LAPFF has also submitted comments to 

the SEC on behalf of its members, raising the same concerns as 

described above. 

We regularly contribute to RI-related advisory committees and 

make select speaking appearances at investment conferences. 

During the last quarter we spoke at the following events  

(see table on the right).

Our stewardship manager taking part in a panel discussion on the topic of barriers to 

diversity in portfolio management at AIMSE Europe Annual Conference (November 2019)

LGPS Central currently contributes to the following investor groups:

• Cross-Pool Responsible Investment Group 

• UK Pension Fund Roundtable 

• BVCA Responsible Investment Advisory Group

• PRI Listed Equity Integration Advisory Sub-Committee

• TPI Steering Committee & Technical Advisory Group

• Roundtable on Mining (Investor Mining and Tailings Safety 

Initiative)

• GFI Working Group on Data, Disclosure & Risk

• FRC Investor Advisory Group

• LAPF SIF Advisory Board

• IIGCC Shareholder Resolutions Sub-group

• IIGCC Paris Aligned Investment Steering Group

CONFERENCE/EVENT TOPIC

Local Government Pension Investment Forum General ESG 

AIMSE (Association of Investment Management 
Sales Executives) Europe Conference

Diversity

DB Strategic Investment Forum Climate change

Green Equities Conference Climate change

Financial/Pinsent Masons Breakfast briefing Diversity 

17
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

37



Partner Organisations
LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED’S

18
THIRD QUARTER, 2019-20 (OCTOBER-DECEMBER 2019)

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED QUARTERLY STEWARDSHIP REPORT

38



This document has been produced by LGPS Central Limited and is intended solely for information purposes. Any opinions, forecasts or estimates herein 

constitute a judgement, as at the date of this report, that is subject to change without notice. It does not constitute an offer or an invitation by or on behalf 

of LGPS Central Limited to any person to buy or sell any security. Any reference to past performance is not a guide to the future. The information and 

analysis contained in this publication have been compiled or arrived at from sources believed to be reliable, but LGPS Central Limited does not make any 

representation as to their accuracy or completeness and does not accept any liability from loss arising from the use thereof. The opinions and conclusions 

expressed in this document are solely those of the author. This document may not be produced, either in whole or part, without the written permission of 

LGPS Central Limited.

All information is prepared as of 11.02.2020.

This document is intended for PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS only.

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Registered in England. Registered No: 10425159.  

Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB

E: Valborg.Lie@
lgpscentral.co.uk

T: +44 (0)1902 916345

E: Amelia.Gaston@
lgpscentral.co.uk

T: +44 (0)1902 916304

Valborg Lie
Stewardship Manager

Amelia Gaston
Responsible Investment and  
Engagement Analyst (Internship)

E: Michael.Marshall@
lgpscentral.co.uk

T: +44 (0)1902 916193

Michael Marshall
Director, Responsible 
Investment & Engagement

39



This page is intentionally left blank



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB

1
LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the 

Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered 
No: 10425159.  Registered Office: Mander House, Mander

Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB

Leicestershire County Council 
Pension Fund

28th February 2020

Responsible Investment Training

Valborg Lie
Stewardship Manager

41

ctuohy_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 2

What is RI and what are the drivers ?

Responsible investment (RI) is becoming the new standard for best 
practice asset management: 
- Change of outlook on investors` role in society 
- Innovation and new tools
Drivers of RI 
1) Investor practices
2) Increased evidence that RI leads to improved performance
3) Stakeholder expectations
4) Regulatory requirements 

42



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 3

Objectives of RI&E

In alignment with Partner Fund`s objectives, we aim to: 
1) Primarily, support investment objectives:
2) Secondarily, be an exemplar for RI within the financial 

services industry and raise standards across the marketplace. 

These objectives will guide all RI related efforts, including 
Selection and Stewardship activities. 

Source: RI&E Framework

43



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 4

Why and how we engage

Activities
• Company-engagement

• Directly or 
• Collaboratively

• Industry participation

• Policy engagement

44



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 5

Targets and results

• Engagement on 2°C pathway  and remunera on
• Shell has: 

• Set carbon intensity targets for next 3-5-year 
period as part of carbon reduction ambitions

• Linked carbon reduction targets with long-
term incentive plans of senior executives

• Ceased its membership of the American Fuel 
& Petrochemical Manufacturers

• Tailings dam collapse (Jan 2019) with 200 
fatalities and 10 million cubic meters of 
waste into the environment

• Investor Mining &Tailings Safety Initiative
• Asking 655 mining companies for:

• Location of each tailings dam
• Classification according to the 

consequences of failure
• Safety standards to protect people 

and environment
• Remediation and reporting

45



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 6

Stewardship Themes

Stewardship Themes 
have been determined 
based on a Client Survey

Identification criteria
• Economic relevance
• Ability to resource
• Stakeholder relevance

Climate change Single-use plastics

Tax Tech and disruptive industries

46



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 7

Climate lobbying 

LGPS Central voted to support a 
shareholder resolution filed at BHP Ltd, 
the world’s largest mining company, 
recommending that the firm suspends 
membership of trade associations which 
lobby to undermine the goals of the Paris 
Climate Agreement.

47



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 8

Social media control

LGPS Central is part of an investor coalition 
engaging social media companies to: 
1. Strengthen controls to prevent the live 

streaming of objectionable content being 
viewed;

2. Strengthen controls to detect objectionable 
content so it can be effectively and quickly 
removed to prevent it being viewed and 
shared;

3. Take collaborative action with the industry 
and regulators to help drive solutions.

48



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 9

Voting approach and principles

LGPS Central sees voting as 
a core component of the 
Company`s approach to 
Stewardship. Through 
voting, we aim to: 
• Strengthen governance
• Improve financial 

performance
• Promote responsible 

business practices

UK securities are voted based on internal 
voting principles which supplement the 
principles and provisions of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code. 
For non-UK securities the Company 
currently applies the international voting 
guidelines of its chosen proxy research 
provider, Hermes EOS. 

49



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 10

Reporting cycle

• Quarterly Stewardship Reports (QSR)
• Vote-by-vote disclosure & media roundups
• Annual Climate Risk Reports
• Annual PRI Transparency Report 50



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 11

51



LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England.  Registered No: 10425159.  
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB

This document has been produced by LGPS Central Limited and is intended solely for information purposes.
Any opinions, forecasts or estimates herein constitute a judgement, as at the date of this report, that is subject
to change without notice. It does not constitute an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of LGPS Central Limited
to any person to buy or sell any security. Any reference to past performance is not a guide to the future.

The information and analysis contained in this publication has been compiled or arrived at from sources
believed to be reliable, but LGPS Central Limited does not make any representation as to their accuracy or
completeness and does not accept any liability from loss arising from the use thereof. The opinions and
conclusions expressed in this document are solely those of the author.

This document may not be produced, either in whole or part, without the written permission of LGPS Central
Limited.

All information is prepared as of

This document is intended for PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS only.

LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered in England
Registered No: 10425159. Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB

DISCLAIMER

12

14/02/2020

52



 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 28 FEBRUARY 2020   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

LGPS CENTRAL PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT UPDATE 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on LGPS Central investment 
pool product development. 

  
Background 

 
2. LGPS Central (Central), an investment management company jointly owned by 

eight midlands based Local Government Pension Scheme funds, to deliver 
investment pooling, successfully went live on 1st April 2018.   

 

3. Pooling will take several years to implement, due to the need to set-up sub-funds 
by Central and then amalgamate the existing holdings for the eight partner funds. 
The Leicestershire Fund (the Fund) has currently invested in three Central 
products, the global active equity fund, global emerging active fund and the 2018 
private equity offer.  
 

4. Local management of investments will be required in the medium term for closed-
ended funds, whereby an investment manager is appointed to fulfil a specific 
purpose via a pooled fund which is set up to run for a specified period of time. 
These investments will be managed locally until the capital is repaid, due to the lack 
of a natural ability to exit the investment in the event of issues arising. 

 
 

LGPS Central Update 
 

Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund 
 

5. The Fund currently does not have an allocation to this specific asset class.  During 
the annual asset allocation review Hymans Robertson, the Fund’s Investment 
Consultants, advised of a 3% (c.£140m) allocation to be initiated, either to a Central 
sub-fund or LGIM passive.  

 
6. Central are due to launch an Investment Grade Corporate Bond fund, which will be 

open for investment in Q1 2020/21. The manager selection process followed an 
open procurement process that resulted in the Investment Committee of LGPSC 
approving the choice of two managers, Fidelity and Neuberger Berman (Europe) 
Limited to manage the assets of the sub-fund, with a default position of managing 
50/50% of the assets each. 

 
53 Agenda Item 8



 

 
7. The Fund has two options, both of which are classed as pooling.  Either invest in a 

sub fund with LGPS Central as explained above or use a LGIM low cost corporate 
bond product.  A report would be brought to the Investment Subcommittee to 
recommend which option is best for the Fund. 

 
Emerging Market Debt Fund 
 

8. The Fund currently has exposure to the Emerging Market Debt Fund asset class via 
Ashmore, the value of the holding at December 2019 is £114million.  During the 
annual asset allocation review Hymans advised of a 2.5% allocation to be 
maintained. 

 
9. Central are due launch an Emerging Market Debt Fund in Q2 2020/21.  The Fund 

has previously advised Central of our interest and have been involved with the 
discussions in building a suitable product.  Any differences to our current mandate 
have been discussed with Central and include the following: 

 
a. Change of benchmark to a to a single JPM GBP hedged benchmark from a 

combined weighted benchmark. 
b. Stocklending will be permitted. 
c. Leverage will not be permitted, Ashmore are currently allowed to borrow up 

to 10% of their net assets. 
 

10. The overall effect of changes will be minimal from a risk reward perspective. 
  

11. An open procurement is taking place and is at the second stage of manager 
assessment having reduced the respondents to the original advert to 12 potential 
managers. 
 

12. Officers will have relevant due diligence conducted on the final product offered 
before bringing the paper to Investment Subcommittee later in the year for approval. 
  

Targeted Return 
 

13. The Fund currently has exposure to the Targeted Return asset class via three 
managers, Aspect Capital, Ruffer and Pictet the total value of the Fund’s holdings is 
£481million at December 2019.  As part of the annual asset allocation review it was 
agreed that the Fund would reduce its allocation to 7.5%, which equates to a 
reduction of c£130million to the asset. 

 
14. Central are in the early stages of developing a targeted / absolute return product.  

The Fund has expressed an interest and is currently working with one other partner 
fund, Central and Hymans Robertson to develop a suitable product. 
 

15. The Fund has retained the asset class it allows investments via active management 
to take advantage of market opportunities and allows the Fund to be long and short 
in the market across classes not otherwise accessible.  In turn this allows for 
improved diversification for the Fund. 
 

54



 

16. Given that there is only one other partner fund interested in this product at present 
we are hopeful of reaching consensus on an outline requirement to go to the market 
with.  This should speed up the process of delivering a product. 

 
Multi Asset Credit (MAC) Fund 
 

17. Multi asset credit invests across a broad spectrum of credit instruments including, 
but not limited to investment grade and high yield corporate bonds, emerging 
market debt, loans, convertible bonds, securitised credit and government bonds. 
 

18. The Fund already has access to emerging market debt and will have access to 
investment grade corporate bonds via either a LGIM or Central product.  As such 
this product will be developed with this in mind and will limit exposure as necessary. 
 

19. The Fund also has limited exposure to this asset class via a minor holding totalling 
0.5% of the total Fund’s value, through JP Morgan’s Global Credit fund (c.£30m). 
 

20. The annual asset allocation review advised that the Fund should increase the 
allocation to this class from 0.5% to 4%. It is deemed to be attractive for a number 
of reasons: 
 

a. It provides exposure to multi-asset classes through a single investment 
strategy. 

b. Managers have the flexibility to move opportunistically between asset 
sectors, which should allow managers to create excess return by allocating 
to attractive asset classes.  Significant divergence can occur between 
individual asset class returns and an effective manager will allocate 
dynamically between asset classes to add value. 

c. MAC strategies can provide yield enhancement compared to traditional fixed 
income strategies.  This is attractive to investors who may need income 
streams to meet liabilities in a low interest rate environment. 

 
21. Central are developing a product that the Fund has expressed an interest in, and in 

conjunction with other partner funds will develop a requirement that Central will go 
to market with.  

 
Direct Property 
 

22. The Fund has a number of property investments totalling £408million at December 
2019 or 9% of the Fund’s value. This is split across three managers, Colliers, 
LaSalle and Kames.  Of the total holding £99million is classed at direct holdings 
where individual properties are bought and held for the Fund rather than units in a 
fund that owns property, known as an indirect holding.  
 

23. The Fund is currently about 1% underweight to property and as such we have 
instructed Colliers in conjunction with Central under our advisory agreement to 
search for appropriate investments whilst there is no property sub fund available via 
Central to invest in.   
 

24. Central are in the early stages of developing a UK Direct Property Fund.  Four 
partner funds including ourselves have expressed an interest to invest.  A draft 
business case will be presented in February 2020 to members of the investment 
working group (IWG).  A draft mandate has been developed with the other 

55



 

interested partner funds.  Property is a long term investment given the round trip of 
buying and disposing usually absorbs 7-8% of the money invested with stamp duty 
accounting for 5% on purchase.  There is the opportunity to transfer the Fund’s 
current direct property holdings to this new sub fund under government seeding 
relief, this allows our Fund to transfer our direct property holdings to the sub fund 
without having to incur stamp duty.  The fund is investigating if this would be 
beneficial to us. 

  
25. Central plan to launch additional property funds to focus on other sectors including 

international property.  These are likely to be held on an indirect basis, similar to our 
current holdings with LaSalle where they hold units in other specialised funds which 
we would otherwise find harder to directly invest in at scale, for example in niche 
debt funds or student housing. 

 
Infrastructure 

 
26. The Fund has a £421 million allocation to Infrastructure; this is managed by IFM, 

KKR, JP Morgan, Infracapital and Stafford. The KKR and Stafford investments are 
closed ended with capital not expected to be fully returned until 2027.  The IFM and 
JP Morgan fund are semi open, with matching by the manager of clients seeking to 
invest / divest providing some liquidity.   
 

27. The Fund has an allocation target of 9.75%, at December 2019 had an allocation of 
9.1%.  There is c£47million of commitment to be called between KKR, Stafford and 
Infracapital to reach the set target so officers are comfortable with the Fund’s 
current. 
 

28. Central are in the very early stages in the development of an Infrastructure Fund.  
They are looking to develop an offering to bring to the Investment Working Group 
(IWG). There is Government desire to increase infrastructure investment which 
bodes well for long term investors like pension funds however, at present there is 
no incentive offered to invest in the UK and so we are likely to maintain our current 
global focus to ensure the best for the Fund. 

 
Other Matters 
 

29. LGPS Central has identified and appointed a 4th non-executive director, Susan 
Martin. The recruitment process was led by the Nominations committee of LGPS 
Central’s Board, which consists of three non-executive directors.  Partner Funds 
were involved in the recruitment process.  Susan will sit on all three boards, 
remuneration, nominations and audit risk & compliance. 
 

Recommendation 
 

30. It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee notes the report.  
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

31. None. 
 
Appendix 
 
None 

56



 

 
Background Papers 

 
None 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr B Kachra, Senior Finance Analyst - Investments 
Tel: 0116 305 1449 Email: Bhulesh.Kachra@leics.gov.uk 
 

57

mailto:Bhulesh.Kachra@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE - 28 FEBRUARY 2020  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
PENSION FUND - FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT AND 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 
 
 

Purpose of the Report  
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s approval of the Pension Fund’s 
revised Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) and revised Investment Strategy 
Statement (ISS), following the consultation. 

 
Background 

 
2. Each LGPS administering authority has a statutory obligation to have an actuarial 

valuation carried out every three years and all funds in England and Wales need to 
have a valuation carried out as at 31st March 2019. Leicestershire County Council 
Pension Fund’s actuarial valuation has been carried out by Richard Warden of 
Hymans Robertson LLP. 

 
3. The major purpose of the actuarial valuation is for the actuary to set employer 

contribution rates for a three-year period, that commences one year after the 
valuation date (i.e. for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023). To set these 
contribution rates the actuary must take account of many factors, most of which are 
assumptions of what will happen in the future. These assumptions do not impact onto 
the ultimate cost of paying benefits they simply calculate the liability derived from 
these benefits, which in turn impacts the level of contributions set. 

 
4. As part of the valuation process the Fund must review and amend its Funding 

Strategy Statement (FSS) to reflect the approach to the 2019 valuation and 
Investment Strategy Statement (ISS). These are important Fund documents as they 
detail how the Fund sets the funding approach used in the valuation for each of the 
Fund’s employers. 

 
5. On the 8 November 2019 the Committee received reports with the draft FSS and ISS 

with a recommendation that a consultation takes place. This is a requirement of the 
pension scheme regulations. 

 
6. The consultation took place between the 18 November 2019 and the 31 December 

2019 and included consultation with the Local Pension Board, promotion at the 
Fund’s AGM and circulation to all the scheme employers. 

 
 

59 Agenda Item 9



 

 

7. The ISS will be monitored and updated, if necessary annually. The Fund will maintain 
the three year cycle for major updates. 

 
 

Updated Funding Strategy Statement  
 
8. The draft FSS that is attached as Appendix A is an updated version of the Fund’s 

existing FSS agreed on 17 January 2017. By way of summary, the major changes 
from the existing document are the:- 

 
(i) Fund’s stabilisation policy 
(ii) Fund’s approach to setting employer contribution rates 
(iii) Fund’s cessation policy 

 
9. Page 11 of the FSS includes a table detailing the Fund’s framework for setting 

differing employer group rates. 
 

10. The employers on stabilised rates have been informed of their employer contributions 
rates for the following three years and their full-service rates without the stabilisation 
mechanism. Provision of full-service rates assists employers with their future budget 
planning. 

 
11. Excluding investment returns and other unknowns (e.g. life expectancy) when 

employers pay less than their full-service rates, future valuations are likely to increase 
their employer’s rates further. 

 
12. Colleges and the two Universities generally paid less than their full-service rates in 

2016 so increases were anticipated at the 2019 valuation. 
 
 
The Results of the Funding Strategy Statement Consultation 

 
13. There were a considerable number of general questions – many of these were simply 

due to the greater amount of information provided within the FSS. These questions 
were answered accordingly. Employers that replied found the extra information helpful 
and reported it was a positive improvement. Queries raised were as follows:- 

 

 One parish Council and one Community Admission Body wished to pay a higher 
employer contribution rate and Officers have agreed this. 

 Some stabilised employers enquired about paying an extra one-off lump sum. 
However, from this only one district council is considering this further.  

 The biggest group enquiry was from the Colleges and the two Universities that 
collectively felt they were akin to tax raising bodies that paid a stabilised 
contribution rate, thus wanted to review the 15-year deficit recovery period and 
the 80% likelihood of success. 

60



 

 

o All employers were offered to opportunity to meet with the Fund’s officers. 
There was an additional conference call for this group on the 18 
December 2019 but only one employer joined the call. 

o After meeting with some of these employers one employer has provided 
sufficient supporting evidence of their financial robustness and Officers 
have agreed flexibility in their contribution rate increases. For the majority 
of the other employers, Officers and the Fund’s Actuary feel the proposals 
are acceptable and have been agreed with employers. 

o Only one employer’s valuation rate remains unresolved. 

 There have been some minor questions from the new pass-through employers 
(as this is the first time we have been through a valuation with this group), but 
these are generally more about the process and Officers are working to resolve 
these.   

 
14. Other than the one outstanding employer, Officers are pleased to inform the 

Committee that following communication and conversations over 180 employer 
valuation rates have been finalised.   

 
Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) 

 
15. After the valuation is complete GAD will carry out a scheme level valuation to 

evaluate funds against four measures; compliance, consistency, solvency and long 
term cost efficiency. Within this there are two specific areas they will focus on; 

 
Consistency of treatment of the potential McCloud costs 

 
16. GAD intends to review fund’s FSS and valuation reports to check their approach 

towards the potential additional McCloud costs and how these have been set out. 
Officers have worked closely with the Actuary on this point and the Fund has adopted 
a robust and transparent approach to McCloud within the FSS  

 
Falling contribution rates   
 

17. Where funds have reduced overall contribution rates, GAD will review the FSS and 
valuation reports to check this has not had an adverse impact on future taxpayers. 
GAD expect funds that have reduced the overall contributions to have; 
 

 Kept the same deficit recovery period, or brought it forward, and 

 Made an explicit allowance for potential McCloud costs. 
 
18. Officers and the Actuary agreed to increase contributions for the larger employers – 

the stabilised employers, Colleges and the Universities. Some of the smaller 
employers received reductions in their rates but the Actuary and Officers expect the 
Fund’s aggregate contribution rate to be higher than the equivalent figure in 2016.   

  
 
 

61



 

 

Updated Investment Strategy Statement  
 
19. The draft ISS, attached as Appendix B, is an updated version of the Fund’s existing 

ISS agreed on 17 January 2019.  By way of summary, the major changes from the 
existing document are:- 
 

(i) Arranged in a format to address the following seven areas:- 
 

1. Governance  
2. Fund Objectives  
3. Fund Management  
4. Asset Allocation 
5. Risks 
6. Asset Investment Pooling 
7. Responsible Investment 

 
(ii) The Fund’s asset allocation targets following the annual strategy refresh agreed 

by the Committee on 24 January 2020.  
 

(iii) Clarification of the link between the Funding Strategy Statement’s required 
investment returns and returns from the revise annual asset allocation review 
by Hymans Robertson.  

 
(iv) Inclusion of the target asset allocation linking the expected long term returns 

from each asset class aligning the target investment return required within the 
FSS.  In summary the assets the Fund invests in are still suitable.  
 

(v) The Fund’s approach to responsible investment (RI) in the respect of 
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) factors has been expanded as 
has how LGPS Central approaches RI. 
 

 
The Results of the ISS Consultation 
 

20. At the Pension Fund’s Annual General Meeting on 18th November 2019 in response 
to a question tabled it was agreed to make the linkage between risks and responsible 
investing clearer. The Fund recognises ESG risks within the risk section of the ISS 
and have amended this statement to clearly state where in the ISS the Funds ESG 
policy, which incorporates climate change resides. This covers the Fund’s approach 
to ESG factors and stewardship. 

 
Timeline  

 
21. The timeline for providing final rates to employers following the valuation is as 

follows:  
 

 28 February 2020 – Local Pensions Committee to formally sign off the FSS and 
ISS. 

 March 2020 - The Fund Actuary to provide the final valuation results for the 
Fund.  

62



 

 

 March 2020 - Officers to send the final full valuation results to all employers, 
confirming the agreed contribution rates. 

 1 April 2020 - New employer rates commence.      
 

 
Recommendation 

 
22. It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee; 

 
i) Approve the Funding Strategy Statement that is attached as Appendix A to this 

report. 
 

ii) Approve the Investment Strategy Statement that is attached as Appendix B to 
this report. 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Funding Strategy Statement 
Appendix B – Investment Strategy Statement  
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr I Howe, Pensions Manager 
Tel: 0116 305 6945 Email: Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 
      

63

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

 

L
e

ic
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d

 
D

R
A

F
T

 -
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

 J
a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

2
0

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

65



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND  

 

January 2020  

 
C

o
n

te
n

ts
 

 

Funding Strategy Statement PAGE 

 

1 Introduction 1 
2 Basic Funding issues 4 
3 Calculating contributions for individual Employers 9 
4 Funding strategy and links to investment strategy 22 
5 Statutory reporting and comparison to other LGPS Funds 23 

 

 

Appendices 

 

Appendix A – Regulatory framework 25 
Appendix B – Responsibilities of key parties 27 
Appendix C – Key risks and controls 29 
Appendix D – The calculation of Employer contributions 33 
Appendix E – Actuarial assumptions 36 
Appendix F – Glossary 40 
 

 

66



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 001 

 

January 2020  

1 Introduction 

1.1 What is this document? 

This is the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) of the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”), 

which is administered by Leicestershire County Council, (“the Administering Authority”).  

It has been prepared by the Administering Authority in collaboration with the Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson 

LLP, and after consultation with the Fund’s employers and investment adviser.  It is effective from 28 February 

2020.  This FSS supersedes the FSS in place from 1 January 2017. 

1.2 What is the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund? 

The Fund is part of the national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The LGPS was set up by the UK 

Government to provide retirement and death benefits for local government employees, and those employed in 

similar or related bodies, across the whole of the UK.  The Administering Authority runs the Leicestershire 

County Council Pension Fund, in effect the LGPS for the Leicestershire area, to make sure it:  

 receives the proper amount of contributions from employees and employers, and any transfer payments; 

 invests the contributions appropriately, with the aim that the Fund’s assets grow over time with investment 

income and capital growth; 

 uses the assets to pay Fund benefits to the members (as and when they retire, for the rest of their lives), 

and to their dependants (as and when members die), as defined in the LGPS Regulations. Assets are 

also used to pay transfer values and administration costs. 

The roles and responsibilities of the key parties involved in the management of the Fund are summarised in 

Appendix B. 

1.3 Why does the Fund need a Funding Strategy Statement? 

Employees’ benefits are guaranteed by the LGPS Regulations, and do not change with market values or 

employer contributions.  Investment returns will help pay for some of the benefits, but probably not all, and 

certainly with no guarantee.  Employees’ contributions are fixed in those Regulations also, at a level which 

covers only part of the cost of the benefits.   

Therefore, employers need to pay the balance of the cost of delivering the benefits to members and their 

dependants.   

The FSS focuses on how employer liabilities are measured, the pace at which these liabilities are funded, and 

how employers or pools of employers pay for their own liabilities.  This statement sets out how the Administering 

Authority has balanced the conflicting aims of: 

 affordability of employer contributions,  

 transparency of processes,  

 stability of employers’ contributions, and  

 prudence in the funding basis.  

There are also regulatory requirements for an FSS, as given in Appendix A. 

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding its liabilities, and this includes reference to the Fund’s 

other policies; it is not an exhaustive statement of policy on all issues.  The FSS forms part of a framework of 

which includes: 

67



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 002 

 

January 2020  

 the LGPS Regulations; 

 the Rates and Adjustments Certificate (confirming employer contribution rates for the next three years) 

which can be found in an appendix to the formal valuation report; 

 the Fund’s policies on admissions, cessations and bulk transfers; 

 actuarial factors for valuing individual transfers, early retirement costs and the costs of buying added 

service; and 

 the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (see Section 4). 

1.4 How does the Fund and this FSS affect me? 

This depends who you are: 

 a member of the Fund, i.e. a current or former employee, or a dependant: the Fund needs to be sure it is 

collecting and holding enough money so that your benefits are always paid in full; 

 an employer in the Fund (or which is considering joining the Fund): you will want to know how your 

contributions are calculated from time to time, that these are fair by comparison to other employers in the 

Fund, in what circumstances you might need to pay more and what happens if you cease to be an 

employer in the Fund.  Note that the FSS applies to all employers participating in the Fund; 

 an Elected Member whose council participates in the Fund: you will want to be sure that the council 

balances the need to hold prudent reserves for members’ retirement and death benefits, with the other 

competing demands for council money; 

 a Council Tax payer: your council seeks to strike the balance above, and also to minimise cross-subsidies 

between different generations of taxpayers. 

1.5 What does the FSS aim to do? 

The FSS sets out the objectives of the Fund’s funding strategy, such as:  

 to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund, using a prudent long-term view.  This will ensure that 

sufficient funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment; 

 to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate; 

 to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund, by recognising 

the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and return 

(NB this will also minimise the costs to be borne by Council Tax payers); 

 to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates.  This 

involves the Fund having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer 

can best meet its own liabilities over future years; and 

 to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council Tax payer 

from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations. 

 

 

 

 

68



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 003 

 

January 2020  

1.6 How do I find my way around this document? 

In Section 2 there is a brief introduction to some of the main principles behind funding, i.e. deciding how much 

an employer should contribute to the Fund from time to time. 

In Section 3 we outline how the Fund calculates the contributions payable by different employers in different 

situations. 

In Section 4 we show how the funding strategy is linked with the Fund’s investment strategy. 

In the Appendices we cover various issues in more detail if you are interested: 

A. the regulatory background, including how and when the FSS is reviewed, 

B. who is responsible for what, 

C. what issues the Fund needs to monitor, and how it manages its risks, 

D. some more details about the actuarial calculations required, 

E. the assumptions which the Fund actuary currently makes about the future, 

F. a glossary explaining the technical terms occasionally used here. 

If you have any other queries please contact Ian Howe, Pensions Manager in the first instance at e-mail address 

ian.howe@leics.gov.uk or on telephone number 0116 305 6945.  

  

69



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 004 

 

January 2020  

2 Basic Funding issues 

(More detailed and extensive descriptions are given in Appendix D). 

2.1 How does the actuary calculate the required contribution rate? 

In essence this is a three-step process: 

 Calculate the funding target for that employer, i.e. the estimated amount of assets it should hold in order 

to be able to pay all its members’ benefits. See Appendix E for more details of what assumptions we 

make to determine that funding target; 

 Determine the time horizon over which the employer should aim to achieve that funding target. See the 

table in 3.3 and Note (c) for more details; 

 Calculate the employer contribution rate such that it has at least a given likelihood of achieving that 

funding target over that time horizon, allowing for various possible economic outcomes over that time 

horizon. See 2.3 below, and the table in 3.3 Note (e) for more details. 

2.2 What is each employer’s contribution rate? 

This is described in more detail in Appendix D. Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements: 

a) the estimated cost of benefits being built up each year, after deducting the members’ own contributions 

and including an allowance for administration expenses. This is referred to as the “Primary rate”, and is 

expressed as a percentage of members’ pensionable pay; plus 

b) an adjustment for the difference between the Primary rate above, and the actual contribution the 

employer needs to pay, referred to as the “Secondary rate”.  In broad terms, payment of the Secondary 

rate is in respect of benefits already accrued at the valuation date. The Secondary rate may be expressed 

as a percentage of pay and/or a monetary amount in each year.  

The rates for all employers are shown in the Fund’s Rates and Adjustments Certificate, which forms part of the 

formal Actuarial Valuation Report.  Employers’ contributions are expressed as minima, with employers able to 

pay contributions at a higher rate.  Account of any higher rate will be taken by the Fund actuary at subsequent 

valuations, i.e. will be reflected as a credit when next calculating the employer’s contributions. 

2.3 What different types of employer participate in the Fund? 

Historically the LGPS was intended for local authority employees only.  However, over the years, with the 

diversification and changes to delivery of local services, many more types and numbers of employers now 

participate.  There are currently more employers in the Fund than ever before, and a significant number of the 

newer employing bodies are academies.  

In essence, participation in the LGPS is open to public sector employers providing some form of service to the 

local community. Whilst the majority of members will be local authority employees (and ex-employees), the 

majority of participating employers are those providing services in place of (or alongside) local authority 

services: academy schools, contractors, housing associations, charities, etc. 

The LGPS Regulations define various types of employer as follows: 

Scheduled bodies - councils, and other specified employers such as academies and further education 

establishments.  These must provide access to the LGPS in respect of their employees who are not eligible to 

join another public sector scheme (such as the Teachers Scheme).  These employers are so-called because 

they are specified in a schedule to the LGPS Regulations.     

70



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 005 

 

January 2020  

It is now possible for Local Education Authority schools to convert to academy status, and for other forms of 

school (such as Free Schools) to be established under the academies legislation. All such academies (or Multi 

Academy Trusts), as employers of non-teaching staff, become separate new employers in the Fund.  As 

academies are defined in the LGPS Regulations as “Scheduled Bodies”, the Administering Authority has no 

discretion over whether to admit them to the Fund, and the academy has no discretion whether to continue to 

allow its non-teaching staff to join the Fund.  There has also been guidance issued by the MHCLG regarding the 

terms of academies’ membership in LGPS Funds. 

Designating employers - employers such as town and parish councils are able to participate in the LGPS via 

resolution (and the Fund cannot refuse them entry where the resolution is passed).  These employers can 

designate which of their employees are eligible to join the scheme. 

Other employers are able to participate in the Fund via an admission agreement and are referred to as 

‘admission bodies’.  These employers are generally those with a “community of interest” with another scheme 

employer – community admission bodies (“CAB”) or those providing a service on behalf of a scheme 

employer – transferee admission bodies (“TAB”).  CABs will include housing associations and charities, TABs 

will generally be contractors.  The Fund is able to set its criteria for participation by these employers and can 

refuse entry if the requirements as set out in the Fund’s admissions policy are not met. (NB the terminology 

CAB and TAB has been dropped from recent LGPS Regulations, which instead combine both under the single 

term ‘admission bodies’; however, we have retained the old terminology here as we consider it to be helpful in 

setting funding strategies for these different employers). 

2.4 How does the calculated contribution rate vary for different employers? 

All three steps above are considered when setting contributions (more details are given in Section 3 and 

Appendix D). 

1. The funding target is based on a set of assumptions about the future, (e.g. investment returns, inflation, 

pensioners’ life expectancies). If an employer is approaching the end of its participation in the Fund then 

its funding target may be set on a more prudent basis, so that its liabilities are less likely to be spread 

among other employers after its cessation; 

2. The time horizon required is the period over which the funding target is achieved. Employers may be 

given a lower time horizon if they have a less permanent anticipated membership, or do not have tax-

raising powers to increase contributions if investment returns under-perform; and 

3. The likelihood of achieving the funding target over that time horizon will be dependent on the Fund’s 

view of the strength of employer covenant and its funding profile. Where an employer is considered to be 

weaker than the required likelihood will be set higher, which in turn will increase the required contributions 

(and vice versa). 

For some employers it may be agreed to pool contributions 3.4 

Any costs of non-ill-health early retirements must be paid by the employer, see 3.6. 

Costs of ill-health early retirements are covered in 3.7 and 3.8. 

 

 

 

71



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 006 

 

January 2020  

2.5 How is a funding level calculated? 

An employer’s “funding level” is defined as the ratio of: 

 the market value of the employer’s share of assets (see Appendix D, section D5, for further details of how 

this is calculated), to  

 the value placed by the actuary on the benefits built up to date for the employer’s employees and ex-

employees (the “liabilities”).  The Fund actuary agrees with the Administering Authority the assumptions 

to be used in calculating this value. 

If this is less than 100% then it means the employer has a shortfall, which is the employer’s “deficit”; if it is more 

than 100% then the employer is said to be in “surplus”.  The amount of deficit or shortfall is the difference 

between the asset value and the liabilities value. 

It is important to note that the funding level and deficit/surplus are only measurements at a particular point in 

time, on a particular set of assumptions about the future. Whilst we recognise that various parties will take an 

interest in these measures, for most employers the key issue is how likely it is that their contributions will be 

sufficient to pay for their members’ benefits (when added to their existing asset share and anticipated 

investment returns).  

In short, funding levels and deficits are short term, high level measures, whereas contribution-setting is a longer-

term issue. 

2.6 How does the Fund recognise that contribution levels can affect council and employer service 

provision, and council tax? 

The Administering Authority and the Fund actuary are acutely aware that, all other things being equal, a higher 

contribution required to be paid to the Fund will mean less cash available for the employer to spend on the 

provision of services.  For instance: 

 Higher Pension fund contributions may result in reduced council spending, which in turn could affect the 

resources available for council services, and/or greater pressure on council tax levels; 

 Contributions which Academies pay to the Fund will therefore not be available to pay for providing 

education; and 

 Other employers will provide various services to the local community, perhaps through charitable work, or 

contracting council services. If they are required to pay more in pension contributions to the LGPS then 

this may affect their ability to provide the local services at a reasonable cost. 

Whilst all this is true, it should also be borne in mind that: 

 The Fund provides invaluable financial security to local families, whether to those who formerly worked in 

the service of the local community who have now retired, or to their families after their death; 

 The Fund must have the assets available to meet these retirement and death benefits, which in turn 

means that the various employers must each pay their own way.  Lower contributions today will mean 

higher contributions tomorrow: deferring payments does not alter the employer’s ultimate obligation to the 

Fund in respect of its current and former employees; 

 Each employer will generally only pay for its own employees and ex-employees (and their dependants), 

not for those of other employers in the Fund; 

72



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 007 

 

January 2020  

 The Fund strives to maintain reasonably stable employer contribution rates where appropriate and 

possible. However, a recent shift in regulatory focus means that solvency within each generation is 

considered by the Government to be a higher priority than stability of contribution rates; 

 The Fund wishes to avoid the situation where an employer falls so far behind in managing its funding 

shortfall that its deficit becomes unmanageable in practice: such a situation may lead to employer 

insolvency and the resulting deficit falling on the other Fund employers. In that situation, those employers’ 

services would in turn suffer as a result; 

 Council contributions to the Fund should be at a suitable level, to protect the interests of different 

generations of council tax payers. For instance, underpayment of contributions for some years will need 

to be balanced by overpayment in other years; the council will wish to minimise the extent to which 

council tax payers in one period are in effect benefiting at the expense of those paying in a different 

period.  

Overall, therefore, there is clearly a balance to be struck between the Fund’s need for maintaining prudent 

funding levels, and the employers’ need to allocate their resources appropriately.  The Fund achieves this 

through various techniques which affect contribution increases to various degrees (see 3.1).  In deciding which 

of these techniques to apply to any given employer, the Administering Authority takes a view on the financial 

standing of the employer, i.e. its ability to meet its funding commitments and the relevant time horizon. 

The Administering Authority will consider a risk assessment of that employer using a knowledge base which is 

regularly monitored and kept up-to-date.  This database will include such information as the type of employer, its 

membership profile and funding position, any guarantors or security provision, material changes anticipated, etc.   

For instance, where the Administering Authority has reasonable confidence that an employer will be able to 

meet its funding commitments, then the Fund will permit options such as stabilisation (see 3.3 Note (b)), a 

longer time horizon relative to other employers, and/or a lower likelihood of achieving their funding target. Such 

options will temporarily produce lower contribution levels than would otherwise have applied.  This is permitted 

in the expectation that the employer will still be able to meet its obligations for many years to come. 

On the other hand, where there is doubt that an employer will be able to meet its funding commitments or 

withstand a significant change in its commitments, then a higher funding target, and/or a shorter time horizon 

relative to other employers, and/or a higher likelihood of achieving the target may be required. 

The Fund actively seeks employer input, including to its funding arrangements, through various means: see 

Appendix A.   

2.7 What approach has the Fund taken to dealing with uncertainty arising from the McCloud court 

case and its potential impact on the LGPS benefit structure? 

The LGPS benefit structure from 1 April 2014 is currently under review following the Government’s loss of the 

right to appeal the McCloud and other similar court cases. The courts have ruled that the ‘transitional 

protections’ awarded to some members of public service pension schemes when the schemes were reformed 

(on 1 April 2014 in the case of the LGPS) were unlawful on the grounds of age discrimination.  At the time of 

writing, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has not provided any details of 

changes as a result of the case. However, it is expected that benefits changes will be required, and they will 

likely increase the value of liabilities. At present, the scale and nature of any increase in liabilities are unknown, 

which limits the ability of the Fund to make an accurate allowance.   

The LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) issued advice to LGPS funds in May 2019.  As there was no finalised 

outcome of the McCloud case by 31 August 2019, the Fund Actuary has acted in line with SAB’s advice and 

valued all member benefits in line with the current LGPS Regulations. 

73

http://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Advice_from_the_SAB_on_McCloud_May_2019.pdf


LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 008 

 

January 2020  

 

The Fund, in line with the advice in the SAB’s note, has considered how to allow for this risk in the setting of 

employer contribution rates.  

 

The Fund has taken the following action: 

 

An additional margin of prudence has been included in the method for setting contribution rates to allow for the 

uncertainty in the cost of past and future benefits.  This margin has been established by targeting a higher 

likelihood of success for employers – see table 3.3. 

 

The Fund has also considered the McCloud judgement in its approach to cessation valuations. Please see note 

(j) to table 3.3 for further information.  

 

2.8 When will the next actuarial valuation be? 

On 8 May 2019 MHCLG issued a consultation seeking views on (among other things) proposals to amend the 

LGPS valuation cycle in England and Wales from a three year (triennial) valuation cycle to a four year 

(quadrennial) valuation cycle.  

On 7 October 2019 MHCLG confirmed the next LGPS valuation cycle in England and Wales will be 31 March 

2022, regardless of the ongoing consultation.  The Fund therefore instructed the Fund Actuary to certify 

contribution rates for employers for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 as part of the 2019 valuation of the 

Fund. 

  

74

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-changes-to-the-local-valuation-cycle-and-management-of-employer-risk


LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 009 

 

January 2020  

3 Calculating contributions for individual Employers 

3.1 General comments 

A key challenge for the Administering Authority is to balance the need for stable, affordable employer 

contributions with the requirement to take a prudent, longer-term view of funding and ensure the solvency of the 

Fund.  With this in mind, the Fund’s three-step process identifies the key issues: 

1. What is a suitably (but not overly) prudent funding target?  

2. How long should the employer be permitted to reach that target? This should be realistic but not so long 

that the funding target is in danger of never actually being achieved. 

3. What likelihood is required to reach that funding target? This will always be less than 100% as we cannot 

be certain of the future. Higher likelihood “bars” can be used for employers where the Fund wishes to 

reduce the risk that the employer ceases leaving a deficit to be picked up by other employers.  

These and associated issues are covered in this Section. 

The Administering Authority recognises that there may occasionally be particular circumstances affecting 

individual employers that are not easily managed within the rules and policies set out in the Funding Strategy 

Statement.  Therefore, the Administering Authority, reserves the right to direct the actuary to adopt alternative 

funding approaches on a case by case basis for specific employers. 

3.2 The effect of paying lower contributions  

In limited circumstances the Administering Authority may permit employers to pay contributions at a lower level 

than is assessed for the employer using the three-step process above.  At their absolute discretion the 

Administering Authority may:  

 extend the time horizon for targeting full funding; 

 adjust the required likelihood of meeting the funding target; 

 permit an employer to participate in the Fund’s stabilisation mechanisms;  

 permit extended phasing in of contribution rises or reductions; 

 pool contributions amongst employers with similar characteristics; and/or 

 accept some form of security or guarantee in lieu of a higher contribution rate than would otherwise be the 

case. 

Employers which are permitted to use one or more of the above methods will often be paying, for a time, 

contributions less than required to meet their funding target, over the appropriate time horizon with the required 

likelihood of success.  Such employers should appreciate that: 

 their true long-term liability (i.e. the actual eventual cost of benefits payable to their employees and ex-

employees) is not affected by the pace of paying contributions,  

 lower contributions in the short term will result in a lower level of future investment returns on the 

employer’s asset share.  Thus, deferring a certain amount of contribution will lead to higher contributions 

in the long-term, and 

 it will take longer to reach full funding, all other things being equal.   

Overleaf (3.3) is a summary of how the main funding policies differ for different types of employer, followed by 

more detailed notes where necessary. 

75



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 010 

 

January 2020  

Section 3.4 onwards deals with various other funding issues which apply to all employers. 

 

76



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 011 

 

January 2020  

3.3 The different approaches used for different employers 

Type of employer Scheduled Bodies Community Admission Bodies and 
Designating Employers (including 

Parish/Town Councils) 

Transferee Admission Bodies* 

Sub-type Local 
Authorities 

(incl. Police & 
Fire)  

Colleges & 
Universities  

Academies Open to new 
entrants 

Closed to new 
entrants 

(all) 

Funding Target basis 
used 

Ongoing participation basis assumes long-term Fund 
participation  

(see Appendix E) 

Ongoing participation basis, but may move to 
“gilts basis” - see Note (a) 

 Contractor exit basis, assumes fixed contract 
term in the Fund (see Appendix E) 

Primary Contribution 
rate 

 (see Appendix D – D.2) 

 

Stabilised contribution 
rate? 

Yes - see 
Note (b) 

No 

Maximum time horizon 
– Note (c) 

17 years 15 years 17 years 17 years Future working lifetime 17 years 

Secondary rate – Note 
(d) 

% of payroll / 
monetary 
amount 

% of payroll / 
monetary 
amount 

% of payroll % of payroll % of payroll/monetary 
amount 

% of payroll/monetary amount depending on 
circumstances 

Treatment of surplus Covered by 
stabilisation 
arrangement 

Preferred approach: contributions kept at Primary contribution rate. However, reductions 
may be permitted by the Admin. Authority 

Reduce contributions by spreading the surplus 
over the remaining contract term 

Likelihood of 
achieving target – 

Note (e) 

75% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 

Phasing of contribution 
changes 

Covered by 
stabilisation 
arrangement 

3 years 
  

None, unless increases are particularly large 

Review of rates – Note 
(f) 

Administering Authority reserves the right to review contribution rates and amounts, and the level of 
security provided, at regular intervals between valuations 

Particularly reviewed in last 3 years of contract 

New employer n/a n/a Note (g) Note (h) Notes (h) & (i) 

Cessation of 
participation: cessation 
exit debt/credit payable 

Cessation is assumed not to be generally possible, as 
Scheduled Bodies are legally obliged to participate in the 

LGPS.  In the rare event of cessation occurring 
(machinery of Government changes for example), the 
cessation principles applied would be as per Note (j). 

Can be ceased subject to terms of admission 
agreement.  Cessation surplus or debt will be 

calculated on a basis appropriate to the 
circumstances of cessation – see Note (j). 

Participation is assumed to expire at the end of 
the contract.  Cessation credit or debt 

calculated on ongoing basis, unless cessation 
is caused by deliberate action taken by the 

employer. Awarding Authority will be liable for 
future deficits that arise. 

 

77



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 012 

 

January 2020  

* Where the Administering Authority recognises a fixed contribution rate agreement between a letting authority and a contractor, the certified employer 

contribution rate will be derived in line with the methodology specified in the risk sharing agreement.  Additionally, in these cases, upon cessation the 

contractor’s assets and liabilities will transfer back to the letting employer with no crystallisation of any deficit or surplus. Further detail on fixed contribution 

rate agreements is set out in note (i). 

78



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 013 

 

January 2020  

Note (a) (Gilts exit basis for CABs and Designating Employers closed to new entrants) 

In the circumstances where: 

 the employer is a Designating Employer, or an Admission Body but not a Transferee Admission Body, 

and 

 the employer has no guarantor, and 

 the admission agreement is likely to terminate, or the employer is likely to lose its last active member, 

within a timeframe considered appropriate by the Administering Authority to prompt a change in funding,  

the Administering Authority may set a higher funding target (e.g.  based on the return from long-term gilt yields) 

by the time the agreement terminates or the last active member leaves, in order to protect other employers in 

the Fund.  This policy will increase regular contributions and reduce, but not entirely eliminate, the possibility of 

a final deficit payment being required from the employer when a cessation valuation is carried out.   

The Administering Authority also reserves the right to adopt the above approach in respect of those Designating 

Employers and Admission Bodies with no guarantor, where the strength of covenant is considered to be weak 

but there is no immediate expectation that the admission agreement will cease, or the Designating Employer 

alters its designation. 

Note (b) (Stabilisation) 

Stabilisation is a mechanism where employer contribution rate variations from year to year are kept within a pre-

determined range, thus allowing those employers’ rates to be relatively stable. In the interests of stability and 

affordability of employer contributions, the Administering Authority, on the advice of the Fund Actuary, believes 

that stabilising contributions can still be viewed as a prudent longer-term approach.  However, employers whose 

contribution rates have been “stabilised” (and may therefore be paying less than their theoretical contribution 

rate) should be aware of the risks of this approach and should consider making additional payments to the Fund 

if possible. 

This stabilisation mechanism allows short term investment market volatility to be managed so as not to cause 

volatility in employer contribution rates, on the basis that a long-term view can be taken on net cash inflow, 

investment returns and strength of employer covenant. 

The current stabilisation mechanism applies if: 

 the employer satisfies the eligibility criteria based on tax raising status, financial security and time horizon 

in the Fund set by the Administering Authority and; 

 there are no material events which cause the employer to become ineligible, e.g. significant reductions in 

active membership (due to outsourcing or redundancies), or changes in the nature of the employer 

(perhaps due to Government restructuring)or changes in the security of the employer. 

On the basis of modelling carried out as part of the 2019 valuation exercise (see Section 4), the stabilised 

details are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

79



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 014 

 

January 2020  

Type of employer Max cont increase p.a. Max cont decrease p.a. 

Tax raising body (excl. Town & Parish 

Councils) 

+1% of pay -1% of pay 

 

The stabilisation criteria and limits will be reviewed at the next formal valuation.  However, the Administering 

Authority reserves the right to review the stabilisation criteria and limits at any time before then, on the basis of 

membership and/or employer changes as described above. 

Note (c) (Maximum time horizon) 

The maximum time horizon starts at the commencement of the revised contribution rate (1 April 2020 for the 

2019 valuation).  The Administering Authority would normally expect the period to reduce at successive triennial 

valuations so that the deficit recovery plan is a natural continuation of the previous plan but would reserve the 

right to propose alternative spreading periods. 

Where stabilisation applies, the resulting employer contribution rate would be amended to comply with the 

stabilisation mechanism. 

For employers with no (or very few) active members at this valuation, the deficit should be recovered by a fixed 

monetary amount over a period to be agreed with the body or its successor, not to exceed the expected future 

working lifetime of active members or contract end date whichever is sooner. 

Note (d) (Secondary rate) 

For employers where stabilisation is not being applied, the Secondary contribution rate for each employer 

covering the period until the next formal valuation will often be set as a percentage of salaries.  However, the 

Administering Authority reserves the right to amend these rates between formal valuations and/or to require 

these payments in monetary terms instead. 

Where an employer is a transferee admission body, the Secondary rate has been set to spread the funding 

surplus / deficit over the future working lifetime of active members or contract end date whichever is sooner. 

 

Note (e) (Likelihood of achieving funding target) 

Each employer has its funding target calculated, and a relevant time horizon over which to reach that target. 

Contributions are set such that, combined with the employer’s current asset share and anticipated market 

movements over the time horizon, the funding target is achieved with a given minimum likelihood. A higher 

required likelihood bar will give rise to higher required contributions, and vice versa. 

The way in which contributions are set using these three steps, and relevant economic projections, is described 

in further detail in Appendix D. 

Different likelihoods are set for different employers depending on their nature and circumstances: in broad 

terms, a higher likelihood may apply due to one or more of the following: 

 the Fund believes the employer poses a greater funding risk than other employers,  

 the employer does not have tax-raising powers; 

80



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 015 

 

January 2020  

 the employer does not have a guarantor or other sufficient security backing its funding position; and/or 

 the employer is likely to cease participation in the Fund in the short or medium term. 

 Note (f) (Regular Reviews) 

Such reviews may be triggered by significant events including but not limited to: an employer approaching exit 

from the Fund, significant reductions in payroll, altered employer circumstances, Government restructuring 

affecting the employer’s business, or failure to pay contributions or arrange appropriate security as required by 

the Administering Authority. 

The result of a review may be to require increased contributions (by strengthening the actuarial assumptions 

adopted and/or moving to monetary levels of deficit recovery contributions), and/or an increased level of security 

or guarantee.   

Note (g) (New Academy conversions) 

At the time of writing, the Fund’s policies on academies’ funding issues are as follows:  

i. The new academy will be regarded as a separate employer in its own right and will not be pooled with 

other employers in the Fund.  The only exception is where the academy is part of a Multi Academy Trust 

(MAT) in which case the academy’s figures will be calculated as below but can be combined with those of 

the other academies in the MAT; 

ii. The new academy’s past service liabilities on conversion will be calculated based on its active Fund 

members on the day before conversion.  For the avoidance of doubt, these liabilities will include all past 

service of those members, but will exclude the liabilities relating to any ex-employees of the school who 

have deferred or pensioner status; 

iii. The new academy will be allocated an initial asset share from the ceding council’s assets in the Fund.  

This asset share will be calculated using the estimated funding position of the ceding council at the date 

of academy conversion.  The share will be based on the active members’ funding level, having first 

allocated assets in the council’s share to fully fund deferred and pensioner members.  The asset 

allocation to the academy will be limited if necessary so that its initial funding level is subject to a 

maximum of 100%.  The asset allocation will be based on market conditions and the academy’s active 

Fund membership on the day prior to conversion.  

iv. It is possible for an academy to leave one MAT and join another. If this occurs, all active, deferred and 

pensioner members of the academy transfer to the new MAT. The transferring academy will pay the 

certified contribution rate of the MAT they are joining.  If two MATs merge during the period between 

formal valuations, the new merged MAT will pay the higher of the two certified individual MAT rates until 

the rates are reassessed at the next formal valuation. 

The Fund’s policies on academies are subject to change in the light of any amendments to MHCLG and/or Dfe 

guidance (or removal of the formal guarantee currently provided to academies by the DfE). Any changes will be 

notified to academies and will be reflected in a subsequent version of this FSS. In particular, policy (iv) above 

will be reconsidered at each valuation. 

Note (h) (New Admission Bodies) 

With effect from 1 October 2012, the LGPS 2012 Miscellaneous Regulations introduced mandatory new 

requirements for all Admission Bodies brought into the Fund from that date.  Under these Regulations, all new 

81



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 016 

 

January 2020  

Admission Bodies will be required to provide some form of security, such as a guarantee from the letting 

employer, an indemnity or a bond.  The security is required to cover some or all of the following: 

 the strain cost of any redundancy early retirements resulting from the premature termination of the 

contract; 

 allowance for the risk of asset underperformance; 

 allowance for the risk of a greater than expected rise in liabilities; 

 allowance for the possible non-payment of employer and member contributions to the Fund; 

 the current deficit. 

For all new Transferee Admission Bodies, the security must be to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority 

as well as the letting employer and will be reassessed on an annual basis. See also Note (i) below. 

The Administering Authority will only consider requests from Community Admission Bodies (or other similar 

bodies, such as section 75 NHS partnerships) to join the Fund if they are sponsored by a Scheduled Body with 

tax raising powers, guaranteeing their liabilities and also providing a form of security as above.  

The above approaches reduce the risk to other employers in the Fund, of potentially having to pick up any 

shortfall in respect of Admission Bodies ceasing with an unpaid deficit. 

Note (i) (New Transferee Admission Bodies) 

A new TAB usually joins the Fund as a result of the letting/outsourcing of some services from an existing 

employer (normally a Scheduled Body such as a council or academy) to another organisation (a “contractor”).  

This involves the TUPE transfer of some staff from the letting employer to the contractor.  Consequently, for the 

duration of the contract, the contractor is a new participating employer in the Fund so that the transferring 

employees maintain their eligibility for LGPS membership.  At the end of the contract the employees revert to 

the letting employer or to a replacement contractor. 

Historically, the TAB would be set up in the Fund as a new employer with responsibility for all the accrued 

benefits of the transferring employees; in this case, the contractor would usually be assigned an initial asset 

value equal to the past service liability value of the employees’ Fund benefits.  The quid pro quo is that the 

contractor is then expected to ensure that its share of the Fund is also fully funded at the end of the contract: 

see Note (j). 

 The Fund’s policy is that new admission body outsourcings are set up under a “pass through” arrangement 

(although exceptions will be considered on a case-by-case basis at the Fund’s discretion). Pass through 

arrangements allow for the pension risks to be shared between the letting employer and new contractor. 

Typically, the majority of the pension risk is borne by the letting employer and thus the liability is retained on 

their balance sheet – as such the contractor would not be required to pay any deficit or receive any surplus at 

the end of the contract (subject to any agreed exceptions). However, there is some flexibility within a pass-

through arrangement. In particular there are three different routes that the letting employer may wish to adopt.  

Clearly as the risk ultimately resides with the employer letting the contract, it is for them to agree the appropriate 

route with the contractor: 

i) Pooling 

 Under this option the contractor is pooled with the letting employer.  In this case, the contractor pays the 

 same or similar rate as the letting employer. 

82



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 017 

 

January 2020  

ii) Letting employer retains pre-contract risks 

 Under this option the letting employer would retain responsibility for assets and liabilities in respect of 

 service accrued prior to the contract commencement date.  The contractor would be responsible for the 

 future liabilities that accrue in respect of transferred staff.  The contractor’s contribution rate could vary 

 from one valuation to the next. It would be liable for any deficit or be entitled to any surplus at the  end of 

 the contract term in respect of assets and liabilities attributable to service accrued during the contract 

 term and actions wholly attributable to the new employer for example excessive pay awards. 

iii) Fixed contribution rate agreed 

 Under this option the contractor pays a fixed contribution rate throughout its participation in the Fund 

 and doesn’t pay any cessation deficit or  receive an exit credit at the end of the contract term. In other 

 words, the pension risks “pass through” to the letting employer. 

The Administering Authority’s preferred approach is that a new TAB will participate in the Fund via a pooling 

arrangement with the letting employer.  The certified employer contribution rate of the contractor will normally be 

set equal to the rate of the letting authority. The rate paid by the contractor in the future will change in line with 

the contribution rate of the letting authority Upon cessation the contractor’s assets and liabilities will transfer 

back to the letting authority with no crystallisation of any deficit or surplus. 

Although each matter will be dealt with on a case by case basis the Administering Authority default position is 

pooling with any surplus or deficit passing back to the letting employer. The Admission Agreement as well as 

the transfer agreement reflects this. The Admission Agreement should ensure that some element of risk 

transfers to the contractor where it relates to their decisions and it is unfair to burden the letting employer with 

that risk.  For example, the contractor should typically be responsible for pension costs that arise from; 

 

 above average pay increases, including the effect in respect of service prior to contract commencement 

even if the letting employer takes on responsibility for the latter under (ii) above;   

 redundancy and early retirement decisions. 

Employers which outsource should be aware that all actuarial costs relating to the outsourcing (which will 

include any work that is required at the end of a contract) will be charged to either the outsourcing employer or 

the contractor and will NOT be met by the Fund. The exception will be the setting of employer contribution rates 

as part of a normal actuarial valuation, where the Fund pays actuarial fees as the work covers all employing 

bodies.  

Note (j) (Admission Bodies Ceasing) 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Admission Agreement, the Administering Authority may consider any of 

the following as triggers for the cessation of an admission agreement with any type of body: 

 Last active member ceasing participation in the Fund. 

 The insolvency, winding up or liquidation of the Admission Body; 

 Any breach by the Admission Body of any of its obligations under the Agreement that they have failed to 

remedy to the satisfaction of the Fund; 

 A failure by the Admission Body to pay any sums due to the Fund within the period required by the Fund; 

The failure by the Admission Body to renew or adjust the level of the bond or indemnity, or to confirm an 

appropriate alternative guarantor, as required by the Fund; 

83



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 018 

 

January 2020  

 The failure by the Admission Body to sign the admission agreement and/or bond documents and secure 

the required guarantee as required by the Fund. 

On cessation, the Administering Authority will instruct the Fund actuary to carry out a cessation valuation to 

determine whether there is any deficit or surplus. Where there is a deficit, payment of this amount in full would 

normally be sought from the Admission Body; where there is a surplus following the LGPS (Amendment) 

Regulations 2018 which came into effect on 14
th
 May 2018, this will normally result in an exit credit payment to 

the Admission Body within three months of the cessation date (or another date agreed between the 

Administering Authority and the Admission Body). However, due to the uncertainty of the LGPS benefit structure 

as detailed in the paragraph below and whilst the outcome of the Government’s consultation is outstanding, the 

Fund may decide not to make payment of any surplus exit credit until the outcome of the judgement is finalised. 

If a risk-sharing agreement has been put in place (please see note (i) above) no cessation debt or exit credit 

may be payable, depending on the terms of the agreement. 

As discussed in Section 2.7, the LGPS benefit structure from 1 April 2014 is currently under review following the 

Government’s loss of the right to appeal the McCloud and other similar court cases. The Fund has considered 

how it will reflect the current uncertainty regarding the outcome of this judgement in its approach to cessation 

valuations. For cessation valuations that produce a deficit value carried out before any changes to the LGPS 

benefit structure (from 1 April 2014) are confirmed, the Fund’s policy is that the actuary will apply an appropriate 

loading to the ceasing employer’s past service benefit accrual, as an estimate of the possible impact of resulting 

benefit changes. 

The Fund Actuary charges a fee for carrying out an employer’s cessation valuation  which the Fund will 

recharge to the employer.   

For Transferee Admission Bodies, any cessation valuation would normally be carried out on an on-going basis, 

as this will be the basis on which their opening position was calculated upon joining the Fund. Where a 

Transferee Admission Body has taken, in the view of the Administering Authority, action that has been 

deliberately designed to bring about a cessation event (stopping future accrual of LGPS benefits, for example), 

then the cessation valuation will be carried out on a gilts basis. 

Any cessation valuation, whether carried out on an on-going or a gilts basis, will calculate the surplus or deficit 

at the point of the cessation and full payment of any deficit amount will release the Transferee Admission Body 

from any further liability to the Fund. In the event that the sub-fund of the Transferee Admission Body 

subsequently falls into a deficit position, the outsourcing organisation will become responsible for the deficit 

even if they did not act as a guarantor for the admission agreement. At no stage will the Fund, and hence all 

ongoing employing bodies within it, bear any financial risk in respect of any Transferee Admission Body.   

For non-Transferee Admission Bodies whose participation is voluntarily ended either by themselves or the 

Fund, or where a cessation event has been triggered, the Administering Authority must look to protect the 

interests of other ongoing employers.  The actuary will therefore adopt an approach which, to the extent 

reasonably practicable, protects the other employers from the likelihood of any material loss emerging in future: 

a) Where there is a guarantor for future deficits and contributions, the details of the guarantee will be 

considered prior to the cessation valuation being carried out.  In some cases, the guarantor is simply 

guarantor of last resort and therefore the cessation valuation will be carried out consistently with the 

approach taken had there been no guarantor in place.  Alternatively, where the guarantor is not simply 

guarantor of last resort, the cessation may be calculated using the ongoing participation basis or 

contractor exit basis as described in Appendix E; 

b) Alternatively, depending on the nature of the guarantee, it may be possible to simply transfer the former 

Admission Body’s liabilities and assets to the guarantor, without needing to crystallise any deficit or 

84



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 019 

 

January 2020  

surplus. This approach may be adopted where the employer cannot pay the contributions due, and this is 

within the terms of the guarantee; 

c) Where a guarantor does not exist then, in order to protect other employers in the Fund, the cessation 

liabilities and final deficit (or surplus) will normally be calculated using a “gilts  exit basis”, which is more 

prudent than the ongoing participation basis.  This has no allowance for potential future investment 

outperformance above gilt yields and has added allowance for future improvements in life expectancy. 

This could give rise to significant cessation debts being required.   

Under (a) and (c), any shortfall would usually be levied on the departing Admission Body as a single lump sum 

payment.  If this is not possible then the Fund may spread the payment subject to there being some security in 

place for the employer such as a bond indemnity or guarantee. 

In the event that the Fund is not able to recover the required payment in full, then the unpaid amounts fall to be 

shared amongst all of the other employers in the Fund.  This may require an immediate revision to the Rates 

and Adjustments Certificate affecting other employers in the Fund, or instead be reflected in the contribution 

rates set at the next formal valuation following the cessation date. 

As an alternative, where the ceasing Admission Body (whether a Transferee Admission Body or a Community 

Admission Body) is continuing in business, the Fund at its absolute discretion reserves the right to enter into an 

agreement with the ceasing Admission Body.  Under this agreement the Fund would accept an appropriate 

alternative security to be held against any deficit on the gilts exit basis and would carry out the cessation 

valuation on the ongoing participation basis.  Secondary contributions would be derived from this cessation 

debt.  This approach would be monitored as part of each formal valuation and secondary contributions would be 

reassessed as required. The Admission Body may terminate the agreement only via payment of the outstanding 

debt assessed on the gilts exit basis. Furthermore, the Fund reserves the right to revert to the “gilts exit basis” 

and seek immediate payment of any funding shortfall identified.  The Administering Authority may need to seek 

legal advice in such cases, as the Admission Body would have no contributing members. 

3.4 Pooled contributions 

The Administering Authority will only allow employer pools to be set up if it legally required (perhaps as a result 

of LGPS Regulations or where a pass-through agreement is in place) or where a request is received from a 

group of employers that they wish to become a pool.  

Even if such a request is received, the Administering Authority will only agree to an employer pool if it is 

satisfied that the relevant employers have adequately considered the consequences of the pool and that there is 

a legal agreement in place which makes it impossible for the pool to be dissolved without the agreement of all 

parties, which will include an agreement on how the assets and liabilities will be split upon dissolution. Allowing 

pooling is entirely at the discretion of the Administering Authority.  

Maintained schools do not have a separate legal identity so are not pooled with the relevant local authority; they 

are part-and-parcel of it. However, there may be exceptions for specialist or independent schools.  

Those employers which have been pooled are identified in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate. 

3.5 Additional flexibility in return for added security 

The Administering Authority may permit greater flexibility to the employer’s contributions if the employer 

provides added security to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority.   

Such flexibility includes a reduced rate of contribution, an extended time horizon, or permission to join a pool 

with another body (e.g. the Local Authority).  

85



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 020 

 

January 2020  

Such security may include, but is not limited to, a suitable bond, a legally-binding guarantee from an appropriate 

third party, or security over an employer asset of sufficient value. 

The degree of flexibility given may take into account factors such as: 

 the extent of the employer’s deficit; 

 the amount and quality of the security offered; 

 the employer’s financial security and business plan;  

 whether the admission agreement is likely to be open or closed to new entrants. 

3.6 Non-ill health early retirement costs 

It is assumed that members’ benefits are payable from the earliest age that the employee could retire without 

incurring a reduction to their benefit (and without requiring their employer’s consent to retire).  (NB the relevant 

age may be different for different periods of service, following the benefit changes from April 2008 and April 

2014).  Employers are required to pay additional contributions (‘strain’ or ‘capitalised costs’) wherever an 

employee retires before attaining this age.  The actuary’s funding basis makes no allowance for premature 

retirement except on grounds of ill-health.      

For any early retirements where the Administering Authority has not specifically agreed to payment in 

instalments, all costs must be met by way of a single payment in the year of retirement. 

3.7 Ill health early retirement costs 

Each employer has an ‘ill health allowance’ built into the full contribution rate that is set at each actuarial 

valuation. If an employer decides to insure against the risk of ill-health retirements, there will be a reduction to 

the employer’s contribution rate that is the equivalent to the external insurance premium rate. 

Where an employer does not take out ill-health insurance, they will be offered the opportunity to make payment 

for any funding strain cost associated with ill-health retirements that occur annually inbetween formal valuations 

thereby more closely managing their future rates, but for higher risk employers or breaches of the “ill health 

allowance” the Fund may require payment. Employers may choose to pay in additional contributions in respect 

of these potential funding strains to minimise any detrimental effect on their future funding position (or 

otherwise, e.g. for budgeting or accounting purposes).  

3.8 External Ill health insurance 

If an employer provides satisfactory evidence to the Administering Authority of a current external insurance 

policy covering ill health early retirement strains, then: 

- the employer’s contribution to the Fund each year is reduced by the amount of that year’s insurance 

premium, so that employer’s total outlay (pension contribution plus insurance premium) is unchanged; 

and 

- there is no need for monitoring of ill-health allowances versus experience. 

When an active member retires on ill health early retirement the claim amount will be paid directly from the 

insurer to the insured employer. This amount should then be paid to the Fund to allow the employer’s asset 

share to be credited. 

The employer must keep the Administering Authority notified of any changes in the insurance policy’s coverage 

or premium terms, or if the policy is ceased. 

New Fund employers are urged to take out the external ill health insurance offered. 

86



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 021 

 

January 2020  

3.9 Employers with no remaining active members 

In general an employer ceasing in the Fund, due to the departure of the last active member, will pay a cessation 

debt or receive an exit credit on an appropriate basis (see 3.3, Note (j)) and consequently have no further 

obligation to the Fund. Thereafter it is expected that one of two situations will eventually arise: 

a) The employer’s asset share runs out before all its ex-employees’ benefits have been paid. If this 

employer was a former Transferee Admission Body, the outsourcing employer will become responsible 

for any deficit (even if they did not act as a guarantor within the admission agreement). If the employer 

was not a Transferee Admission Body the other Fund employers will be required to contribute to pay all 

remaining benefits: this will be done by the Fund actuary apportioning the remaining liabilities on a pro-

rata basis at successive formal valuations, but it should be noted that all surpluses in respect of non-

Transferee Admission Bodies will be netted off any deficits so that it is only the net deficit position that will 

be apportioned; 

b) The last ex-employee or dependant dies before the employer’s asset share has been fully utilised.  If this 

employer was a former Transferee Admission Body, the outsourcing employer will receive the benefit of the 

surplus (even if they did not act as a guarantor within the admission agreement). If the employer was not a 

Transferee Admission Body, any surplus will be netted off the deficit of similar types of employers as 

described in 3.9 a). In the event that the net position is a surplus the net surplus will be apportioned; 

In exceptional circumstances the Fund may permit an employer with no remaining active members and a 

cessation debt to continue contributing to the Fund, as opposed to paying a cessation deficit amount. This 

would require the provision of a suitable security or guarantee, as well as a written ongoing commitment to fund 

the remainder of the employer’s obligations over an appropriate period. The Fund would reserve the right to 

invoke the cessation requirements in the future, however.  The Administering Authority may need to seek legal 

advice in such cases, as the employer would have no contributing members. 

3.10 Policies on bulk transfers 

Each case will be treated on its own merits, but in general: 

 The Fund will not pay bulk transfers greater than the lesser of (a) the asset share of the transferring 

employer in the Fund, and (b) the value of the past service liabilities of the transferring members; 

 The Fund will not grant added benefits to members bringing in entitlements from another Fund unless the 

asset transfer is sufficient to meet the added liabilities; 

 The Fund may permit shortfalls to arise on bulk transfers if the Fund employer has suitable strength of 

covenant and commits to meeting that shortfall in an appropriate period.  This may require the employer’s 

Fund contributions to increase between valuations.   

  

87



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 022 

 

January 2020  

4 Funding strategy and links to investment strategy 

4.1 What is the Fund’s investment strategy? 

The Fund has built up assets over the years and continues to receive contribution and other income.  All of this 

must be invested in a suitable manner, which is the investment strategy. 

Investment strategy is set by the Local Pension Committee of Leicestershire County Council, after taking 

investment advice.  The precise mix, manager make up and target returns are set out in the Investment Strategy 

Statement (ISS), which is available to members and employers. 

The investment strategy is set for the long-term but is reviewed annually.  The Fund’s liability profile is one of 

the considerations taken into account when setting investment strategy.   

The same investment strategy is currently followed for all employers. 

4.2 What is the link between funding strategy and investment strategy? 

The Fund must be able to meet all benefit payments as and when they fall due.  These payments will be met by 

contributions (resulting from the funding strategy) or asset returns and income (resulting from the investment 

strategy). To the extent that investment returns, or income fall short, then higher cash contributions are required 

from employers, and vice versa. 

Therefore, the funding and investment strategies are inextricably linked.   

4.3 How does the funding strategy reflect the Fund’s investment strategy? 

In the opinion of the Fund actuary, the current funding policy is consistent with the current investment strategy of 

the Fund.  The actuary’s assumptions for future investment returns (described further in Appendix E) are based 

on the current benchmark investment strategy of the Fund. The future investment return assumptions underlying 

each of the fund’s three funding bases include a margin for prudence, and are therefore also considered to be 

consistent with the requirement to take a “prudent longer-term view” of the funding of liabilities as required by 

the UK Government (see Appendix A1). 

In the short term – such as the three yearly assessments at formal valuations – there is the scope for 

considerable volatility in asset values.  However, the actuary takes a long-term view when assessing employer 

contribution rates and the contribution rate setting methodology takes into account this potential variability. The 

Fund does not hold a contingency reserve to protect it against the volatility of equity investments.   

4.4 Does the Fund monitor its overall funding position? 

The Administering Authority monitors the relative funding position, i.e. changes in the relationship between 

asset values and the liabilities value, quarterly bi-annually.  It reports this to the regular Local Pension 

Committee meetings. 

  

88



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 023 

 

January 2020  

5 Statutory reporting and comparison to other LGPS Funds 

5.1 Purpose 

Under Section 13(4)(c) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (“Section 13”), the Government Actuary’s 

Department must, following each triennial actuarial valuation, report to the MHCLG on each of the LGPS Funds 

in England & Wales. This report will cover whether, for each Fund, the rate of employer contributions is set at an 

appropriate level to ensure both the solvency and the long-term cost efficiency of the Fund.   

This additional MHCLG oversight may have an impact on the strategy for setting contribution rates at future 

valuations. 

5.2 Solvency 

For the purposes of Section 13, the rate of employer contributions shall be deemed to have been set at an 

appropriate level to ensure solvency if: 

(a) the rate of employer contributions is set to target a funding level for the Fund of 100%, over an 

appropriate time period and using appropriate actuarial assumptions (where appropriateness is 

considered in both absolute and relative terms in comparison with other funds); and either  

(b) employers collectively have the financial capacity to increase employer contributions, and/or the Fund is 

able to realise contingent assets should future circumstances require, in order to continue to target a 

funding level of 100%; or 

(c) there is an appropriate plan in place should there be, or if there is expected in future to be, a material 

reduction in the capacity of fund employers to increase contributions as might be needed.   

5.3 Long Term Cost Efficiency 

The rate of employer contributions shall be deemed to have been set at an appropriate level to ensure long term 

cost efficiency if: 

i. the rate of employer contributions is sufficient to make provision for the cost of current benefit accrual, 

ii. with an appropriate adjustment to that rate for any surplus or deficit in the Fund. 

In assessing whether the above condition is met, MHCLG may have regard to various absolute and relative 

considerations.  A relative consideration is primarily concerned with comparing LGPS pension funds with other 

LGPS pension funds.  An absolute consideration is primarily concerned with comparing Funds with a given 

objective benchmark. 

Relative considerations include: 

1. the implied deficit recovery period; and 

2. the investment return required to achieve full funding after 20 years.  
 

Absolute considerations include: 

1. the extent to which the contributions payable is sufficient to cover the cost of current benefit accrual and 

the interest cost on any deficit; 

2. how the required investment return under “relative considerations” above compares to the estimated 

future return being targeted by the Fund’s current investment strategy;  

89



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 024 

 

January 2020  

3. the extent to which contributions actually paid have been in line with the expected contributions based on 

the extant Rates and Adjustment certificate; and  

4. the extent to which any new deficit recovery plan can be directly reconciled with, and can be 
demonstrated to be a continuation of, any previous deficit recovery plan, after allowing for actual Fund 
experience. 

 

MHCLG may assess and compare these metrics on a suitable standardised market-related basis, for example 
where the local funds’ actuarial bases do not make comparisons straightforward.  

90



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 025 

 

January 2020  

Appendix A – Regulatory framework 

A1 Why does the Fund need an FSS? 

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has stated that the purpose of the FSS 

is:  

 “to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how employers’ pension 

liabilities are best met going forward; 

 to support the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant employer contribution rates as 

possible; and    

 to take a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities.” 

These objectives are desirable individually but may be mutually conflicting. 

The requirement to maintain and publish an FSS is contained in LGPS Regulations which are updated from time 

to time.  In publishing the FSS the Administering Authority has to have regard to any guidance published by 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) (most recently in 2016) and to its Investment 

Strategy Statement (ISS). 

This is the framework within which the Fund’s actuary carries out triennial valuations to set employers’ 

contributions and provides recommendations to the Administering Authority when other funding decisions are 

required, such as when employers join or leave the Fund.  The FSS applies to all employers participating in the 

Fund. 

A2 Does the Administering Authority consult anyone on the FSS? 

Yes.  This is required by LGPS Regulations.  It is covered in more detail by the most recent CIPFA guidance, 

which states that the FSS must first be subject to “consultation with such persons as the authority considers 

appropriate” and should include “a meaningful dialogue at officer and elected member level with council tax 

raising authorities and with corresponding representatives of other participating employers”. 

In practice, for the Fund, the consultation process for this FSS is as follows: 

a) A draft version of the FSS was presented to the Local Pension Committee on the 8 November 2019 for 

initial comment; 

b) The draft version of the FSS was issued to all participating employers in November 2019 for comment; 

c) Comments from employers were requested before 1 January 2020, so that it can be brought back to 

Local Pension Committee meeting in January 2020 for final approval.  

d) Following the approval of the FSS by Local Pension Committee, it was published on the 28 February 

2020 and became effective immediately upon publication. 

A3 How is the FSS published? 

The FSS is made available through the following routes: 

 Published on the website, at http://www.leics.gov.uk/pensions; 

 A copy sent by email to each participating employer in the Fund; 

 Copies made available on request. 

91



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 026 

 

January 2020  

A4 How often is the FSS reviewed? 

The FSS is reviewed in detail at least every three years as part of the triennial valuation which may move to 

every four years in future – see Section 2.8). This version is expected to remain unaltered until it is consulted 

upon as part of the formal process for the next valuation in 2022.  

It is possible that (usually slight) amendments may be needed within the three-year period.  These would be 

needed to reflect any regulatory changes, or alterations to the way the Fund operates (e.g. to accommodate a 

new class of employer). Any such amendments would be consulted upon as appropriate:  

 trivial amendments would be simply notified at the next round of employer communications, 

 amendments affecting only one class of employer would be consulted with those employers,  

 other more significant amendments would be subject to full consultation. 

In any event, meaningful changes to the FSS would need agreement by the Local Pension Committee and 

would be included in the relevant Committee Meeting minutes.  

A5 How does the FSS fit into other Fund documents? 

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding liabilities.  It is not an exhaustive statement of policy 

on all issues, for example there are a number of separate statements published by the Fund including the 

Investment Strategy Statement, Governance Strategy and Communications Strategy.  In addition, the Fund 

publishes an Annual Report and Accounts with up to date information on the Fund.   

These documents can be found on the web at http://www.leics.gov.uk/pensions. 

  

92



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 027 

 

January 2020  

Appendix B – Responsibilities of key parties 

The efficient and effective operation of the Fund needs various parties to each play their part. 

B1 The Administering Authority should:- 

 operate the Fund as per the LGPS Regulations; 

 effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role as Administering Authority 

and a Fund employer; 

 collect employer and employee contributions, and investment income and other amounts due to the Fund; 

 ensure that cash is available to meet benefit payments as and when they fall due; 

 pay from the Fund the relevant benefits and entitlements that are due; 

 invest surplus monies (i.e. contributions and other income which are not immediately needed to pay 

benefits) in accordance with the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) and LGPS Regulations; 

 communicate appropriately with employers so that they fully understand their obligations to the Fund; 

 take appropriate measures to safeguard the Fund against the consequences of employer default; 

 manage the valuation process in consultation with the Fund’s actuary; 

 provide data and information as required by the Government Actuary’s Department to carry out their 

statutory obligations (see Section 5); 

 prepare and maintain an FSS and an ISS, after consultation;  

 notify the Fund’s actuary of material changes which could affect funding (this is covered in a separate 

agreement with the actuary); and  

 monitor all aspects of the fund’s performance and funding and amend the FSS/ISS as necessary and 

appropriate. 

B2 The Individual Employer should: - 

 deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly; 

 pay all contributions, including their own as determined by the actuary, promptly by the due date; 

 have a policy and exercise discretions within the regulatory framework; 

 make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in respect of, for example, 

augmentation of scheme benefits, early retirement strain; and  

 notify the Administering Authority promptly of all changes to its circumstances, prospects or membership, 

which could affect future funding. 

B3 The Fund Actuary should: - 

 prepare valuations, including the setting of employers’ contribution rates.  This will involve agreeing 

assumptions with the Administering Authority, having regard to the FSS and LGPS Regulations, and 

targeting each employer’s solvency appropriately;  

 provide data and information as required by the Government Actuary’s Department to carry out their 

statutory obligations (see Section 5); 

 provide advice relating to new employers in the Fund, including the level and type of bonds or other forms 

of security (and the monitoring of these); 

93



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 028 

 

January 2020  

 prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and individual benefit-related matters; 

 assist the Administering Authority in considering possible changes to employer contributions between 

formal valuations, where circumstances suggest this may be necessary; 

 advise on the termination of employers’ participation in the Fund; and 

 fully reflect actuarial professional guidance and requirements in the advice given to the Administering 

Authority. 

B4 Other parties: - 

 investment advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s ISS remains appropriate, and 

consistent with this FSS; 

 investment managers, custodians and bankers should all play their part in the effective investment (and 

dis-investment) of Fund assets, in line with the ISS; 

 auditors should comply with their auditing standards, ensure Fund compliance with all requirements, 

monitor and advise on fraud detection, and sign off annual reports and financial statements as required; 

 governance advisers may be appointed to advise the Administering Authority on efficient processes and 

working methods in managing the Fund; 

 legal advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s operation and management remains 

fully compliant with all regulations and broader local government requirements, including the 

Administering Authority’s own procedures. 

 MHCLG (assisted by the Government Actuary’s Department) and the Scheme Advisory Board, should 

work with LGPS Funds to meet Section 13 requirements. 

  

94



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 029 

 

January 2020  

Appendix C – Key risks and controls 

C1 Types of risk 

The Administering Authority has an active risk management programme in place.  The measures that it has in 

place to control key risks are summarised below under the following headings:  

 financial;  

 demographic; 

 regulatory; and 

 governance. 

C2 Financial risks 

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the 

anticipated returns underpinning valuation of 

liabilities and contribution rates over the long-

term. 

Only anticipate long-term return on a relatively prudent 

basis to reduce risk of under-performing. 

Assets invested on the basis of specialist advice, in a 

suitably diversified manner across asset classes, 

geographies, managers, etc. 

Analyse progress at three yearly valuations for all 

employers.   

Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities between 

valuations at whole Fund level.    

Inappropriate long-term investment strategy.  Overall investment strategy options considered as an 

integral part of the funding strategy.  Used asset 

liability modelling to measure 4 key outcomes.   

Chosen option considered to provide the best balance. 

Active investment manager under-performance 

relative to benchmark. 

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses market 

performance and active managers relative to their 

index benchmark.   

Pay and price inflation significantly more than 

anticipated. 

The focus of the actuarial valuation process is on real 

returns on assets, net of price and pay increases.  

Inter-valuation monitoring, as above, gives early 

warning.  

Some investment in bonds also helps to mitigate this 

risk.   

Employers pay for their own salary awards and should 

be mindful of the geared effect on pension liabilities of 

any bias in pensionable pay rises towards longer-

serving employees.   

95



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 030 

 

January 2020  

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

Effect of possible increase in employer’s 

contribution rate on service delivery and 

admission/scheduled bodies 

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has been agreed 

as part of the funding strategy.  Other measures are 

also in place to limit sudden increases in contributions. 

Orphaned employers give rise to added costs 

for the Fund 

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or 

security/guarantor) to minimise the risk of this 

happening in the future. 

If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the added cost 

spread pro-rata among all employers – (see 3.9). 

 

C3 Demographic risks 

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms  

Pensioners living longer, thus increasing cost to 

Fund. 

 

Set mortality assumptions with some allowance for 

future increases in life expectancy. 

The Fund Actuary has direct access to the experience 

of over 50 LGPS funds which allows early identification 

of changes in life expectancy that might in turn affect 

the assumptions underpinning the valuation. 

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of actively 

contributing employees declines relative to 

retired employees. 

Continue to monitor at each valuation, consider 

seeking monetary amounts rather than % of pay and 

consider alternative investment strategies. 

Deteriorating patterns of early retirements Employers are charged the extra cost of non-ill-health 

retirements following each individual decision. 

Employer ill health retirement experience is monitored, 

and insurance is an option. 

Reductions in payroll causing insufficient deficit 

recovery payments 

In many cases this may not be sufficient cause for 

concern and will in effect be caught at the next formal 

valuation.  However, there are protections where there 

is concern, as follows: 

Employers in the stabilisation mechanism may be 

brought out of that mechanism to permit appropriate 

contribution increases (see Note (b) to 3.3). 

For other employers, review of contributions is 

permitted in general between valuations (see Note (f) 

to 3.3) and may require a move in deficit contributions 

from a percentage of payroll to fixed monetary 

amounts. 

 

96



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 031 

 

January 2020  

C4 Regulatory risks 

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms  

Changes to national pension requirements 

and/or HMRC rules e.g. changes arising from 

public sector pensions reform. 

 

The Administering Authority considers all consultation 

papers issued by the Government and comments 

where appropriate.  

 

The Administering Authority is monitoring the progress 

on the McCloud court case and will consider an interim 

valuation or other appropriate action once more 

information is known.   

The government’s long-term preferred solution to GMP 

indexation and equalisation - conversion of GMPs to 

scheme benefits - was built into the 2019 valuation. 

Time, cost and/or reputational risks associated 

with any MHCLG intervention triggered by the 

Section 13 analysis (see Section 5). 

Take advice from Fund Actuary on position of Fund as 

at prior valuation, and consideration of proposed 

valuation approach relative to anticipated Section 13 

analysis. 

Changes by Government to particular employer 

participation in LGPS Funds, leading to impacts 

on funding and/or investment strategies. 

The Administering Authority considers all consultation 

papers issued by the Government and comments 

where appropriate.  

Take advice from Fund Actuary on impact of changes 

on the Fund and amend strategy as appropriate. 

 

C5 Governance risks 

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms  

Administering Authority unaware of structural 

changes in an employer’s membership (e.g. 

large fall in employee members, large number of 

retirements) or not advised of an employer 

closing to new entrants. 

The Administering Authority has a close relationship 

with employing bodies and communicates required 

standards e.g. for submission of data.  

The Actuary may revise the rates and Adjustments 

certificate to increase an employer’s contributions 

between triennial valuations 

Deficit contributions may be expressed as monetary 

amounts. 

Actuarial or investment advice is not sought, or 

is not heeded, or proves to be insufficient in 

some way 

The Administering Authority maintains close contact 

with its specialist advisers. 

Advice is delivered via formal meetings involving 

Elected Members and recorded appropriately. 

Actuarial advice is subject to professional requirements 

97



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 032 

 

January 2020  

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms  

such as peer review. 

Administering Authority failing to commission 

the Fund Actuary to carry out a termination 

valuation for a departing Admission Body. 

The Administering Authority requires employers with 

Best Value contractors to inform it of forthcoming 

changes. 

Community Admission Bodies’ memberships are 

monitored and, if active membership decreases, steps 

will be taken. 

An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient 

funding or adequacy of a bond. 

 

The Administering Authority believes that it would 

normally be too late to address the position if it was left 

to the time of departure. 

The risk is mitigated by: 

Seeking a funding guarantee from another scheme 

employer, or external body, where-ever possible (see 

Notes (h) and (j) to 3.3). 

Alerting the prospective employer to its obligations and 

encouraging it to take independent actuarial advice.  

Vetting prospective employers before admission. 

Where permitted under the regulations requiring a bond 

to protect the Fund from various risks. 

Requiring new Community Admission Bodies to have a 

guarantor that is a tax-raising body. 

Reviewing bond or guarantor arrangements at regular 

intervals (see Note (f) to 3.3). 

Reviewing contributions well ahead of cessation if 

thought appropriate (see Note (a) to 3.3). 

An employer ceasing to exist resulting in an exit 

credit being payable 

 

The Administering Authority regularly monitors 

admission bodies coming up to cessation 

The Administering Authority invests in liquid assets to 

ensure that exit credits can be paid when required. 

 

98



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 033 

 

January 2020  

Appendix D – The calculation of Employer contributions 

In Section 2 there was a broad description of the way in which contribution rates are calculated.  This Appendix 

considers these calculations in much more detail. 

As discussed in Section 2, the actuary calculates the required contribution rate for each employer using a three-

step process: 

 Calculate the funding target for that employer, i.e. the estimated amount of assets it should hold in order 

to be able to pay all its members’ benefits. See Appendix E for more details of what assumptions we 

make to determine that funding target; 

 Determine the time horizon over which the employer should aim to achieve that funding target. See the 

table in 3.3 and Note (c) for more details; 

 Calculate the employer contribution rate such that it has at least a given likelihood of achieving that 

funding target over that time horizon, allowing for various possible economic outcomes over that time 

horizon. See the table in 3.3 Note (e) for more details. 

The calculations involve actuarial assumptions about future experience, and these are described in detail in 

Appendix E. 

D1 What is the difference between calculations across the whole Fund and calculations for an 

individual employer? 

Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements: 

a) the estimated cost of future benefits being accrued, referred to as the “Primary contribution rate”; (see D2 

below); plus 

b) an adjustment for the difference between the Primary rate above, and the actual contribution the 

employer needs to pay, referred to as the Secondary Contribution rate (see D3 below).  

The contribution rate for each employer is measured as above, appropriate for each employer’s assets, 

liabilities and membership. The whole Fund position, including that used in reporting to MHCLG (see section 5), 

is calculated in effect as the sum of all the individual employer rates. MHCLG currently only regulates at whole 

Fund level, without monitoring individual employer positions. 

D2 How is the Primary Rate calculated?  

The Primary element of the employer contribution rate is calculated with the aim that these contributions will 

meet benefit payments in respect of members’ future service in the Fund.  This is based upon the cost (in 

excess of members’ contributions) of the benefits which employee members earn from their service each year.   

The Primary rate is calculated separately for all the employers, although employers within a pool will pay the 

contribution rate applicable to the pool.   

The Primary rate is calculated such that it is projected to: 

1. meet the required funding target for all future years’ accrual of benefits*, excluding any accrued assets, 

and 

2.  at the end of the determined time horizon (see note 3.3 Note (c) for further details), 

99



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 034 

 

January 2020  

3. with a sufficiently high likelihood, as set by the Fund’s strategy for the category of employer (see 3.3 Note 

(e) for further details). 

* The projection is for the current active membership where the employer no longer admits new entrants, or 

additionally allows for new entrants where this is appropriate. 

The projections are carried out using an economic modeller (the “Economic Scenario Service”) developed by 

the Fund’s actuary Hymans Robertson: this allows for a wide range of outcomes about key factors such as 

asset returns (based on the Fund’s investment strategy), inflation, and bond yields. Further information about 

this model is included in Appendix E. The measured contributions are calculated such that the proportion of 

outcomes meeting the employer’s funding target (at the end of the time horizon) is equal to the required 

likelihood.  

The approach includes expenses of administration to the extent that they are borne by the Fund and includes 

allowances for benefits payable on death in service and on ill health retirement. 

D3 How is the Secondary contribution rate calculated? 

The Fund aims for the employer to have assets sufficient to meet 100% of its accrued liabilities at the end of its 

funding time horizon based on the employer’s funding target assumptions (see Appendix E). 

The Secondary rate is calculated as the balance over and above the Primary rate, such that the total 

contribution rate is projected to: 

1. meet the required funding target relating to combined past and future service benefit accrual, including 

accrued asset share (see D5 below) 

2.  at the end of the determined time horizon (see 3.3 Note (c) for further details) 

3. with a sufficiently high likelihood, as set by the Fund’s strategy for the category of employer (see 3.3 Note 

(e) for further details). 

The projections are carried out using an economic modeller (the “Economic Scenario Service”) developed by 

the Fund Actuary Hymans Robertson: this allows for a wide range of outcomes about key factors such as asset 

returns (based on the Fund’s investment strategy), inflation, and bond yields. Further information about this 

model is included in Appendix E. The measured contributions are calculated such that the proportion of 

outcomes meeting the employer’s funding target (at the end of the time horizon) is equal to the required 

likelihood. 

D4 What affects a given employer’s valuation results? 

The results of these calculations for a given individual employer will be affected by: 

 past contributions relative to the cost of accrual of benefits;   

 different liability profiles of employers (e.g. mix of members by age, gender, service vs. salary); 

 the effect of any differences in the funding target, i.e. the valuation basis used to value the employer’s 

liabilities at the end of the time horizon;  

 any different time horizons; 

 the difference between actual and assumed rises in pensionable pay; 

 the difference between actual and assumed increases to pensions in payment and deferred pensions; 

 the difference between actual and assumed retirements on grounds of ill-health from active status;  

100



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 035 

 

January 2020  

 the difference between actual and assumed amounts of pension ceasing on death; 

 the additional costs of any non-ill-health retirements relative to any extra payments made; 

 differences in the required likelihood of achieving the funding target. 

D5 How is each employer’s asset share calculated? 

The Fund Actuary uses the Hymans Robertson’s proprietary (“HEAT”) system to track employer assets monthly. 

Starting with each employer’s assets from the previous month end, cashflows paid in/out and investment returns 

achieved on the Fund’s assets over the course of the month are added to calculate an asset value at the month 

end.   

The Fund is satisfied that this approach provides the most accurate asset allocations between employers that is 

reasonably possible at present. 

D6  How does the Fund adjust employer asset shares when an individual member moves from one 

 employer in the Fund to another? 

Under the cashflow approach for tracking employer asset shares, the Fund has allowed for any individual 

members transferring from one employer in the Fund to another, via the transfer of a sum from the ceding 

employer’s asset share to the receiving employer’s asset share. This sum is equal to the member’s Cash 

Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) as advised by the Fund’s administrators. 

 

101



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 036 

 

January 2020  

Appendix E – Actuarial assumptions 

E1 What are the actuarial assumptions used to calculate employer contribution rates? 

These are expectations of future experience used to place a value on future benefit payments (“the liabilities”). 

and future asset values. Assumptions are made about the amount of benefit payable to members (the financial 

assumptions) and the likelihood or timing of payments (the demographic assumptions).  For example, financial 

assumptions include investment returns, salary growth and pension increases; demographic assumptions 

include life expectancy, probabilities of ill-health early retirement, and proportions of member deaths giving rise 

to dependants’ benefits.   

Changes in assumptions will affect the funding target and required contribution rate. However, different 

assumptions will not affect the actual benefits payable by the Fund in future. 

The actuary’s approach to calculating employer contribution rates involves the projection of each employer’s 

future benefit payments, contributions and investment returns into the future under 5,000 possible economic 

scenarios. Future inflation (and therefore benefit payments) and investment returns for each asset class (and 

therefore employer asset values) are variables in the projections. By projecting the evolution of an employer’s 

assets and benefit payments 5,000 times, a contribution rate can be set that results in a sufficient number of 

these future projections (determined by the employer’s required likelihood) being successful at the end of the 

employer’s time horizon. In this context, a successful contribution rate is one which results in the employer 

having met its funding target at the end of the time horizon.  

Setting employer contribution rates therefore requires two types of assumptions to be made about the future: 

1. Assumptions to project the employer’s assets, benefits and cashflows to the end of the funding time 

horizon. For this purpose, the actuary uses Hymans Robertson’s proprietary stochastic economic model 

- the Economic Scenario Service (“ESS”). 

2. Assumptions to assess whether, for a given projection, the funding target is satisfied at the end of the 

time horizon. For this purpose, the Fund has three different funding bases.  

 

Details on the ESS assumptions and funding target assumptions are included below (in E2 and E3 

respectively).   

102



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 037 

 

January 2020  

E2  What assumptions are used in the ESS? 

The actuary uses Hymans Robertson’s ESS model to project a range of possible outcomes for the future 

behaviour of asset returns and economic variables. With this type of modelling, there is no single figure for an 

assumption about future inflation or investment returns.  Instead, there is a range of what future inflation or 

returns will be which leads to likelihoods of the assumption being higher or lower than a certain value. 

The ESS is a complex model to reflect the interactions and correlations between different asset classes and 

wider economic variables.  The table below shows the calibration of the model as at 31 March 2019.  All returns 

are shown net of fees and are the annualised total returns over 5, 10 and 20 years, except for the yields which 

refer to the simulated yields at that time horizon. 

 

 

E3 What assumptions are used in the funding target? 

At the end of an employer’s funding time horizon, an assessment will be made – for each of the 5,000 

projections – of how the assets held compare to the value of assets required to meet the future benefit 

payments (the funding target). Valuing the cost of future benefits requires the actuary to make assumptions 

about the following financial factors: 

 Benefit increases and CARE revaluation 

 Salary growth 

 Investment returns (the “discount rate”) 

Each of the 5,000 projections represents a different prevailing economic environment at the end of the funding 

time horizon and so a single, fixed value for each assumption is unlikely to be appropriate for every projection. 

For example, a high assumed future investment return (discount rate) would not be prudent in projections with a 

weak outlook for economic growth.  Therefore, instead of using a fixed value for each assumption, the actuary 

references economic indicators to ensure the assumptions remain appropriate for the prevailing economic 

environment in each projection. The economic indicators the actuary uses are: future inflation expectations and 

the prevailing risk-free rate of return (the yield on long term UK government bonds is used as a proxy for this 

rate). 

 

 

 

Cash

Index 

Linked 

Gilts 

(medium)

Fixed 

Interest 

Gilts 

(medium) UK Equity

Overseas 

Equity Property

A rated 

corporate 

bonds 

(medium)

RPI 

inflation 

expectation

17 year 

real govt 

bond yield

17 year 

govt 

bond 

yield

16th %'ile -0.4% -2.3% -2.9% -4.1% -4.1% -3.5% -2.7% 1.9% -2.5% 0.8%

50th %'ile 0.7% 0.5% 0.3% 4.0% 4.1% 2.4% 0.8% 3.3% -1.7% 2.1%
84th %'ile 2.0% 3.3% 3.4% 12.7% 12.5% 8.8% 4.0% 4.9% -0.8% 3.6%

16th %'ile -0.2% -1.8% -1.3% -1.5% -1.4% -1.5% -0.9% 1.9% -2.0% 1.2%

50th %'ile 1.3% 0.0% 0.2% 4.6% 4.7% 3.1% 0.8% 3.3% -0.8% 2.8%
84th %'ile 2.9% 1.9% 1.7% 10.9% 10.8% 7.8% 2.5% 4.9% 0.4% 4.8%

16th %'ile 0.7% -1.1% 0.1% 1.2% 1.3% 0.6% 0.7% 2.0% -0.7% 2.2%

50th %'ile 2.4% 0.3% 1.0% 5.7% 5.8% 4.3% 1.9% 3.2% 0.8% 4.0%
84th %'ile 4.5% 2.0% 2.0% 10.3% 10.4% 8.1% 3.0% 4.7% 2.2% 6.3%

Volatility (Disp) 

(1 yr) 1% 7% 10% 17% 17% 14% 11% 1%

2
0

y
e
a
rs

Annualised total returns

5

y
e
a
rs

1
0

y
e
a
rs

103



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 038 

 

January 2020  

The Fund has three funding bases which will apply to different employers depending on their type. Each funding 

basis has a different assumption for future investment returns when determining the employer’s funding target.  

Funding basis Ongoing participation 

basis 

Contractor exit basis Low risk exit basis 

Employer type All employers except 

Transferee Admission 

Bodies and closed 

Community Admission 

Bodies 

Transferee Admission 

Bodies 

Community Admission 

Bodies that are closed to 

new entrants* 

Investment return 

assumption underlying 

the employer’s funding 

target (at the end of its 

time horizon) 

 

Long term government 

bond yields plus an asset 

outperformance 

assumption (AOA) of 

1.8% p.a.  

Long term government 

bond yields plus an AOA 

equal to the AOA used to 

allocate assets to the 

employer on joining the 

Fund 

Long term government 

bond yields with no 

allowance for 

outperformance on the 

Fund’s assets 

*the Administering Authroity may fund these bodies on the ongoing participation basis subject to agreement by 

the Fund where suitable risk control measures are established (e.g. a guarantor or bond indemnity is in place). 

E4 What other assumptions apply? 

The following assumptions are those of the most significance used in both the projection of the assets, benefits 

and cashflows and in the funding target. 

a) Salary growth 

After discussion with Fund officers, the salary increase assumption at the 2019 valuation has been set to be a 

blended rate combined of: 

1. 2.5% p.a. until 31 March 2020, followed by 

2. CPI plus 0.5% p.a. thereafter.   

This gives a single “blended” assumption of CPI plus 0.5%. This is a change from the previous valuation, which 

assumed RPI p.a. The change has led to a reduction in the funding target (all other things being equal). 

b) Pension increases 

Since 2011 the consumer prices index (CPI), rather than RPI, has been the basis for increases to public sector 

pensions in deferment and in payment.  Note that the basis of such increases is set by the Government and is 

not under the control of the Fund or any employers. 

  At this valuation, we have continued to assume that CPI is 1.0% p.a. lower than RPI.  (Note that the reduction 

is applied in a geometric, not arithmetic, basis). 

c) Life expectancy 

The demographic assumptions are intended to be best estimates of future experience in the Fund based on 

past experience of LGPS funds which participate in Club Vita, the longevity analytics service used by the Fund, 

and endorsed by the actuary.   

104



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 039 

 

January 2020  

The longevity assumptions that have been adopted at this valuation are a bespoke set of “VitaCurves”, 

produced by the Club Vita’s detailed analysis, which are specifically tailored to fit the membership profile of the 

Fund.  These curves are based on the data provided by the Fund for the purposes of this valuation.  

Allowance has been made in the ongoing valuation basis for future improvements in line with 2018 version of 

the Continuous Mortality Investigation model published by the Actuarial Profession and a 1.25% per annum 

minimum underpin to future reductions in mortality rates.  This updated allowance for future improvements will 

generally result in lower life expectancy assumptions and hence a reduced funding target (all other things being 

equal). 

The approach taken is considered reasonable in light of the long-term nature of the Fund and the assumed level 

of security underpinning members’ benefits 

d) General 

The same financial assumptions are adopted for most  employers (on the ongoing participation basis identified 

above), in deriving the funding target  and the Primary and Secondary rates;  as described in (3.3), these 

calculated figures are translated in different ways into employer contributions, depending on the employer’s 

circumstances. 

The demographic assumptions, in particular the life expectancy assumption, in effect vary by type of member 

and so reflect the different membership profiles of employers. 

  

105



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 040 

 

January 2020  

Appendix F – Glossary 

Funding basis The combined set of assumptions made by the actuary, regarding the future, to 

calculate the value of the funding target at the end of the employer’s time horizon.  

The main assumptions will relate to the level of future investment returns, salary 

growth, pension increases and longevity.  More prudent assumptions will give a 

higher funding target, whereas more optimistic assumptions will give a lower 

funding target.  

Administering 

Authority 

The council with statutory responsibility for running the Fund, in effect the Fund’s 

“trustees”. 

Admission Bodies Employers which voluntarily participate in the Fund, so that their employees and ex-

employees are members.  There will be an Admission Agreement setting out the 

employer’s obligations.  For more details (see 2.3). 

Covenant The assessed financial strength of the employer. A strong covenant indicates a 

greater ability (and willingness) to pay for pension obligations in the long run. A 

weaker covenant means that it appears that the employer may have difficulties 

meeting its pension obligations in full over the longer term. 

Designating 

Employer 

Employers such as town and parish councils that are able to participate in the LGPS 

via resolution.  These employers can designate which of their employees are 

eligible to join the Fund. 

Employer An individual participating body in the Fund, which employs (or used to employ) 

members of the Fund.  Normally the assets and funding target values for each 

employer are individually tracked, together with its Primary contribution rate at 

each valuation.  

Gilt A UK Government bond, i.e. a promise by the Government to pay interest and 

capital as per the terms of that particular gilt, in return for an initial payment of 

capital by the purchaser. Gilts can be “fixed interest”, where the interest payments 

are level throughout the gilt’s term, or “index-linked” where the interest payments 

vary each year in line with a specified index (usually RPI). Gilts can be bought as 

assets by the Fund but are also used in funding as an objective measure of a risk-

free rate of return. 

Guarantee / 

guarantor 

A formal promise by a third party (the guarantor) that it will meet any pension 

obligations not met by a specified employer. The presence of a guarantor will mean, 

for instance, that the Fund can consider the employer’s covenant to be as strong 

as its guarantor’s. 

Letting employer An employer which outsources or transfers a part of its services and workforce to 

another employer (usually a contractor). The contractor will pay towards the LGPS 

benefits accrued by the transferring members, but ultimately the obligation to pay 

for these benefits will revert to the letting employer. A letting employer will usually 

be a local authority but can sometimes be another type of employer such as an 

Academy. 

106



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 041 

 

January 2020  

  

LGPS The Local Government Pension Scheme, a public sector pension arrangement put 

in place via Government Regulations, for workers in local government.  These 

Regulations also dictate eligibility (particularly for Scheduled Bodies), members’ 

contribution rates, benefit calculations and certain governance requirements.  The 

LGPS is divided into 100 Funds which map the UK.  Each LGPS Fund is 

autonomous to the extent not dictated by Regulations, e.g. regarding investment 

strategy, employer contributions and choice of advisers.  

Maturity A general term to describe a Fund (or an employer’s position within a Fund) where 

the members are closer to retirement (or more of them already retired) and the 

investment time horizon is shorter.  This has implications for investment strategy 

and, consequently, funding strategy.  

Members The individuals who have built up (and may still be building up) entitlement in the 

Fund.  They are divided into actives (current employee members), deferreds (ex-

employees who have not yet retired) and pensioners (ex-employees who have now 

retired, and dependants of deceased ex-employees).  

Primary 

contribution rate 

The employer contribution rate required to pay for ongoing accrual of active 

members’ benefits (including an allowance for administrative expenses). See 

Appendix D for further details. 

Profile The profile of an employer’s membership or liability reflects various measurements 

of that employer’s members, i.e. current and former employees. This includes: the 

proportions which are active, deferred or pensioner; the average ages of each 

category; the varying salary or pension levels; the lengths of service of active 

members vs their salary levels, etc. A membership (or liability) profile might be 

measured for its maturity also. 

Rates and 

Adjustments 

Certificate 

A formal document required by the LGPS Regulations, which must be updated at 

the conclusion of the formal valuation. This is completed by the actuary and 

confirms the contributions to be paid by each employer (or pool of employers) in the 

Fund for the period until the next valuation is completed. 

Scheduled Bodies  Types of employer explicitly defined in the LGPS Regulations, whose employees 

must be offered membership of their local LGPS Fund.  These include Councils, 

colleges, universities, academies, police and fire authorities etc, other than 

employees who have entitlement to a different public sector pension scheme (e.g. 

teachers, police and fire officers, university lecturers).  

Secondary 

contribution rate 

The difference between the employer’s actual and Primary contribution rates. 

See Appendix D for further details.  

Stabilisation Any method used to smooth out changes in employer contributions from one year to 

the next.  This is very broadly required by the LGPS Regulations, but in practice is 

particularly employed for large stable employers in the Fund  

  

107



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 042 

 

January 2020  

Valuation A risk management exercise to review the Primary and Secondary contribution 

rates, and other statutory information for a Fund, and usually individual employers 

too.   

 

108



      
 

1 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 
 
 
Effective: 28th February 2020 

 
 

 
 
  

PENSION INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 

109

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php
ctuohy_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



      
 

2 | P a g e  

 

Investment Strategy Statement  
 

1. Introduction and background 
 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”), of which the Fund is a part, is 

established under the Superannuation Act 1972 and is regulated by a series of Regulations 

made under the 1972 Act. 

 

All LGPS funds in England and Wales are required to have an Investment Strategy 

Statement (“ISS” or “Statement”).  This is the Investment Strategy Statement (“ISS”) of the 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”), which is administered by 

Leicestershire County Council, (“the Administering Authority”). The ISS is composed in 

accordance with Regulation 7 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 

Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (“the Regulations”). 

 

The ISS has been prepared by the Fund’s Local Pension Committee (“the Committee”).  

Committee acts on the delegated authority of the Administering Authority. 

 

The ISS, which was approved by the Committee on 28th February 2020, is subject to 

periodic review at least every three years and without delay after any significant change in 

investment policy. The Committee has consulted on the contents of the Fund’s investment 

strategy with such persons it considers appropriate. 

 

The Committee seeks to invest, in accordance with the ISS, any Fund money that is not 

needed immediately to make payments from the Fund. The ISS should be read in 

conjunction with the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement dated 28th February 2020. 

 

The remaining parts of this statement will cover the following; policies for investments, asset 

allocation, risks, and our approach to pooling which will appear in the following order. 

 

➢ Governance  
 

➢ Fund Objectives  
 

➢ Fund Management  
 

➢ Asset Allocation 
 

➢ Risks 
 

➢ Asset Investment Pooling 
 

➢ Responsible Investment 
 

  

110

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

3 | P a g e  

 

2. Governance 

 

Leicestershire County Council, as the administering authority, has delegated responsibility 

for the management of the Fund to the Local Pension Committee (Committee).  The 

Committee has responsibility for establishing an investment policy and its ongoing 

implementation. 

 

Members of the Pension Committee have a fiduciary duty to safeguard, above all else, the 

financial interests of the Fund’s beneficiaries.  Beneficiaries, in this context, are the 

members of the Fund who are entitled to benefits (pensioners, previous and current 

employees) and the employing organisations. Other key stakeholders are the beneficiaries 

of the employing organisations services, for example local Council Tax payers. 

 

Decisions affecting the Fund’s investment strategy are taken with appropriate advice from 

the Fund’s advisers.  Only persons or organisations with the necessary skills take decisions 

affecting the Fund.  The Members of the Pension Committee do receive training as and 

when deemed appropriate, to enable them to critically evaluate any advice they receive. 

 

The Chief Financial Officer of Leicestershire County Council has responsibilities under 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and provides financial advice to the 

Committee, including financial management, issues of compliance with internal regulations 

and controls, budgeting and accounting. 

 

 
3. Fund Objectives 

 

The primary objective of the Fund is to provide pension and lump sum benefits as and when 

they fall due for members or their dependents.   

 

The funding position will be reviewed triennially through an actuarial valuation, or more 

frequently as required.  Payments will be met by employer contributions, resulting from the 

funding strategy, employee contributions or financial returns from the investment strategy.   

 

The funding strategy and investment strategy are therefore inextricably linked.  

Leicestershire County Councils funding strategy can be found at: 

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-

statement-v2.pdf 

 

The Committee believes in a long term investment strategy with regular reviews, usually 

annually in the form of the asset allocation review.  We aim to maximise returns from the 

Fund whilst maintaining an acceptable level of risk. 

 

The Committee sets an investment strategy that focuses on the suitability of investments 
based on factors including, but is not limited to: 

 

• The level of expected risk 

111

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-statement-v2.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-statement-v2.pdf


      
 

4 | P a g e  

 

 

• Outlook for asset returns 

 

• Liquidity and cashflow 

 

The Fund has a number of investment beliefs that are taken into account when agreeing an 

asset allocation policy.   

 

• The long term nature of LGPS liabilities allows for a long term approach to investing. 

 

• Liabilities influence the asset structure; funds exist to meet their obligations. 

 

• Risk premiums exist for certain investments, taking advantage of these can improve 

investment returns. 

 

• Markets can be inefficient, and mispriced for long periods of time, therefore there is a 

place for active and passive investment management. 

 

• Diversification across investments with low correlation reduces volatility, but over 

diversification is both costly and adds little value. 

 

• The Fund should be flexible enough in its asset allocation policy to take advantage of 

opportunities that arise from market inefficiencies, and also flexible enough to protect 

against identifiable short-term risks when this is both practical and cost-effective. 

 

• Responsible investment can enhance long term risk adjusted investment performance 

and investment managers will only be appointed if they integrate responsible investment 

into their decision-making processes. 

 

• Investment management costs should be minimized where possible but net investment 

returns after costs are the most important factor. 

 

4.  Fund management 

 

The Committee aims to structure the Fund in such a manner that, in normal market 

conditions, all accrued benefits are fully covered by the value of the Fund's assets and that 

an appropriate level of contributions is set for each employer to meet the cost of future 

benefits accruing.  The Fund considers the employers covenant to meet liabilities.  The Fund 

will work in partnership with these employers where their ability to meet liabilities may be in 

question in order to protect other Fund employers from the consequences of default. 

 

The Committee has translated its objectives into a suitable strategic asset allocation 

benchmark for the Fund. This benchmark is consistent with the Committee’s views on the 

appropriate balance between generating a satisfactory long-term return on investments 

whilst taking account of market volatility and risk and the nature of the Fund’s liabilities. 

 

112

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

5 | P a g e  

 

It is intended that the Fund’s investment strategy will be reviewed annually.  Information 

available from several sources, including the triennial actuarial valuation, will be used to 

guide the setting of the investment strategy, however, the strategy does not look to match 

assets and liabilities in such a way that their values move in a broadly similar manner.  Asset 

/ liability matching in this way would lead to employers’ contribution rates that are too high to 

be affordable, so there will inevitably be volatility around the funding level (i.e. to ratio of the 

Fund’s assets to its liabilities). 

 

It is recognised that the maturity profile of the Fund (in terms of the relative proportions of 

liabilities in respect of pensioners, deferred and active members), together with the level of 

disclosed surplus or deficit have a role to play in the setting of investment strategy.  As the 

Fund grows more mature it is likely that a more defensive investment strategy will be 

adopted, whereby a lower level of return is considered an attractive ‘trade off’ as it should be 

achieved at a lower level of volatility.  These issues do not currently have a material 

influence on the investment strategy adopted. 

 

In general terms the investment strategy approved will be a blend of asset classes that are 

diverse enough to dampen some volatility (e.g. if equity markets fall, other assets may rise 

or fall less significantly), without being so diverse that the strategy becomes unmanageable 

and costly.  Expected long-term returns, levels of volatility and correlation in the performance 

of different asset classes will all have a role to play in setting the strategy. 

 

By their very nature investment markets are unpredictable and it is impossible to have any 

certainty around future returns and volatility, so the setting of any investment strategy cannot 

be more than an imprecise way of arriving at an ‘appropriate’ split of assets.  As strategy is, 

however, the biggest driver of future investment returns it is important that sufficient time is 

spent in designing and implementing a strategy that is sensible for the Fund. 

 

The Fund’s actual allocation is monitored by Officers and Committee on a regular basis to 

ensure it does not notably deviate from the target allocation. 

 

5.   Asset Allocation  
 

5.1 Investing in a variety of asset classes 

 

The Fund may invest in quoted and unquoted securities of UK and overseas markets 

including equities, fixed interest, index linked bonds, cash, property, infrastructure and 

commodities either directly or through pooled funds.  These asset classes are only examples 

of the types of investments that may be held and are not intended to be an exhaustive list.  

The Fund may also make use of contracts for difference and other derivatives either directly 

or in pooled funds investing in these products for efficient portfolio management or to hedge 

specific risks. 

 

 

 

113

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

6 | P a g e  

 

The Committee reviews the nature of Fund investments on a regular basis, with reference to 

suitability and diversification. The Committee seeks and considers written advice from our 

advisors for such a review.  If, at any time, an investment in a security or product not 

previously known to the Committee is proposed, appropriate advice is sought and 

considered to ensure its suitability. 

 

The Fund’s target asset allocation as at January 2020 is set out above.  As far as is 

practical and cost-effective, attempts will be made to maintain an actual asset allocation 

split that is close to the target strategy.   

 

5.2 Target Asset Allocation 

  

As at January 2020, the expected return of this portfolio allocation is 5.9% p.a. with an 80% 
likelihood of achieving a return of 3.8% pa which is consistent with our Funding Strategy.  

 

5.3 Restrictions on investment 

 

Restrictions are based on the strategic asset allocation policy which is described in section 5 

above.   

 

In line with the Regulations, the authority’s investment strategy does not permit more than 

5% of the total value of all investments of fund money to be invested in entities which are 

connected with that authority within the meaning of section 212 of the Local Government 

and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

 

Asset class

Listed Equities 40.00 44.00

Private equity

Total Equity 44.75 48.75

Index linked bonds

Infra / Timberland

Property

Real assets

Targeted Return

Emerging Market Debt

Currency Overlay

Investment grade credit

Liquid multi-asset credit

Global credit and opportunity

Alternatives

10.50

27.50

24.75

7.50

2.50

0.00

3.00

4.00

Target Allocation Jan 2020 % 

Lower & Upper limits

4.75

5.00

9.75

10.00

114

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

7 | P a g e  

 

 

5.4 Managers 

 

The Committee has appointed a number of investment managers all of whom are authorised 

under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 to undertake investment business.  The 

Committee, after seeking appropriate investment advice, has agreed specific benchmarks 

with each manager so that, in aggregate, they are consistent with the overall asset allocation 

for the Fund. The Fund’s investment managers will hold a mix of investments which reflects 

their views relative to their respective benchmarks.  Within each major market and asset 

class, the managers will maintain diversified portfolios through direct investment or pooled 

vehicles. The manager of the passive funds in which the Fund invests holds a mix of 

investments within each pooled fund that reflects that of their respective benchmark indices. 

 

6.  Risks 
 

The Committee is aware that the Fund has a need to take risk (e.g. investing in growth 

assets) to help it achieve its funding objectives.  Officers, investment consultants and for 

relevant assets LGPS Central manage, measure, monitor and (where possible) mitigate the 

risks being taken, in order that they remain consistent with the overall level of risk that is 

acceptable to the Committee.  One of the Committee’s overarching beliefs is to only take as 

much investment risk as is necessary.   

 

The overall risk is that the Fund’s assets are insufficient to meet its liabilities.  The Funding 

Strategy Statement calculates the value of the Fund’s assets and liabilities and with the 

triennial valuation sets out how any difference in value will be addressed. 

 

The principal risks affecting the Fund are set out below.  They are grouped into 3 areas, 

funding risks, asset risk and other risk.  The Fund’s approach to managing these 3 types of 

risks are explained after each section.   

 

6.1 Funding risks 

 

• Financial mismatch – The risk that Fund assets fail to grow in line with the developing 

cost of meeting the liabilities. 

 

• Changing demographics – The risk that longevity improves and other demographic 

factors change, increasing the cost to the Fund of providing benefits. 

 

• Systemic risk - The possibility of an interlinked and simultaneous failure of several asset 

classes and / or investment managers, possibly compounded by financial contagion, 

resulting in an increase in the cost of meeting the Fund’s liabilities. 

 

6.11 How we manage funding risks 

 

The Committee measures and manages financial mismatch in two ways.  As indicated 

above, the Committee has set a strategic asset allocation benchmark for the Fund.  This 

115

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

8 | P a g e  

 

benchmark was set after considering expected future returns from the different asset classes 

and considers historic levels of volatility of each asset class and their correlation to each 

other.  The Committee assesses risk relative to the strategic benchmark by monitoring the 

Fund’s asset allocation and investment returns relative to the benchmark. 

 

The Committee also seeks to understand the assumptions used in any analysis, so they can 

be compared to their own views and the level of risks associated with these assumptions to 

be assessed. 

 

The Committee seeks to mitigate systemic risk through a diversified portfolio, but it is not 

possible to make specific provision for all possible eventualities that may arise under this 

heading. 

 

6.2 Asset risks 
 

• Concentration - The risk that a significant allocation to any single asset category and its 

underperformance relative to expectation would result in difficulties in achieving funding 

objectives. 

 

• Illiquidity - The risk that the Fund cannot meet its immediate liabilities because it has 

insufficient liquid assets. 

 

• Currency risk – The risk that the currency of the Fund’s assets underperforms relative to 

Sterling (i.e. the currency of the liabilities). 

 

• Environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) – The risk that ESG related factors 

incorporating climate risk may reduce the Fund’s ability to generate the long-term 

returns.   

 

• Manager underperformance - The failure by the investment managers to achieve the rate 

of investment return assumed in setting their mandates. 

 

6.21 How we manage asset risks 

 

The Fund’s strategic asset allocation benchmark invests in a diversified range of asset 

classes. The Committee has put in place rebalancing arrangements to ensure the Fund’s 

“actual allocation” does not deviate substantially from its target.  

 

The Fund invests in a range of investment mandates each of which has a defined objective, 

performance benchmark and manager process which, taken in aggregate, help reduce the 

Fund’s asset concentration risk.   

 

The Fund is currently cashflow positive, in that contributions from employees and employers 

are larger than benefits being paid.  The Fund invests across a range of assets, including 

liquid quoted equities and bonds, as well as property, the Committee has recognised the 

116

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

9 | P a g e  

 

need for access to liquidity in the short term.  Whilst the fund has a growing proportion of less 

liquid assets we have a large proportion of highly traded liquid assets that can be sold readily 

in normal market conditions so that the Fund can pay immediate liabilities.   

 

The Fund invests in a range of overseas markets which provides a diversified approach to 

currency markets; the Committee also assess the Fund’s currency risk during their risk 

analysis.  This currency risk is managed through a variable currency hedging programme 

designed to take account of both the risks involved with holding assets that are not 

denominated in sterling and the perceived value of overseas currencies relative to sterling.   

 

Details of the Fund’s approach to managing ESG risks are set out later in this document 

within section 8.1.   

 

The Committee has considered the risk of underperformance by any single investment 

manager and have attempted to reduce this risk by appointing multiple investment managers 

and by having a large proportion of the Fund’s equities managed on a passive basis.  The 

Committee assess the investment managers’ performance on a regular basis and will take 

steps, including potentially replacing one or more of the managers, if underperformance 

persists.  The Committee also recognises that individual managers often have an investment 

‘style’ that may be out-of-sync with market preference for prolonged periods, and that this 

could lead to lengthy periods of underperformance relative to the relevant benchmark.  If the 

Committee remain convinced by the quality of the investment manager, and the fact that 

their views remain relevant, underperformance will not necessarily lead to their replacement. 

 

6.3 Other provider risk 
 

• Transition risk - The risk of incurring costs in relation to the transition of assets between 

managers.  When carrying out significant transitions, the Committee seeks suitable 

professional advice. 

 

• Custody risk - The risk of losing economic rights to Fund assets, when held in custody or 

when being traded. 

 

• Credit default - The possibility of default of a counterparty in meeting its obligations. 

 

• Stock-lending - The possibility of default and loss of economic rights to Fund assets. 

 

6.31 How we manage these other risks 

 

The Committee expects Officers to monitor and manage risks in these areas through a 

process of regular scrutiny of the Fund’s investment managers and audit of the operations it 

conducts for the Fund.  In some cases, the Committee will have delegated such monitoring 

and management of risk to the appointed investment managers as appropriate (e.g. custody 

risk in relation to pooled funds).  The Committee has the power to replace an investment 

manager should serious concerns exist. 

 

117

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

10 | P a g e  

 

A separate schedule of risks that the Fund monitors is set out in the Fund’s Funding 

Strategy Statement. 

 

7. Pooling  

 

Government instigated ‘pooling’ of pension fund investments in 2015 with the publication of 

criteria and guidance on pooling of Local Government Pension Scheme assets.  Pension 

funds formed their own groups and eight asset pools were formed, which are now all 

operational. 

 

The Fund is a participating scheme in the LGPS Central Pool (Central). The proposed 

structure and basis on which the LGPS Central Pool will operate was set out in the July 

2016 submission to Government. 

 

The LGPS Central Pool consists of the LGPS funds of: Cheshire, Leicestershire, 

Nottinghamshire, Shropshire, Staffordshire, West Midlands, the West Midlands Integrated 

Transport Authority and Worcestershire.   

Collective investment management offers the potential for substantial savings in investment 

management fees, increased opportunities for investor engagement and access to a shared 

pool of knowledge and expertise. 

 

The eight administering authorities of the pension funds within the LGPS Central Pool are 

equal shareholders in LGPS Central Limited.  LGPS Central Limited has been established to 

manage investments on behalf of the Pool and received authorisation from the Financial 

Conduct Authority in January 2018. 

 

7.1 Assets to be invested in the Pool 

 

The Fund’s intention is to invest its assets through the LGPS Central Pool as and when 

suitable Pool investment solutions become available.  LGPS Central has been operating 

since 1st April 2018. 

 

The Fund transitioned its first assets to Central, as part of the Global Equity Active Multi-

Manager Fund, at the end of February 2019.  The Fund contributed approximately 15% of 

the overall £2.1 billion assets managed in the Global Equity fund.  The Fund has since 

transferred funds into Central’s Global Emerging Markets Fund and also into the first vintage 

of the Private Equity fund.   

 

Central have a prioritised product development pipeline which takes into account the relative 

funds available from the Pool’s participants and interest to invest into each product type.     

 

8. Responsible Investing 

 

8.1 Overview and background 

 

118

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

11 | P a g e  

 

Responsible investment is an approach to investment that aims to incorporate environmental 

including climate risk, social and governance (ESG) factors into investment decisions, to better 

manage risk and generate sustainable investment returns.  It is recognised that ESG factors 

can influence long term investment performance and the ability to achieve long term 

sustainable returns. The Committee consider the Fund’s approach to ESG in two key areas: 

 

• Sustainable investment / Environmental and social factors – considering the financial 

impact of environmental including climate risk, social and governance (ESG) factors 

on its investments. 

 

• Stewardship and governance – acting as responsible and active investors/owners, 

through considered voting of shares, and engaging with investee company 

management as part of the investment process. 

 

In combination these two matters are often referred to as ‘Responsible Investment’, or ‘RI’ and 

this is the preferred terminology of the fund.  The fund will complete an annual RI plan that 

builds on the current ESG undertakings. 

 

8.2 Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI) 

 

The Principles for Responsible Investment are recognised as the global standard for 

responsible investment for investors with fiduciary responsibilities. 

 

The Fund declares its support for the PRI and it’s 6 principles listed below.   

 

Signatories’ commitments adhere to the following including annual reporting to the PRI. 

 

“As institutional investors, we have a duty to act in the best long-term interests of our 

beneficiaries. In this fiduciary role, we believe that environmental, social, and corporate 

governance (ESG) issues can affect the performance of investment portfolios (to varying 

degrees across companies, sectors, regions, asset classes and through time). 

 

We also recognise that applying these Principles may better align investors with broader 

objectives of society. Therefore, where consistent with our fiduciary responsibilities, we 

commit to the following: 

 

Principle 1: We will incorporate ESG issues into investment analysis and decision-making 

processes. 

 

Principle 2: We will be active owners and incorporate ESG issues into our ownership policies 

and practices.  

 

Principle 3: We will seek appropriate disclosure on ESG issues by the entities in which we 

invest.  

 

119

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

12 | P a g e  

 

Principle 4: We will promote acceptance and implementation of the Principles within the 

investment industry.  

 

Principle 5: We will work together to enhance our effectiveness in implementing the 

Principles.  

 

Principle 6: We will each report on our activities and progress towards implementing the 

Principles. 

 

The fund is aware of RI duties and ultimately aim to balance our approach with the cost to 

LGPS employers, who in the main are providing social and environmental services to the 

local population. 

 

8.3 Responsible Investing and LGPS central 

 

In addition to support for the PRI, the Fund’s investments that LGPS Central manages and 

advises upon are subject to Central’s Responsible Investment and Engagement (RI and E) 

Framework.  The RI and E framework can be found at:  

https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/LGPS-Central-Responsible-

Investment-and-Engagement-Framework.pdf 

 

Critical to the framework is Central’s Investment and RI beliefs, which the committee has 

endorsed and is summarised below: 

 

Long termism: A long term approach to investment will deliver better returns and the long 

term nature of LGPS liabilities allows for a long term investment horizon. 

 

Responsible investment: Responsible investment is supportive of risk adjusted returns over 

the long term, across all asset classes.  Responsible investment should be integrated into 

the investment processes of the Company and its investment managers. 

 

Diversification, risk management and stewardship: Diversification across investments with 

low correlation improves the risk return profile. A strategy of engagement, rather than 

exclusion, is more compatible with fiduciary duty and more supportive of responsible 

investment, because the opportunity to influence companies through stewardship is waived 

in a divestment approach.  Even well diversified portfolios face systematic risk.  Systematic 

risk can be mitigated over the long term through widespread stewardship and industry 

participation. 

 

Corporate governance and cognitive diversity: Investee companies and asset managers with 

robust governance structures should be better positioned to handle the effects of shocks and 

stresses of future events. There is clear evidence showing that decision making and 

performance are improved when company boards and investment teams are composed of 

cognitively diverse individuals. 

 

120

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/LGPS-Central-Responsible-Investment-and-Engagement-Framework.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/LGPS-Central-Responsible-Investment-and-Engagement-Framework.pdf


      
 

13 | P a g e  

 

Fees and remuneration: The management fees of investment managers and the 

remuneration policies of investee companies are of significance for the Company’s clients, 

particularly in a low return environment.  Fees and remuneration should be aligned with the 

long term interests of our clients, and value for money is more important than the simple 

minimisation of costs. 

 

Risk and opportunity: Risk premia exist for certain investments; taking advantage of these 

can help to improve investment returns. There is risk but also opportunity in holding 

companies that have weak governance of financially material ESG issues.  Opportunities 

can be captured so long as they are aligned with the Company’s objectives and strategy, 

and so long as there is a sufficient evidence base upon which to make an investment 

decision. 

 

Climate change1: Financial markets could be materially impacted by climate change and by 

the response of climate policymakers.  Responsible investors should proactively manage 

this risk factor through stewardship activities, using partnerships of likeminded investors 

where feasible. 

 

1By highlighting climate change, rather than other RI risk factors, we are not asserting that climate risk has, for all 

assets, greater economic significance than other factors.  Our motivation for referring specifically to climate 

change risk derives from our recognition that it is a risk factor of particular importance to a number of 

stakeholders, and we have communicated our investment beliefs about climate change for reasons of 

transparency. 

 

LGPS Central is a signatory to the PRI and as such the Fund’s investments via Central will 

be in line with the principles outlined earlier in this report.  In addition, we have a pipeline of 

Fund transitions to Central as well as a number of advisory mandates which benefit from 

Central’s RI approach and resource.  

 

8.4 The Funds current ESG approach 
 

As institutional investors, we have a duty to act in the best long-term interests of the 

beneficiaries.  In this fiduciary role, we believe that environmental, social, and corporate 

governance (ESG) issues can affect the performance of investment portfolios to varying 

degrees across companies, sectors, regions, asset classes and through time.  

We also recognise that applying these Principles may better align investors with broader 

objectives of society.   

 

The Committee takes RI matters seriously and will not appoint any manager unless they can 

show evidence that RI considerations are an integral part of their investment decision-

making processes.  

 
The Committee understand the Fund is not able to exclude investments to pursue boycotts, 

divestment and sanctions against foreign nations and UK defence industries, other than 

121

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


      
 

14 | P a g e  

 

where formal legal sanctions, embargoes and restrictions have been put in place by the 

Government. 

 

To date, the Fund’s approach to Responsible Investment has largely been to delegate this to 

their underlying investment managers as part of their overall duties. 

 

8.5 The Fund’s planned ESG roadmap 

 

The funds outside of Central’s direct management will be transitioned over a period of years.  

This could be for an extended period of time, due to the cost implications of a transition.  The 

Fund has access to RI resource and expertise provided by Central which we will assess and 

help guide the Fund’s approach to RI whilst we transition funds to Central. 

 

8.6 The exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments 
 

The Committee has delegated the exercise of voting rights to the investment manager(s) on 

the basis that voting power will be exercised by them with the objective of preserving and 

enhancing long term shareholder value.  Accordingly, the Fund’s managers have produced 

written guidelines of their process and practice in this regard.  The managers are strongly 

encouraged to vote in line with their guidelines in respect of all resolutions at annual and 

extraordinary general meetings of companies under Regulation 7(2)(f). 

 

The Committee supports the Stewardship Code as published by the Financial Reporting 

Council.  The Committee expects both the LGPS Central Pool and any directly appointed 

fund managers to comply with the Stewardship Code as published by the Financial 

Reporting Council. 

 

 

Prepared by:  
Chris Tambini 

 

For and on behalf of the Local Pension Committee of the Leicestershire County Council 
Pension Fund. 

 

122

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE  

 
28 FEBRUARY 2020  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
PENSION FUND – BUSINESS PLAN AND BUDGET 2020/21 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s approval of the Pension Section’s 
Business Plan and Pension Fund budget for 2020/21. 

 
Background 

 
2. In November 2019 The Good Governance Project in the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (LGPS) Phase two report was published. This report was from the working 
groups to the Scheme Advisory Board. 

 
3. The report includes several proposals on how to improve governance in the LGPS. The 

favoured option from the engagement activity was greater ring-fencing of the LGPS 
within existing structures, greater separation of pension fund management from the host 
authority, including budgets, resourcing and pay policies. The Pension Committee should 
also be included in the business planning process. 

 
4. The Pension Section’s Business Plan and Pension Fund budget has in previous years 

been agreed with the Director of Corporate Resources, as the senior administering 
authority office responsible for the Fund.  

 
5. To comply with the new governance proposal both the Business Plan and budget are 

now being submitted to the Committee for approval to ensure the Pension Section is 
adequately resourced to continue to provide the level of service required by scheme 
members and Fund employers over the next financial year. 

 
Business Plan 

 
6. The Pension Section’s Business Plan details the main changes that impact on the 

Pension Fund in 2020/21. The most significant are a review of the Pension Section’s 
processes and structure following the implementation of the new administration system, 
the good governance project and the implementation of the McCloud remedy.  

 
7. The key points are detailed in points 1, 4 and 6 of the Plan which is attached as an 

Appendix 
 

123 Agenda Item 10



 

Pension Fund Budget 
 
8. Is it important to note the Pension Fund budget is independent of the Council’s budget 

and its finances are managed separately. The Director of Resources has reviewed the 
Pension Fund budget independently taking into account the full need of the service. In 
the Hymans Good Governance Phase 2 report two of the proposals state; 

 
i. Each administering authority must ensure their committee is included in the 

business planning process. Both committee and LGPS senior officer must be 
satisfied with the resource and budget allocated to the deliver the LGPS service 
over the next financial year.   

 
ii. Each administering authority must give proper consideration to the utilisation of 

pay and recruitment policies, including appropriate market supplements, relevant 
to the needs of their pension function. Administering authorities should not simply 
apply general council staffing policies such as recruitment freezes to the pensions 
function. 

 
9. The current budget is a one year budget but in time will be developed into a four year 

budget in line with the County Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The 
2020/21 budget compared to 2019/20 is summarised report below and is considered 
sufficient to meet the Fund’s statutory requirements. 
 

Budget Heading 2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

Investment Management Expenses (split 
into three areas) 

- - 

o Management 24,300 26,400 

o Transaction 9,000 9,900 

o Performance 4,950 5,500 

Sub Total 38,250 41,800 
   

LGPS Central costs (Governance, operator 
running costs, product development) 

800 950 

   

Staffing  1,200 1,300 

IT costs  500 500 

Actuarial costs  150 150 

Support Services  400 400 

   

Total 41,300 45,100 

 
10. The fund holds no reserves and has no capital expenditure planned. 

 
11. Officers will consider how to monitor performance against certain elements of the budget 

that are not dependant on investment performance. 

124



 

 
12. The total budget being requested for approval is £45.1 million. A breakdown of the 

expenses is set out below. 
 

Investment Management Expenses   
 
13. Investment Management Expenses have been split into three sections, management 

fees, transaction costs and performance fees. These have been compiled using historical 
data of expenses by category received from the Fund’s investment managers using a 
third party.  There could be deviations from these numbers given the historical nature of 
the analysis and changes within fee structures and changes of investment manager.  For 
example, reduced investment manager fees, as a direct or indirect result of asset 
pooling.   

 
14. The 2020/21 investment management expenses an estimate and will be subject to 

investment market returns, however the Fund has assumed a prudent long-term 
investment return for the purpose of this budget estimate. 

. 
15. This estimated increase in investment management expenses from £38.25million in 

2019/20 to £41.8million 2020/21 is mostly due to increases in management fees due to 
Fund’s assets under management, as most investment managers charge a percentage-
based fee, thus as assets under management grow so do management fees.   

 
i. Management fees (£26.4 million) – Are paid to investment managers based on a 

percentage of the assets under management.  The figure includes £0.2 million 
payable to LGPS Central for the sub funds the Fund is invested in and advisory 
services on the fixed income, property and targeted return mandates. 

 
ii. Transaction costs (£9.9 million) – Contain costs relating to trading within the fund 

whilst attempting to achieve the funds mandate. 
 
iii. Performance fees (£5.5 million) - some investment managers have performance 

fees built into the agreed mandates which are paid once a performance hurdle is 
achieved.  This can be highly variable given the Fund would not expect 
meaningful performance fees when general market returns are depressed.  

 
LGPS Central costs oversight, governance and product development  

 
16. The budget for LGPS Central and costs borne to the Fund, concerning oversight, 

governance and product development have not yet been approved.  The Shareholder 
meeting is scheduled for March 20th 2020.  This request for budget approval is based on 
provisional estimates that could change.  

 
17. The Fund’s expected share of costs has been estimated at £0.95 million.  These 

governance costs are split equally between the eight local authorities. Operator running 
costs are split based on assets under management and product development costs are 
allocated based on products that our Fund has expressed an interest in and assets being 
invested.  

125



 

Staffing 
 

18. The Pensions Administration staffing budget covers staffing related costs for 30 full time 
equivalent staff. This includes limited extra resource to work on scheme governance and 
an improvement project. The project will be looking at best utilising the new pensions 
administration system and driving efficient working processes wherever possible.  

 
19. McCloud changes remain unknown and once remedy is confirmed the Pensions 

Manager will review staffing requirements to deal with the administrative impact.  
 
20. Within the percentage rate that employers pay there is an allowance of 0.3% for 

administration expenses. This was detailed in all the employer schedules provided as 
part of the Fund’s valuation. 

 
IT Costs  

 
21. Following a full tender process, the Pension Section invested in a new pensions 

administration system in 2018/19 including pensioner payroll, IConnect for employers to 
submit data monthly, the main core system, workflow and image, and member self-
service. 

 
22. The cost of the system was detailed in the tender and annual costs will remain £500,000 

in 2020/21. 
 

Actuarial Charges 
 
23. Actuarial charges are budgeted as £150,000 in 2020/21.  
 
24. Officers will start a tender of actuarial services within 2020/21 and it is expected the 

largest four LGPS actuarial firms will bid for the work. Costs will form part of the tender 
evaluation.  

 
Support Services 

 
25. Support Services are made up of strategic financial and operational finance charges from 

East Midlands Shared Services, e.g. for providing the pensioner payroll service. The 
charge also includes the Fund’s legal costs. 

 
26. The improvement project may suggest differing options for the provision of support 

services.   
 

Budget Summary 
 
27. Over 90% of the budget is spent on investment manager related expenses.  Given that 

most investment manager expenses are based on a percentage of assets under 
management any increase in asset values, for example an increase in stock 
market/equity returns, will result in higher management fees paid in total. 

 

126



 

28. Investment management costs are volatile and are likely to be higher than budgeted if 
investment performance exceeds assumptions.  Therefore, the costs detailed in the 
report could significantly change. 

 
Recommendation 
 

29. It is recommended that the Committee approves the Business Plan and Pension Fund 
budget for 2020/21. 

 
30. That the Leicestershire Pension Fund Section 151 Officer, following consultation with 

the Chairman of the Local Pension Committee, be authorised to amend the Pension 
Fund’s budget following the approval of LGPS Central’s budget and other in year 
changes arising from variations to Investment management fees paid by the Fund. 

 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

None 
 
Appendix 
 
The Pension Section’s Business Plan 2020/21 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr I Howe, Pensions Manager 
Tel: 0116 305 6945 Email: Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 
      

127

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

 Pensions Administration 

 Business/Service Plan 

   2020-2021  

APPENDIX 

129



 

 

Level One – Changes that impact on the Pension Fund or Leicestershire County Council  - (resourced from Pension Fund) 
Responsible officer and EHRIA required – included within the risk log – shown separately 

 Priority (Not business 
as usual) 

Key Actions Performance 
measures / KPI 

Impact Support required from 
another service  

Customer Timescale/ 
Due Date 

1 Implement a review of 
the Pension Section 
processes and 
structure following the 
implementation of the 
new pension 
administration system. 
New elements; 

 Pensioner 
payroll  

 Member self-
service  

 Immediate 
payments 

 Employer self-
service 
(IConnect – see 
next priority) 

 Review all 
processes looking 
for efficiency, 
streamlining and 
digitising more 
on-line 

 Implement a 
structure 
designed to 
better manage 
the changes to 
pensions moving 
forwards 

 Considered 
working practices 
where pensions 
link with other 
services 

 Payroll 

 EMSS 

 ESC 

 Fund employers 

 Investments 

 Develop new KPIs 
to measure 
improvement 

 Review potential 
CIPFA KPI 
benchmarking 
requirements  

 Improve 
efficiency 

 Reduces risks of 
manual error and 
reconciliation 
issues 

 Expand system 
use  

 Drive greater use 
of member self-
service 

 Automate 
processes using 
new technology 

 EMSS (payroll) 

 EMSS (systems) 

 Investments  

 Heywood (system 
provider) 

 HR colleagues for 
the structure 
review 

 Fund employers 
 

 Pension 
Sections 
98,000 
scheme 
members 

 Project 
work – 
phased 
developm
ent and 
improvem
ent  

 31 Dec 
2020  

2 Continue the 
implementation of a 
phased roll out of 
IConnect with all the 
Funds employers  

 Phased roll out to 
all Funds 
employers  

 Continue to work 
with employers 
and their third 

 Report progress to 
the Local Pension 
Board on a 
quarterly basis  

 Funds admin and 
comms strategy 

 Reduces year-
end queries 

 Assists 
employers 

 MSS more 
accurate and 

 All employers’ 
payrolls and their 
external payroll 
providers 

 Heywood (system 
provider) 

 Remaining 
83 fund 
employers 
with active 
members 
(106 already 

 All 
remaining 
employers 
by 
31/3/21 

130



 

 

party payrolls on 
the specification 

 
 

makes monthly 
posting a scheme 
requirement under 
TPR governance 
arrangements 

timely 

 Validation in built 
to negate wrong 
data at source 

 Meets TPR 
improvement 
plan 
requirements 

 Improves overall 
efficiency 

completed) 

3 Manage and reduce 
employer risk 

 Continue to 
review bonds and 
guarantors 

 Continue to guide 
new TUPE 
outsourcings to 
pass-through 
pooling 

 Manage resource 
accordingly to 
deal with the new 
areas of 
responsibility 

 Work with the 
“big 7 CABs” on a 
reduced risk 
strategy 

 

 Negating the need 
for full bonds 
where possible 
and reducing 
current full bonds 
where possible. 

 

 Reduce fund 
related employer 
risk 

 Reduce bond 
values 

 Reduce 
outsourcing 
pension costs 
and risk 

 Reduce the risk 
of default by new 
employers at 
TUPE 

 Hymans (actuary) 

 Legal services 
(internal) 

 Eversheds 
(external legal) 

 Heywood (develop 
an employer 
tracking area) 

 Fund 
employers 

 Outsourcing 
and new 
employers 

 

 On-going 
area of 
work   
31/3/21 

4 SAB – Good 
Governance Project 
(phase two) 

 Implement the 
areas of 
recommendation 
in the phase two 
documents (Nov 

 Continue to watch 
the national 
position 

 Guided by Hymans  

 Improve the 
governance of 
the Fund 

 Reduce risk 

 Hymans 

 Legal (potentially) 

 Other Funds 
(potentially) 

 Pensions Board 

 Scheme 
members  

 No 
deadline 
set by SAB 
(on-going) 

131



 

 

2019) 
 

and Committee 

 CIPFA 

 SAB 

5 Procurement of all 
actuarial services for 
the Leicestershire Local 
Government Pension 
Fund  

 Develop a 
procurement 
document 
covering all 
aspects of 
actuarial services 
for the Leics LGP 
Fund 

 Complete the 
procurement and 
contract 

 Detailed within the 
tender 
specification  

 Maintain the 
actuarial work in 
the 
Leicestershire 
LGP Fund 

 Improve 
efficiency and 
cost 
effectiveness 

 Pension 
administration 

 Accountants 

 Procurement 

 Legal Services 
(internal) 

 Leicestershir
e LGP Fund 

 Current and 
new fund 
employers  

 31/12/20 

6 Implement the 
McCloud remedy and 
cost cap implications 

 Collect missing 
hour changes 
from employers 
from 1 April 2012 

 Recalculate 
pension benefits 
for members 
impacted  

 
 
 

 Revise benefits 
and adjust 
payments where 
necessary 

 A huge impact on 
staffing and 
resource in the 
Pension Section 

 Pension colleagues 
(internal) 

 Payroll colleagues 
(EMSS) 

 Heywood (system 
changes) 

 LGA 

 Legal Services 
(potential for legal 
appeals) 

 All scheme 
members 
and their 
dependants 

 After 
remedy is 
known 
(currently 
unclear) 

Level Two – Changes that impact on Corporate Resources - (resourced from Fire Authority admin charge) 

7 Transfer all Fire 
Pensions 
Administration to a 
new pension 
administrator 

 3 FAs to sign a 
contract with the 
new 
administrator 

 Transfer all data 
(electronic, 
paper, fiche) 

 Reconciliation of 
data reports from 
our system to the 
new provider 

 Parallel runs for 
pensioner payroll 

 

 Reduce the risk 
of increasing 
pensions fire-
fighter 
administration 
(McCloud, part 
timers buy back 

 Pensions (internal 
work) 

 Three Fire 
Authorities 

 Heywood (system 
provider) 

 New administrator 

 3 Fire 
Authorities 

 31/12/20  

132



 

 

under GDPR rules etc)  HMRC 

 Pensioner Payroll 

 
 Risks Responsible Officer/s  EHRIA required Y/N Current Risk Score (at 

November 2018) 

1 Inefficient processes create risk and increase the chance of failure. An 
insufficient structure leads to delays, failings and staffing issues 

Ian Howe N  Likelihood = 2 
Impact = 4 
Total = 8 
 

2 Failure to move all employers to monthly postings increases risk of failure 
to meet year-end statutory deadlines for annual benefit statements and 
HMRC tax pension saving statements 

Ian Howe N Likelihood = 3 
Impact = 3 
Total = 9 

3 A failed employer’s liabilities will be spread across other Fund employers Ian Howe N Likelihood = 2 
Impact = 5 
Total = 10 

4 Meet SAB’s likely recommendations Ian Howe N Likelihood = 2 
Impact = 4 
Total = 8 

5 Failure to secure the best actuarial contract for the Leicestershire Fund Ian Howe / Declan 
Keegan / Jason Firth 

N Likelihood = 2 
Impact = 4 
Total = 8 

6 Failure to provide the revised benefits in an accurate and timely manner Ian Howe N Likelihood = 4 
Impact = 4 
Total = 16 

7 Failure to provide the service to the three FAs if contractual terms are not 
completed by the three FAs in time, and all data mapping is completely in 
an accurate and timely manner 

Ian Howe N Likelihood = 2 
Impact = 5 
Total = 10  

 
Level Three – Pension Section (continuous improvement) - (Resourced from the Pension Fund) – No risks recorded as these are all BAU and continually 
monitored 
 

 Priority (Business as Key Actions Performance Impact Support EHRIA Officer  Timescale/ 

133



 

 

usual) measures / KPI required 
from 
another 
service  

required 
Y/N  

Due Date 

8 Maintain the Local 
Government KPIs at or 
above target, for all 
areas of Local 
Government pension 
administration. 
 
(Pension Sections 
monthly KPI scorecard 
attached) 

 Work closely 
with Pension 
Team 
Managers  

 Monitor 
changes in 
legislation 

 Monitor 
workloads 

 Monitor 
CIPFA 
benchmarking 
KPIs 

 Report the 3 
business process 
and 7 customer 
perspective KPIs 
to the Local 
Pension Board 
each quarter  

 Maintain and improve 
customer service 

 Highlights any falls in 
service so these can 
be addressed quickly 

 Increased officer 
morale – positive 
feedback is very 
welcome 

 All fund 
employ
ers 

N Ian 
Howe 

On-going 
 
Quarterly 
reports to the 
Local Pension 
Board 

9 Implement ongoing 
customer service 
improvements 

 Team 
Managers to 
implement 
ongoing 
customer 
service 
improvements   

 Implement new 
KPI’s and review 
measuring 
techniques  

 Ensure the highest 
level of service 
available 

 Continually look to 
enhance and improve 
the customer 
experience 

N N Ian 
Howe 

On-going 

10 Achieve all the 
statutory deadlines – 
ABS by 31/8 and 
increasing number of 
pension taxation 
statements by 6/10 

 Work closely 
with Fund 
employers 

 Regulatory 
statutory 
deadlines 
 

 Failure is a reportable 
“material breach” of 
pension rules 

 Reportable to The 
Pensions Regulator 

 Inform the Local 
Pension Board 

 Reputational damage 

 All fund 
employ
ers and 
their 
payroll 
provide
rs 

 EMSS 

N Ian 
Howe 

31 August  
6 October 

11 Improve staff sickness  Team  Pension Section  Increased sickness – N N Ian On-going 

134



 

 

levels within the 
Pension Section  

Managers to 
continue to 
manage 
sickness  

target of 5.0 negative impact on 
morale, KPIs and 
targets, increased risk 
of failure with 
customer service 
standards and 
increases time for 
work completion 

Howe 

 
No risks recorded - business as usual areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The July to September KPIs are detailed below. 
 

Quarter - July 2019 to Sept 2019 

         

135



 

 

Business Process Perspective Target 

This 

Quarter 
  

Previous 

quarter 
Customer Perspective - Feedback Target 

This 

Quarter 
  

Previous 

Quarter 

Retirement Benefits notified to members within 

10 working days of paperwork received 92% 95% ▲ 95% 

Establish members understanding of info 

provided - rated at least mainly ok or clear 95% 99% ▲ 100% 

Pension payments made within 10 working 

days of receiving election 95% 89% ▼ 87% 

Experience of dealing with Section - rated at 

least good or excellent 95% 90% ▼ 90% 

Death benefits/payments sent to dependant 

within 10 working days of notification 90% 98% ▲ 87% 

Establish members thoughts on the amount 

of info provided - rated as about right 92% 91% ► 94% 

     

Establish the way members are treated - 

rated as polite or extremely polite 97% 99% ▲ 100% 

     
Email response - understandable 95% 90% ▼ 90% 

Good or better than target ▲ 

   
Email response - content detail 92% 89% ► 92% 

Close to target ► 

   
Email response - timeliness  92% 97% ▲ 94% 

Below target ▼ 

   
  

     
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pensions Administration 

136



 

 

Overview 

■ Provides a statutory service administering the Local Government Pension Scheme to over 189 employers in the Leicestershire Fund with over 
98,000 scheme members. 

■ Rated very highly by customers for providing a great customer experience 

■ Reports to the Leicestershire Local Pension Board and Pensions Committee, made up of both employee and employer representatives 

 

Key drivers 

■ Continue to achieve or better, key performance indicators in business processes and customer satisfaction 

■ To complete a review of processes and have a replacement structure prepared by December 2020 

■ Complete the tender for actuarial services by December 2020 

■ Prepare for the McCloud remedy and implement this, once details are known. 

■ Complete monthly postings of contributions from employers to negate the significant peak of year-end work, spreading this throughout the year 
by March 2021 

 
Ian Howe 23/12/2019  

137



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 28th FEBRUARY 2020 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
SUMMARY VALUATION OF PENSION FUND INVESTMENTS AND 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE OF INDIVIDUAL MANAGERS 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to present to the Committee, an update on the 

investment markets and how individual asset classes are performing, a summary 
valuation of the Fund's investments at 31st December 2019 (Appendix A), together 
with figures showing the performance of individual managers.   

 
Market Outlook and Performance  
 
2.  An update on asset classes and market performance is provided by LGPS Central’s 

(Centrals) Tactical Asset Allocation report (Appendix B) whose 6 -18 month view is 
summarised below, arrows indicate movement in weighting since the last quarter. 

 

 
 
3. In summary Central’s view remains underweight in stabilising assets and overweight in 

income assets and has downgraded Growth assets from overweight to neutral.  While 
Growth assets retain a positive sentiment, recent valuations look more expensive, 
hence the move to a neutral position.  Stabilising assets have done well but Central’s 
outlook remains cautious, noting that they can provide downside protection in times of 
recession.  Central prefers exposure to income assets as an alternative as stabilising 
assets where yields and expected returns will combine with a low correlation to those 
riskier growth assets. 

   
4. An extract of Portfolio Evaluation’s view on the market outlook is stated below.  The full 

report is included within Appendix A 
 
“Looking forward market commentators continue to expect lower global economic 
growth and corporate earnings growth with the Eurozone looking particularly vulnerable. 
Many investors seem to expect growth to continue into 2020 and potentially to 2021 as 
the outlook for a recession gets moved back due partly positive central bank actions 

139 Agenda Item 11



and benign inflation. However, many market commentators are discussing more 
defensive strategies going forwards (this would not have been not a successful relative 
strategy in 2019) although many are also viewing emerging markets positively and 
corporate bonds over government bonds. There are some risks in the returns that can 
be achieved, these include Trade Wars remain on going between the US, China and to 
some degree Europe, we are also in the position where central banks may not be able 
to continue lowering interest rates much more. We are also seeing increased political 
risk and it must be remembered that 2020 is an election year in the United States. In the 
UK despite Brexit going ahead there are significant risks as the UK seeks a trade deal 
with both Europe and the United States.” 

 
Overall Investment Performance 
 
5. A comprehensive performance analysis over the quarter, year and three-year period to 

31st December 2019 is provided in Appendix A.  Portfolio Evaluation collate 
information directly from managers and calculate performance, which will provide an 
independent check of valuations and allow greater reporting flexibility. Introduction of 
this reporting enhances the control and assurance for the Fund. Current performance 
reporting is limited to three years, however work is ongoing to provide longer history. 

 
6. It is important to note that the valuations produced can be different to those provided 

by managers or included in the Statement of Accounts. For example, timing 
differences of use of different accounting methodologies.  The differences are not 
expected to be material in the context of the messages being conveyed by the report. 

 
7. For the period ending 31st December 2019 the Fund delivered an investment return of 

1.5% for the quarter, 7.8% over the last 12 months and 7.0% annualised over the 
three year period. 

 
8. The Fund’s total value as at 31 December 2019 is £4.6 billion. 
 
9. The Fund’s asset allocation compared to the investment strategy at 31st December is 

shown in the table below: 
  

  Weighting Benchmark Difference 

Equities 51.5% 48.0% 3.5% 

Real Income Fund 24.9% 26.5% -1.6% 

Alternatives 22.6% 25.5% -2.9% 

Cash 1.0% 0.0% 1.0% 

  100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

 
10. The Fund’s actual allocation varies over time due to different market movements across 

the various asset types.  However, the allocation remains broadly in-line with the 
strategy.  At the end of the quarter, overweight positions in equities (+3.5%) are offset 
by underweight positions in real Income fund assets (-1.6%) and Alternatives (-2.9%).  
The largest underweight allocation within Alternatives started to be addressed with a 
£100 million commitment to private debt which was agreed at the October 2019 
Investment Subcommittee. The Fund’s Equity allocations can be adjusted quickly via 
liquid passive holdings, but the underweight positions in property and infrastructure 
can take longer.  

 
 
 

140



11. The only significant changes in the quarter were as follows: 
 

i. £100million commitment to private debt of which £55million was drawn down. 
 
ii. Divestment of £32million and £23million from the Ruffer and Pictet portfolio to 

provide liquidity for the private debt call and move closer to the targeted 
return strategic asset allocation target. 

 
12. The following table provides the performance of the Fund and the asset classes over 

short and longer-term periods, compared to their respective benchmarks.  
 

  3 Months % 1 Year % 3 Years % 
  

Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark 

Equities 4.8 3.5 22.3 21.3 10.2 10.0 
Private Equity 2.2 1.5 12.7 22.3 11.5 10.4 
Income  -2.2 -1.6 4.3 4.6 5.8 5.1 
Alternative -0.5 0.6 9.0 5.0 3.6 4.5 
TOTAL FUND 1.5 1.3 13.2 12.8 7.0 6.8 

 

13. The investment performance of the individual managers for the year to 31st 
December 2019 is set out in appendix A.   

14. The remainder of this report covers certain asset classes in more detail.  
Equities, property and targeted return and inflation linked bonds are covered.  
The remaining asset classes will be covered in more detail at future committee 
meetings. 

Equities  

15. The Fund maintained a 46.6% allocation at the end of the quarter.  This includes 
the allocation to LGPS Central sub funds which total 12.2% of the total fund 
value (£564 million).  The bulk of the Fund’s equity holdings is with Legal and 
General (LGIM) totalling £1.52 billion. 

LGIM 

16. The LGIM portfolio contains a number of passive funds covering the UK, all world 
and geographic specific funds.  The total value of these funds is £1.52billion with 
a growth of 1.9% over the quarter.  The LGIM portfolio performed in line with the 
index. 

17. Some minor re balancing occurred in the period across the various funds with the 
most notable being a movement out of the North America Equity Index fund and 
into the UK Equity Index Fund.  Over the year this portfolio of passive 
investments returned 20.4%, with a high of 26.5% return from North America and 
a low of 12.7% from Asia Pacific (excluding Japan).  The 26.5% return from 
North America was driven by the returns from the technology sector which 
represents 22.7% of the North America Equity Fund and has Apple, Microsoft 
and Amazon as its top three holdings. 

 

141



 LGPS Central Active Global Equity  

18. This fund had a valuation of £379million at quarter end having initially invested in 
March 2019.  The performance since inception has lagged the target by 1.45% 
having returned 13.66%.  The performance in the quarter was more favourable 
with a 2.3% return which was +0.8% vs benchmark and +0.4% vs target. 

19. Central had appointed three managers for the mandate, Harris, Schroders and 
Union. Harris, predominantly a value biased manager gained 4.0% and 
outperformed its benchmark by 2.5%.  This outperformance was derived from a 
number of sources with banks being a major positive. BNP Paribas (a French 
international banking group) was the leading contributor (+53bp) as it produced 
revenue and earnings that exceeded market forecasts resulting in a 13% share 
price increase over the quarter.  On the downside the biggest impact was from 
Apple, which Harris do not hold.   

20. Schroders also outperformed the benchmark in the December quarter (2.27% vs. 
1.53%), with the outperformance coming from a large number of relatively small 
positives. Schroders are currently wary of market levels, and particularly what 
they see as 2020 profits growth expectations in the US that seem to be contrary 
to expectations of economic growth. While their style is to run quite a diversified 
portfolio, they currently hold more stocks and have lower active positions than 
they would consider to be normal. 

21. The third manager Union, produced another poor quarter of performance with 
their return of 0.49%, net of costs, being 1.04% below the benchmark.  Union’s 
investment process is based on identifying stocks that are valued at below their 
view of fair value, waiting for ‘data points’ to validate their investment thesis and 
then buying the stock. In recent months there have been a number of stocks held 
by Union that have disappointed – often the original positive signs have proven 
something of a “false dawn” – and this has been negative to performance. 

22. Their investment process leads to current meaningful overweight positions in 
technology, basic materials and healthcare. The most material underweights, at 
around 3% relative to the benchmark, are in financials and telecoms. 
Geographically the portfolio is 10% under-weight in Asia-Pacific (including 
Japan), with overweight positions in North America and Europe.   

23. Union’s level of Active Share (how different their portfolio is to the benchmark) 
remains high at about 86%, and the tracking error of around 3% is appropriate for 
the performance objective for the portfolio. Union do not target specific levels of 
risk within their investment process but are aware of the risks that they have 
within the portfolio and will take mitigating action if they move too far away from 
what they consider to be necessary to achieve the performance objective. 

 LGPS Central Emerging Markets Active Equity  

24. This fund had a valuation of £186million at quarter end having initially invested in 
July 2019.  The performance since inception has lagged the target by 1.3% 
having returned +0.25%.  The performance in the quarter was with a +3.6% 
return which was -0.4% vs benchmark and -0.9% vs target. 

25. Central employ three managers, BMO, UBS and Vontobel. BMO significantly 
underperformed the benchmark return of +4.01%, with a return of +1.54%. They 

142



underperformed in all three months, but the majority of the underperformance 
came in December, when the market produced a strong rebound from a 
lacklustre period and returned 4.47% over the month. During December alone 
BMO’s underperformance was 1.85%.   

26. The portfolio is concentrated with about 40 companies so at times performance 
will be divergent to the index.  The portfolio is built from a company-specific 
(bottom-up), benchmark agnostic perspective in line with the investment 
manager’s investment philosophy and process of investing in cash generative, 
high quality companies with strong and sustainable franchises that produce an 
in-built advantage to growth.  On a country basis, the largest exposures are to 
China and India where combined they account for approximately 40% of the 
portfolio. Relative to the index, the portfolio is underweight China and overweight 
India. 

27. UBS outperformed the benchmark by 1.58% (net of costs), with a performance of 
5.59% against the benchmark of 4.01% during the quarter.  The portfolio held a 
number of companies whose share price rose by over 25% including Chinese 
educational services provider TAL Education (positive impact of 50bp on 
performance), property company China Jinmao (+27bp) and Brazilian post-
secondary education provider Yduqs (+13bp). An overweight position in index 
heavyweight Taiwan Semiconductor was the highest positive contributor to 
performance.   

28. The portfolio is heavily overweight in Technology, primarily because the manager 
can find many companies with competitive advantage, inexpensive valuations 
and high potential levels of growth. They continue to find very few opportunities 
within industrials and basic materials and are consequently underweight by a 
meaningful amount in these two sectors. 

 

29. Vontobel is the funds third manager, who produced a performance of +3.81% over the 
quarter, net of costs, which was 20bp behind the index.  

30. There was a major positive impact of 54bp from the overweight position in 
Brazilian education provider Yduqs, who announced higher-than-expected 
medium term growth targets that were received favourably by the market. At the 
end of the quarter the Vontobel portfolio consisted of 42 companies. The largest 
sector over weights versus benchmark are financials, consumer goods and 
technology, although at around 3 – 3 ½% these positions are not substantial. 

31. Overall this funds quarterly underperformance came primarily as a result of the 
fact that the significant outperformance of UBS (+158bp) was more-than-offset 
by the poor performance of BMO (-247bp).   

32. Underperformance since inception in the middle of July 2019 to the end of 
December is 43bp (+0.25% vs. +0.68%), and again meaningful out-performance 
by UBS has been overshadowed by significant BMO underperformance and 
relatively minor underperformance by Vontobel. The focused nature of all three 
portfolios means that there are likely to be periods of meaningful divergence from 
the benchmark for all of them, both from a negative and positive perspective. The 
relatively low level of stock overlap continues, which shows that the managers 
have different methods of assessing the attractiveness of stocks and structuring 
their portfolios accordingly. 

143



Property  

33. The actual Property allocation is 8.9% and is -1.1% to target covering direct and 
indirect holdings.  The target return of this portfolio is to achieve benchmark + 1% 
net fees.   

34. In the commercial property investment market, the level of total returns has 
continued to reduce since the last quarter as the rate of capital value growth 
continues to slow in the industrial and office sectors, and capital values fall in the 
retail sector.  

35. The industrial sector was the strongest performing market over the year, led by 
London and south-east industrials, followed by the provincial office market, the 
alternative sector, the other office markets, and then the retail sector. The 
strongest capital growth was again in the London and south-east industrial 
sector, followed by south-east and provincial offices. Capital value growth was 
negative in all the retail sectors. 

 Colliers direct and indirect portfolio  
  

36. The Colliers portfolio has performed in line with it’s objective having beaten its 
benchmark by the required amount over all timeframes.  At the quarter end it was 
valued at £130 million.  

 
37. The Colliers portfolio has performed well with income making up about two thirds of the 

total return over all timeframes.  The portfolio at the valuation date yields 5.6%.  The 
Fund has benefited from having a a low void rate which across the portfolio is 4.7% as 
a percentage of rental income.  The largest unit will soon be let and the void rate will 
then fall to 1.7%. 

 
 

38. Over the quarter, the Fund, on advice from Colliers and Central served a redemption 
notice on the Greenoak WELPUT trust to redeem its holding in the Central London 
office fund.  The redemption value at 31st December was £8million or 6% of our total 
holding with Colliers. 

 
LaSalle portfolio 

 
39. This portfolio is a valued at £206million at 31st December 2019.  Although having 

beaten benchmark over one, three and five years the portfolio hasn’t achieved the 
target return of +1% over benchmark.  This holding combines 18 open and closed 

144



ended funds and is invested primarily in Europe having exposure to many sectors. 
Given the European nature of this holding the managers employ currency hedging. 

 

 
 

40. There was minor activity in the quarter with two distributions and one capital call in the 
period.  The strongest performing funds over the quarter were the specialist funds 
investing in industrial markers and the two debt funds in the portfolio.  As expected the 
weakest performers were the specialist retail which continue to see decline in value 
due to the overall weakness of the UK retail sector. 

 
41. LaSalle’s stated future strategy is to up weight to the alternatives sector to position the 

portfolio more defensively and down weight the retail sector exposure which is currently 
under benchmark.   

 
42. At the valuation date there was a 4.8% vacancy rate and a further 2.2% under 

development which is favourable versus benchmark. 
 

Kames portfolio 
 
43. The fund has two holdings with Kames with a combined value of £72million.  Kames I 

is valued at £25million and Kames II at £47million.  
 
Kames UK active Value Trust I Kames UK active value trust II 

  

 
44. Kames I is now outside its investment period and as such is now actively managing the 

portfolio and selling properties. 
 

145



45. Kames I saw a slightly negative return over the quarter at -0.15% vs a benchmark 
return of +0.3%.  This is primarily due to the current high void percentage and capital 
value decline which was not offset by income.  Over 12 months the fund produced a 
return of +1.2% vs benchmark of +1.6%.  Kames I has identified the assets for sale 
which will allow them to maintain assets with the correct income profile.  

 
46. Kames I completed two sales in the quarter.  A site in Leighton Buzzard purchased by 

the fund in 2014 for £3.16million has exchanged with Industrials UK for £7.2million with 
completion due 31/01/20.  The manager obtained a full planning consent for an 
Industrial redevelopment scheme during the funds ownership.   

 
47. The Kames II fund is fully invested. No new purchases were completed in Q4 2019. 

Kames II saw a better performance over the quarter delivering 0.7% vs benchmark of 
0.3% and 3.3% over 12 months which is +0.8% vs benchmark.  This fund has been 
supported by having a lower exposure to the ‘High street’ and absence of Department 
stores and shopping centre assets. Only 12% of the funds is invested in the retail 
sector.  It is also worth noting that the Fund has retained very high occupancy levels 
and has not suffered from any tenant defaults across the retail sector over the quarter, 
and very few over the life of the Fund thus far. 

 
48. Kames II sold one site in the period for £5.1million to Bellway homes for redevelopment 

to residential.  The value achieved was £0.5million higher than the last valuation, the 
proceeds will be used to reinvest in refurbishment and redevelopment projects in line 
with the funds investment policy. 

 
Targeted Return  

49. The Fund currently employs three managers Aspect Capital, Ruffer and Pictet 
the total value of the Fund’s holdings is £481million at December 2019.  The 
three managers offer the Fund access the markets and strategies that other 
areas of the portfolio do not.  The target return is 1-month libor + 4% per annum 
over a rolling three year period. 

50. Over the quarter, general equity performance was positive, with the FTSE All-
World index producing a +1.5% (in sterling terms). 

51. The individual performances by manager are show in the table below: 

 Qtr 1 year 3 year pa 

Aspect -2.1% +20.9% +2.5% 

Pictet +0.8% +8.4% +2.4% 

Ruffer +0.7% +9.6% +2.7% 

52. The table below shows the performance of the Fund’s targeted return portfolio 
versus the performance objective: 

Period LCC Targeted Return Fund (net) Performance Objective 

3 months -0.1% +1.2% 

12 months +11.7% +4.7% 

3 years* +2.4% +4.6% 

5 years* +3.6% +4.6% 

*3 and 5 year numbers are annualised 

 

146



53. The combined assets of the targeted return portfolio produced a return of -0.1% 
over the quarter on a net-of-costs basis. In the nine months to the end of 
December, the return has been well ahead of the performance objective (6.9% 
vs. 3.5%), as it has for the 2019 calendar year.  Longer term performance 
numbers are influenced by the weak returns of 2018 when both equity and bond 
markets both produced negative returns and also the modest return of 2017. 

 Pictet 

54. Of the three managers Pictet was the best performing with +0.8% net 
performance.  The major positive impacts came from foreign exchange 
positioning, including hedging most overseas currency exposure back to 
sterling. Equity and credit positions also added value, while the fall in the gold 
price was modestly negative and exposure to Australian and US government 
bonds was a significant drag on performance. 

 Ruffer  

55. Ruffer also had a positive performance over the quarter with a+0.6% net return. 
The ‘greed’ holdings, primarily equities produced strong returns over the quarter 
with the combination of geographical and sector positioning leading to the 
broadly 40% equity exposure punching well above its weight in terms of 
contribution to return.  The ‘fear’ holdings were detrimental to performance, with 
UK index-linked holdings being the major source of underperformance.  During 
the quarter a combination of falling nominal bond yields, low inflation, markets 
adjusting to lower levels of future inflation linkage and the very long maturity of 
many of the index-linked bonds held by Ruffer proved costly, the longest dated 
UK index-linked bond (maturing in 2062) fell by 13% and the impact of Ruffer’s 
index-linked bond holdings was to reduce portfolio performance by 2% over the 
quarter. 

 Aspect 

56. The momentum based strategy performed poorly over the quarter, with a return 
of -2.3%. At the beginning of the quarter the portfolio had a high exposure to 
bonds and suffered as a result of rising global bond yields.  Although the model 
adjusted position-sizing relatively quickly, this did not stop bonds having a 
highly negative impact during the quarter. This strategy will always struggle in 
environments when there are few trends or when trends reverse quite sharply, 
as was the case with bond yields.  The Aspect strategy targets a level of 
volatility that is broadly in-line with long-term equity market volatility, so returns 
are always likely to be meaningfully different to the other two targeted return 
managers.  They do, however, provide significant diversification and access to 
an investment strategy (momentum) that is not included elsewhere within the 
Fund.  They are able to capitalise in market downturns by being ‘short’ the 
markets they trade in. 

Inflation linked Bonds  

Kames 

57. The fund has a £329 million investment with Kames to invest in a global portfolio 
of index-linked bonds.  The default position is to hold index-linked rather than 
fixed rate bonds 

147



58. The Fund has a 7% allocation to indexed linked bonds via Kames. The quarter 
produced disappointing returns of -8.5% vs a benchmark of -8.5% also.  The one 
year return 6.3% also produced returns in line with the benchmark of 6.4%.  3 
year returns were 2.9% pa against a benchmark of 2.8%. 

59. The last quarter of the year saw a sell-off in UK Index-linked government. This all 
came through in October when it became apparent that the UK has managed to 
avoid “no-deal” Brexit.  This led to a sell-off in risk-free assets and index-linked 
as it has the relationship with the currency. 

 
Recommendation 

60. The Local Pension Committee is asked to note the report 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Portfolio Evaluation - Summary Valuation of Funds Performance. 
 
Appendix B - Report of LGPS Central Limited – Strategic Asset Allocation (Market outlook 
and Performance). 
  
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 
 

148



Quarterly Risk and Return Analysis  

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund  Period ending 31st December 2019

Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation 

149

ctuohy_3
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

Portfolio Evaluation Ltd Market Commentary Q4 2019 (Sterling) 

 
After a positive first nine months of the year equity markets continued with positive returns, albeit in a volatile quarter in terms of markets that depreciated and then 
rallied strongly. The UK performed strongly following the election; mid and small cap (in particular) stocks performed particularly strongly whilst the performance of the 
FTSE 100 despite having positive returns was quite muted probably due to sterling appreciation and performance earlier in the year. Over the quarter global equity 
markets also performed strongly; however due to sterling appreciation the impact of non UK equity markets on UK investors was limited. The positive global outlook 
this quarter saw growth stocks continue to outperform value as they have done for recent years. Over the year the UK and global equity markets performed strongly.  
 
Over the quarter bond market returns were negative as yields increased and investors reduced their exposure to bonds whilst over the year they had positive returns 
with the result that yields reduced further. Property has had a quiet year in terms of return as have other ‘alternative’ asset classes over the year with Private Equity 
typically being the strongest performer. 
 

 
 
It would appear that markets are set to remain in a late market cycle phase for a while given the economic growth, especially as some economic growth indicators 
improved this quarter, and it is not uncommon for markets to produce positive returns in this phase; however this can be more volatile. This phase may remain resilient 

-10.00

-5.00

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

UK
Equities

UK Large Cap UK Mid
Cap

UK Small Cap UK
Value

UK
Growth

US
Equities

Europe ex UK
Equities

Japan Equities Emerging
Market
Equities

Global Equities Global Value Global Growth UK
Gilts

UK Long dated
gilts

UK Index
Linked Gilts

UK Non Govt Cash Global High
Yield Hedged

EM Debt
Hedged

Property Commodities GBP / $ GBP / Euro GBP / Yen

%

Quarterly Investment Returns for the period ended 31st December 2019

1

150



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

for a while as it is supported by dovish central bank policy, continuing low inflation and positive consumer demand (it should be noted that there is in the developed 
world a lower supply of available workers than previously).   
 

 
 
Looking forwards market commentators continue to expect lower global economic growth and corporate earnings growth with the Eurozone looking particularly 
vulnerable. Many investors seem to expect growth to continue into 2020 and potentially to 2021 as the outlook for a recession gets moved back due partly positive 
central bank actions and benign inflation. However many market commentators are discussing more defensive strategies going forwards (this would not have been not 
a successful relative strategy in 2019) although many are also viewing emerging markets positively and corporate bonds over government bonds. There are some risks 
in the returns that can be achieved, these include Trade Wars remain on going between the US, China and to some degree Europe, we are also in the position where 
central banks may not be able to continue lowering interest rates much more. We are also seeing increased political risk and it must be remembered that 2020 is an 
election year in the United States. In the UK despite Brexit going ahead there are significant risks as the UK seeks a trade deal with both Europe and the United States. 
 
Market volatility has recently become stable and in core asset classes has reduced slightly; however risk within multi asset class portfolio has not reduced as the risk 
levels between asset classes has increased as diversification benefits reduce.  
 
For further information 
If you would like further information about the topics contained in this newsletter or would like to discuss your investment performance requirements please contact Nick Kent or 
Deborah Barlow    Tel: +44 (0)1937 841434 (e-mail: nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net) or visit our website at www.portfolioevaluation.net.   Please note that all numbers, comments and ideas 

contained in this document are for information purposes only and as such are not investment advice in any form. Please remember that past performance is not a guide to future performance. 

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

UK
Equities

UK Large Cap UK Mid
Cap

UK Small Cap UK
Value

UK
Growth

US
Equities

Europe ex UK
Equities

Japan Equities Emerging
Market
Equities

Global Equities Global Value Global Growth UK
Gilts

UK Long dated
gilts

UK Index
Linked Gilts

UK Non Govt Cash Global High
Yield Hedged

EM Debt
Hedged

Property Commodities GBP / $ GBP / Euro GBP / Yen

%

Investment Returns for the Year 
ended 31st December

2019

2

151

mailto:nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net
http://www.portfolioevaluation.net/


Client: Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Manager: Multi-manager

Mandate: Total Fund

Asset Class: Combined Assets

Benchmark: LCC - Total Fund Index

Inception: 31-Mar-2016

Mkt Val: £4.6bn

All returns for periods in excess of 1 year are annualised. The portfolio return is net.  

Benchmark Risk 4.3 4.6 5.1

Portfolio Risk 4.6 4.6 5.5

Excess Return 0.2 1.0

Active Risk 1.0 1.5 1.6

0.4 0.2

1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Mar 16

Portfolio Return 1.5 7.8 13.2 7.0

Benchmark Return 1.3 6.7 12.8 6.8

Excess Return Analysis (%)

9.4

QTR

10.4

Total Fund Overview

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Report Period: Quarter Ending December 2019

1.0

5 Yr Since Mar 16 (p.a.)Fin YTD 1 Yr 3 Yr 10Yr

-0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

% % 

%%
Aggressive

Active Plus

Active

Core

Indexed

Active Risk

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Ex-Post Active Risk Analysis (%)

Expected Active 
Risk Ranges

Ex-Post Active Risk measures the volatility of the actual excess returns achieved by the Portfolio/Fund.
Excess Return Consistency Analysis measures the frequency of the Portfolio/Fund’s outperformance (Blue) and underperformance (Red) versus its benchmark, calcula ted using monthly (or quarterly if indicated) returns since inception.

2.2%

4.4%

15.6% 15.6%

37.8%

8.9%

6.7%

8.9%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

< -0.75 -0.75 to -0.51 -0.50 to -0.26 -0.25 to -0.01 0.00 to 0.25 0.26 to 0.50 0.51 to 0.75 > 0.75

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 %

Range of Excess Returns - Since inception

Excess Return Consistency Analysis

3

152



Market Value: £4.6bn

#

0.0

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Total Inflation 

Linked

0.0

0.0

1.5

-3.1

3.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.4 0.0

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

-0.5

0.0

Total Private 

Equity

Total 

Property

-0.1

0.0

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

100.0

100.0 11.4

Stock Selection

100.0

100.0

0.3

0.00.0 0.0

-0.2

-3.5

-3.3

16.0

2.2

1.5

0.6

-2.2

-1.1

0.1

1.2

9.0

0.0

-0.1

10.0

26.5

0.2

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Start

Benchmark End 100.0

Portfolio Start

100.0Portfolio End

1.3

100.0

Total Real 

Income

0.2 0.7

-1.6

100.0 25.0

0.2

0.1

-0.6

2.1

Total Fund 

(Net)
Total Equity

1.3

Benchmark Return 0.7

0.2

Total Fund ex 

Hedge (Net)

-0.5

Total Fund 

(Gross)

3.5

Excess Return

100.0

1.5 4.81.6

1.3

44.0 10.0

-0.2

0.2

45.4100.0

99.1

0.0

4.0

45.8

98.8 98.8

2.0

Asset Allocation 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

0.2

44.0

Excess Return 0.2

99.1

-0.2

45.0

44.0

46.6

44.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

-0.3

16.5

16.5

4.9

8.9

26.5

24.9 16.04.9

4.0

-0.2

0.0

0.0

25.5

0.0

10.0

10.0

-0.3

0.0

11.4

-0.6

-0.2

-1.3

11.8

-0.4

0.0

25.5

-0.2

23.7

22.6

0.0

10.5

-0.1

4.1

Total Other 

Opportunities

-1.6

8.4

Total 

Targeted 

Return

-0.1

1.2

4.1

0.0

Total 

Alternatives

-0.5

0.6

-1.1

8.0

Millennium 

Currency

-0.4

-0.4

Cash

2.1

2.2

0.2

0.5

0.0

1.0

0.0

0.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0-0.1

0.0

4.1

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st December 2019

100.0

100.0

-0.4

0.0

-0.3

Total Fund ex 

Hedge 

(Gross)

-0.4

0.4

0.7

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

Net Exposure Start

The Returns Summary details the Portfolio, Benchmark and Excess Returns. The Excess Returns are plotted. The Asset Allocation Summary details the weights held by the portfolio and benchmark in each asset class/manager. The green plots are the over/underweight exposures of the Fund (v Fund benchmark) at the beginning and end of the period.  The Attribution to Excess Return, identifies how each asset 
class/manager has contributed to the overall excess return of the Total Fund.  It is broken down into Asset Allocation (how successful the decision to over/underweight each asset class was) and then into Stock Selection (how well each manager/s decisions have performed).  The Asset Allocation plus the Stock Selection excess returns are all additive and equal the Total Excess Return of the Fund.

Net Exposure End

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

4

153



Market Value: £4.6bn

2.1

2.0

45.0 13.1

13.0

0.1

13.0

44.0

5.5

2.6

0.0

0.1

5.0

5.0

0.0

0.00.0

44.0

Attribution to Total Equity Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st December 2019

L&G - North 

American 

Equity

0.0

1.1

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.6

4.7

0.2

0.2

0.0 0.00.4

2.5

0.0

13.0

0.0

4.0

0.0 0.0

5.5

2.6

0.0

32.9

32.0

32.0

7.2

0.0

8.044.0

4.21.8

7.533.1

7.0

0.2

1.6

1.3

0.0

7.0

Benchmark Start

Benchmark Return

1.9

44.0

45.4

Asset Allocation 0.2

Stock Selection 0.0

0.2

Excess Return

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0

0.2

100.0

Portfolio Start

Portfolio End

Excess Return

100.0

Portfolio Return

4.9

4.0

4.1

1.8

1.2

4.0

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

8.0

0.6

2.2

1.5

4.9

0.0

Total Fund 

(Gross)

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

Total 

Passive 

Equity

0.50.2

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

2.7

Total 

Private 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

0.0

0.9

0.9

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

L&G Pacific 

ex Japan 

Equity

0.0

0.6

0.6

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

2.6

2.5

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

4.8

3.5

45.8

0.00.1

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

L&G - EMM 

Equity

-0.1

0.0

2.5

2.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.6

23.7

Total Real 

Income

-0.6

-2.2

-1.6

25.0

-0.5

24.91.9

2.0

2.0

-0.3

26.5

26.5

-0.2

0.0

-0.20.4

Millennium 

Currency

-0.4

-0.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Equity

46.6

1.3

0.7

Cash 

2.1

2.2

0.2

0.5

22.6 1.0

Total 

Alternative

s

-1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

25.5

25.5

-0.3

8.2

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

183.8

184.0

0.2

0.9

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

3.9

4.0

4.0

4.0

0.0

0.00.1

LGPSC - 

Global

0.8

2.4

1.5

8.2

0.1

LGPSC - 

EMM

0.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

5

154



Market Value: £4.6bn

1.2

-3.4-1.2

2.1

Kames 

Capital II

-0.5

KKR Infra

0.6

1.2

0.0

3.1

JPM Infra

0.0

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

-2.3

2.1

IFM Infra

1.2

-1.0

4.5

4.5

0.0

Attribution to Total Real Income Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st December 2019

3.0

3.0

3.0

-0.1

2.3

13.9

1.2

12.7

1.1

1.4

-0.5

0.0

-0.2

16.0

1.2

7.5

-1.6

1.9

-3.5

-3.3

-0.1 0.0

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

7.5

16.0

1.5

2.2 0.6

0.5

0.0

1.0

-0.1

1.5

0.1

0.0

0.20.0 0.00.0

16.50.5

Excess Return

0.0

2.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.7

-0.5

1.2

Excess Return 0.2

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0

Asset Allocation 0.2

Stock Selection 0.0

Total 

Property

0.1

1.2

-1.1

9.0

0.0

100.0

1.6

1.3

10.0

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Portfolio Return

0.2

100.0

Portfolio Start

Portfolio End

Benchmark Return

Benchmark Start

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

0.8

1.2

-0.4

0.7

Kames 

Capital IL

-1.7

2.2

Aviva

0.2

0.7

0.8

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

-8.5

-8.5

0.0

7.7

7.2

Kames 

Capital 

1.2

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

0.7

1.2

1.1

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

8.9

10.0

-1.4

-0.2

Total Real 

Income

-0.6

-2.2

-0.1

0.8

0.0-0.1

-1.6

25.0

-0.2

0.00.0

5.0

0.0

45.8

46.6

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

1.5

1.5

0.2

0.4

0.0

16.5

-0.1

3.0

3.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

2.2

1.5

4.9

4.0

4.044.0

Total 

Equity

1.3

4.8

Total 

Private 

Equity

0.6

22.64.9

3.5

25.5

25.5

-0.30.0

Total 

Alternativ

es

-1.1

-0.5

0.6

23.7

0.0

-0.30.0

44.0

24.9

26.5

26.5

-0.2

0.0

1.0

5.0

-0.1

Millenniu

m 

Currency

-0.4

-0.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

Cash 

2.1

2.2

0.2

0.5

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.5

-1.0

0.5

2.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

6

155



Market Value: £4.6bn

Attribution to Total Alternative Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st December 2019

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.2

5.2

4.9

7.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

JPM 

Global 

Credit

-1.2

0.0

1.2

0.6

0.6

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

-0.1

1.1

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.0

0.0

4.1

4.1

4.1

-0.1

0.0

Aberdeen 

Standard

6.9

1.8

Infracapital

1.3

1.8

-0.5

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

-3.0

1.8

-4.8

1.2

1.1

0.0

1.0

1.0

0.0

0.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.5

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

-0.1

1.2

Total 

Targeted 

Return

1.2

3.4

11.8 3.3

3.1

11.4

1.6

1.3

100.0

-2.1

-1.3 -3.2

10.5

25.5 44.0 4.0 26.5

Excess Return 0.2

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0 11.4 3.4

Asset Allocation 0.2

Portfolio End

Stock Selection

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Return

Benchmark Start

Excess Return 0.2

100.0

Portfolio Start

3.7

-0.2 -0.1

0.0 0.0

0.0

-0.2 -0.1

Pictet

0.8

1.2

-0.3

4.2

Ruffer

0.7

1.2

-0.5

4.4

0.0

4.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.03.7

4.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

-0.6

-0.2

-0.4

8.4

EnTrust 

Permal

-1.7

1.2

-2.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.58.0

10.0

10.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.5

2.5

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.5

7.0

1.0

0.0

-3.1

-1.6

1.5

3.4

5.1

0.2

0.4

0.4

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

0.0

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

-3.9

-4.2

0.3

2.6

0.0

2.1

2.1

-0.1

0.0

-0.1-0.1

M&G DOF

-4.3

-3.2

1.2

1.7

2.1

Cash 

2.1

2.2

0.2

0.5

Millenniu

m 

Currency

-0.4

-0.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Equity

1.3

4.8

3.5

45.8

46.6

44.0

0.7

0.2

0.4

Total 

Private 

Equity

0.6

2.2

1.5

4.9

4.9

0.0

0.0

Total Real 

Income

-0.6

-2.2

-1.6

25.0

24.9

Total 

Alternativ

es

-1.1

-0.5

0.6

23.7

22.6

25.5

-0.3

0.0

-0.3

26.5

-0.2

0.0

-0.2

4.0

0.0

-6.0

-3.0

0.0

3.0

6.0

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

7

156



Market Value: £4.6bn

#

-1.7

0.0

0.0

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Net)

-0.5

11.6

12.1

99.3

100.0

97.0

-0.5

97.4

-9.6 -0.3

Total Fund 

(Net)

Total Fund 

(Gross)
Total Equity

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Benchmark Return

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Total Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Total 

Alternatives

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Total Other 

Opportunitie

s

Millennium 

Currency
Cash

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 0.4 0.8 1.0 -1.2 0.9 4.0 6.9 0.3 1.8 -1.8 2.6

Portfolio Return 13.2 13.6 22.3 18.9 12.7 4.3 0.9 6.6 9.0 11.7 5.8 7.9 -1.8 3.3

12.8 12.8 21.3 20.1 22.3 4.6 2.6 5.6 5.0 4.7 5.4 6.1 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 100.0 43.7 43.0 5.0 25.7 9.8 15.9 24.5 11.8 9.3 3.4

8.0 4.1 0.0

0.0 1.2

Portfolio End 100.0 100.0 46.6 44.0

24.5 10.0

16.0 22.6 10.54.9 24.9 8.9

25.5 13.0

16.5 25.5

0.0

1.0

Benchmark Start 100.0 100.0 46.0 46.0 4.0 10.0 2.5 0.014.5

Benchmark End 100.0 100.0 44.0 41.0 4.0 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

Excess Return 0.4 0.8 0.2 -0.6 -0.4

26.5

0.8

0.1

0.1

4.1

0.1

11.4 10.0

0.0

10.0

0.0 -0.1

Asset Allocation 0.0 0.1 0.0 -0.2

-0.1 -0.2 0.1

-0.5

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.10.1

1.1

0.1

0.1 0.0 -0.1

Stock Selection 0.0 0.7 0.2 -0.4

99.3

97.4

-0.1 0.0 0.0-0.3 0.1 1.0 0.9 0.0

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 31st December 2019

100.0

97.0

-0.1

0.0

-0.1

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Gross)

-0.1

12.0

12.1

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

%%

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

%%%% %%

8

157



Market Value: £4.6bn

Attribution to Total Equity Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 31st December 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Equity

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

Total 

Passive 

Equity - 

L&G

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

North 

American 

Equity

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

Millenni

um 

Currenc

y

L&G 

Pacific ex 

Japan 

Equity

L&G - 

EMM 

Equity

Kleinwor

t Benson 

- Global

Kempen - 

Global

Delaware 

EMM

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

LGPSC - 

Global

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total 

Real 

Income

Total 

Alternativ

es

-2.2 -1.9-3.5

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 0.8 1.0 -1.2 0.2 1.2 0.1 0.0

25.0 14.9

286.0 -9.6 -0.3 4.00.0 -0.1 1.3 -1.5

10.79.5

-1.8 2.6

Portfolio Return 13.6 22.3 18.9 20.4 20.4

14.8

286.7 12.7 4.3 9.018.3 12.7 15.6 6.8 6.0

13.0

-1.8 3.3

Benchmark Return 12.8 21.3 20.1 20.3 19.2 25.0 0.7 22.3 4.6 5.018.3 12.9 14.3 8.3 8.3 12.5 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 43.7 43.0 31.0 7.0 11.8

13.0

4.2 0.7 5.0 25.72.5 5.2 2.6 1.9 4.5

Portfolio End 100.0 46.6 44.0 33.1 7.5 0.0 0.08.2

24.5 0.0 1.23.30.0

4.0 0.0

7.5 13.2

0.0 1.2 4.9 24.92.6 5.5 2.6 1.9

3.30.0

22.6 0.0 1.0

Benchmark Start 100.0 46.0 46.0 33.9

13.0

4.1 0.0 4.0 24.52.8 5.7 2.8 1.9 4.7

8.0

25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 44.0 41.0 32.0 7.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 26.52.5 5.0 2.5 2.0 0.0 0.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 0.8 0.2 -0.6 0.0 0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0-0.3

Asset Allocation 0.1 0.0 -0.2 -0.1 0.0 0.0

-0.1 1.1 0.0 -0.1-0.1 0.0 0.8 -0.4

0.0

0.1

0.0 0.2 0.1-0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-0.3

0.1 0.1 0.0 -0.1

Stock Selection 0.7 0.2 -0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 1.0 0.0 0.00.0 -0.1 0.0 0.7 -0.5

LGPSC - 

EMM

-0.8

-0.2

0.7

0.0

Transitio

n Fund

-0.2

1.0

1.1

0.0

0.0

4.0

-0.1

0.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0

-0.1

0.0

-0.1

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

9

158



Market Value: £4.6bn

Attribution to Total Real Income Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 31st December 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

Total 

Alternativ

es

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Kames 

Capital 

Kames 

Capital II
JPM Infra

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Kames 

Capital IL
IFM Infra KKR Infra

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

Aviva
Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Excess Return 0.8 -0.3 -1.7 -1.8 -4.8 -0.7 -1.5 0.6 0.9 -0.1 6.7 13.5 -2.4 -2.7 1.0 -9.6 4.0 -1.8 2.6

Portfolio Return 13.6 4.3 0.9 0.8 -2.2 2.0 1.1 3.2 6.6 6.3 11.4 18.3 2.3 2.0 22.3 12.7 9.0 -1.8 3.3

Benchmark Return 12.8 4.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 5.6 6.4 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 21.3 22.3 5.0 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 25.7 9.8 0.7 2.5 5.0 0.7 0.9 15.9 7.4 1.8 1.1 2.4 3.2 43.7 5.0 24.5 0.0 1.2

Portfolio End 100.0 24.9 8.9 0.7 2.2 4.5 0.6 1.0 16.0 7.2 2.3 1.4 2.1 3.0 46.6 4.9 22.6 0.0 1.0

Benchmark Start 100.0 24.5 10.0 0.8 2.5 5.1 0.7 0.9 14.5 7.5 1.7 1.1 2.2 2.0 46.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 26.5 10.0 0.8 2.7 5.0 0.5 1.0 16.5 7.5 1.5 1.5 3.0 3.0 44.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 0.8 -0.1 -0.2 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.2 -0.4 1.1-0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 -0.1

Asset Allocation 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.0

-0.1 -0.1

0.0 0.1 0.0 0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Stock Selection 0.7 -0.1 -0.3 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.2

0.0 -0.10.1 0.10.0 0.0

0.0-0.1 -0.1 0.2 -0.5 1.0 0.00.0 0.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

10

159



Market Value: £4.6bn

Attribution to Total Alternative Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 31st December 2019

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Alternativ

es

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

Ruffer Pictet
EnTrust 

Permal

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

JPM 

Global 

Credit

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

M&G DOF

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

Infracapital
Aberdeen 

Standard

Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 0.8 4.0 6.9 16.1 4.9 3.6 -6.9 0.3 -0.5 3.2 0.5 1.8 1.6 0.8 -2.2 5.1 1.0 -9.6 -0.3 -1.8 2.6

Portfolio Return 13.6 9.0 11.7 20.9 9.6 8.4 -2.2 5.8 6.8 7.9 5.2 7.9 6.3 8.3 5.3 6.9 22.3 12.7 4.3 -1.8 3.3

Benchmark Return 12.8 5.0 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 5.4 7.3 4.7 4.7 6.1 4.7 7.5 7.5 1.8 21.3 22.3 4.6 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 24.5 11.8 3.0 6.0 2.8 0.0 9.3 2.6 0.6 6.1 3.4 1.8 1.2 0.3 0.1 43.7 5.0 25.7 0.0 1.2

Portfolio End 100.0 22.6 10.5 3.1 3.7 3.7 0.0 8.0 2.5 0.6 4.9 4.1 2.1 1.1 0.4 0.4 46.6 4.9 24.9 0.0 1.0

Benchmark Start 100.0 25.5 13.0 3.3 6.6 3.1 0.0 10.0 2.5 0.7 6.8 2.5 1.3 0.9 0.2 0.1 46.0 4.0 24.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 25.5 11.4 3.4 4.0 4.0 0.0 10.0 2.5 0.5 7.0 4.1 2.1 1.0 0.5 0.5 44.0 4.0 26.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 0.8 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 -0.4 -0.1 0.0 -0.1

Asset Allocation 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 -0.1

Stock Selection 0.7 1.0 0.9 0.5 0.00.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 -0.5 -0.1 0.0 0.00.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

1.2

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

11

160



Market Value: £4.6bn

#

0.7

0.0

0.0

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Net)

-2.4

20.2

22.5

98.7

100.0

97.0

-2.4

97.4

4.3 2.3

Total Fund 

Net

Total Fund 

Gross
Total Equity

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Benchmark Return

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Total Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Total 

Alternatives

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Total Other 

Opportuniti

es

Millennium 

Currency
Cash

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 0.8 2.3 0.7 -1.7 3.8 -3.0 -6.9 -1.9 10.6 -3.3 2.5

Portfolio Return 22.6 24.0 33.7 28.0 38.7 18.5 23.7 15.4 11.0 7.3 11.9 24.9 -3.3 4.1

21.7 21.7 32.9 29.7 34.4 16.2 23.0 11.5 14.0 14.3 13.8 14.3 0.0 1.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 100.0 52.0 50.7 3.9 20.0 8.6 11.4 21.4 12.4 6.2 2.8

8.0 4.1 0.0

0.1 2.7

Portfolio End 100.0 100.0 46.6 44.0

24.5 10.0

16.0 22.6 10.54.9 24.9 8.9

25.5 13.0

16.5 25.5

0.0

1.0

Benchmark Start 100.0 100.0 46.0 46.0 4.0 10.0 2.5 0.014.5

Benchmark End 100.0 100.0 44.0 41.0 4.0 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

Excess Return 0.8 2.3 2.0 -0.7 0.2

26.5

-1.0

0.1

0.0

4.1

0.4

11.4 10.0

-0.1

10.0

0.0 -0.5

Asset Allocation 0.0 0.0 -0.2 -0.2

0.6 0.0 0.7

0.2

0.0 -0.1 0.1 0.20.0

-0.6

0.2

0.1 0.0 -0.5

Stock Selection 0.0 2.3 2.2 -0.5

98.7

97.4

0.6 0.0 0.00.0 0.6 -0.8 -0.9 -0.1

100.0

97.0

-1.0

-0.5

-0.5

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis - Unannualised

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 31st December 2019

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Gross)

-1.0

21.6

22.5

-2.4

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

-2.4

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

%%

-6.0

-3.0

0.0

3.0

6.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

-2.4

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

%%%% %%

12

161



Market Value: £4.6bn

L&G - 

North 

American 

Equity

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Equity

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

Total 

Passive 

Equity - 

L&G

L&G - UK 

Equity

Millenni

um 

Currenc

y

L&G 

Pacific ex 

Japan 

Equity

L&G - 

EMM 

Equity

Kleinwort 

Benson - 

Global

Kempen - 

Global

Delawar

e EMM

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

LGPSC - 

Global

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total 

Real 

Income

Total 

Alternati

ves

-7.4 -0.2-3.4

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 2.3 0.7 -1.7 0.2 1.5 0.3 -0.1

34.3 21.4

87.9 4.3 2.3 -3.00.1 -0.4 -2.1 -3.3

1.09.6

-3.3 2.5

Portfolio Return 24.0 33.7 28.0 28.5 23.5

21.5

87.9 38.7 18.5 11.024.6 24.6 28.9 -0.2 11.6

13.0

-3.3 4.1

Benchmark Return 21.7 32.9 29.7 28.3 22.0 34.0 0.0 34.4 16.2 14.024.5 24.9 31.0 3.1 19.0 1.1 0.0 1.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 52.0 50.7 38.7 8.3 15.3

13.0

3.7 1.3 3.9 20.03.2 6.4 3.1 2.3 4.7

Portfolio End 100.0 46.6 44.0 33.1 7.5 0.0 0.08.2

21.4 0.1 2.73.60.0

4.0 0.0

7.5 13.2

0.0 1.2 4.9 24.92.6 5.5 2.6 1.9

3.50.0

22.6 0.0 1.0

Benchmark Start 100.0 46.0 46.0 34.3

13.0

3.7 0.0 4.0 24.52.8 5.7 2.8 2.3 4.5

8.0

25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 44.0 41.0 32.0 7.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 26.52.5 5.0 2.5 2.0 0.0 0.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 2.3 2.0 -0.7 0.0 0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0-0.3

Asset Allocation 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 0.0

0.6 -0.6 0.0 -0.5-0.4 0.0 2.7 0.2

-0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.0

Stock Selection 2.3 2.2 -0.5 0.1 -0.3 -0.3

0.0 0.2 0.0 -0.50.0 0.0 0.00.0

0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 -0.8 0.0 0.00.0 -0.3 0.0 2.7 0.2

LGPSC - 

EMM

-6.3

12.7

19.0

0.0

Transitio

n Fund

6.4

35.4

28.9

0.0

Attribution to Total Equity Fund Excess Return Analysis - Unannualised

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 31st December 2019

0.0

4.0

-0.3

0.0

-0.3

0.0

0.0

0.2

-0.1

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

-6.0

-3.0

0.0

3.0

6.0

-1.4

0.0

1.4

2.8

-1.4

0.0

1.4

2.8

-1.4

0.0

1.4

2.8

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

13

162



Market Value: £4.6bn

Attribution to Total Real Income Fund Excess Return Analysis - Unannualised

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 31st December 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

Total 

Alternativ

es

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Kames 

Capital 

Kames 

Capital II
JPM Infra

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Kames 

Capital IL
IFM Infra KKR Infra

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

Aviva
Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Excess Return 2.3 2.3 0.7 0.2 -6.7 4.9 -0.4 -3.6 3.8 2.0 35.5 34.6 -8.2 -12.0 0.7 4.3 -3.0 -3.3 2.5

Portfolio Return 24.0 18.5 23.7 23.1 16.3 27.9 22.6 19.4 15.4 10.6 49.8 48.9 6.0 2.3 33.7 38.7 11.0 -3.3 4.1

Benchmark Return 21.7 16.2 23.0 23.0 23.0 23.0 23.0 23.0 11.5 8.6 14.3 14.3 14.3 14.3 32.9 34.4 14.0 0.0 1.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 20.0 8.6 0.6 2.6 4.6 0.7 0.1 11.4 4.9 1.4 1.1 1.9 2.1 52.0 3.9 21.4 0.1 2.7

Portfolio End 100.0 24.9 8.9 0.7 2.2 4.5 0.6 1.0 16.0 7.2 2.3 1.4 2.1 3.0 46.6 4.9 22.6 0.0 1.0

Benchmark Start 100.0 24.5 10.0 0.7 3.0 5.4 0.8 0.1 14.5 7.5 1.6 1.3 2.2 2.0 46.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 26.5 10.0 0.8 2.7 5.0 0.5 1.0 16.5 7.5 1.5 1.5 3.0 3.0 44.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 2.3 0.6 0.0 0.0 -0.2 -0.3 2.0 0.2 -0.60.2 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.1 0.5 0.0 -0.5

Asset Allocation 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0

0.5 -0.1

-0.1 0.2

0.0 0.1 0.0 -0.2-0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1

Stock Selection 2.3 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.1 0.5 0.4

0.0 -0.50.0 0.20.0 0.0

0.0-0.2 -0.3 2.2 0.2 -0.8 0.00.0 0.0

-12.0

-6.0

0.0

6.0

12.0

-6.0

-3.0

0.0

3.0

6.0

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

14

163



Market Value: £4.6bn

Attribution to Total Alternative Fund Excess Return Analysis - Unannualised

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 31st December 2019

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Alternativ

es

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

Ruffer Pictet
EnTrust 

Permal

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

JPM 

Global 

Credit

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

M&G DOF

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

Infracapital
Aberdeen 

Standard

Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 2.3 -3.0 -6.9 -6.6 -6.1 -6.8 -49.6 -1.9 -0.3 -4.5 -1.5 10.6 -1.3 18.9 17.1 5.1 0.7 4.3 2.3 -3.3 2.5

Portfolio Return 24.0 11.0 7.3 7.7 8.2 7.5 -35.3 11.9 11.1 9.8 12.8 24.9 12.9 29.1 27.3 6.9 33.7 38.7 18.5 -3.3 4.1

Benchmark Return 21.7 14.0 14.3 14.3 14.3 14.3 14.3 13.8 11.5 14.3 14.3 14.3 14.3 10.2 10.2 1.8 32.9 34.4 16.2 0.0 1.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 21.4 12.4 3.4 6.5 2.5 0.0 6.2 2.7 0.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 52.0 3.9 20.0 0.1 2.7

Portfolio End 100.0 22.6 10.5 3.1 3.7 3.7 0.0 8.0 2.5 0.6 4.9 4.1 2.1 1.1 0.4 0.4 46.6 4.9 24.9 0.0 1.0

Benchmark Start 100.0 25.5 13.0 3.5 6.8 2.7 0.0 10.0 2.5 1.5 6.0 2.5 2.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 46.0 4.0 24.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 25.5 11.4 3.4 4.0 4.0 0.0 10.0 2.5 0.5 7.0 4.1 2.1 1.0 0.5 0.5 44.0 4.0 26.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 2.3 -0.6 -1.0 -0.2 -0.6 -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.2 0.6 0.0 -0.5

Asset Allocation 0.0 0.2 -0.1 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.5

Stock Selection 2.3 -0.8 -0.9 -0.2 0.0-0.5 -0.2 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.2 0.6 0.0 0.0-0.1 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0

-24.0

-12.0

0.0

12.0

24.0

-6.0

-3.0

0.0

3.0

6.0

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

-1.2

0.0

1.2

2.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

15

164



Market Value: £4.6bn

2,140.7

2,086.7

1,522.3

345.6

598.1

120.8

252.5

118.2

87.1

378.6

185.8

54.0

226.4

1,143.9

409.3

30.4

99.3

207.0

25.3

47.2

734.7

329.5

105.4

65.9

95.7

138.1

1,092.4

481.5

144.3

168.4

168.6

0.2

424.0

113.8

28.4

281.9

187.0

97.6

50.7

18.3

20.4

0.7

44.9

4,595.0

4,649.0

4,595.0

4,649.0

CLIENT SPECIFIC:

7.00% FTSE All Share

6.50% FTSE AW North America 70% GBP Hedged 

6.50% FTSE RAFI AW 3000 North America 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE RAFI 3000 Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE AW Japan 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex Japan 50% GBP Hedged 32.00% Libor 1 Month +4%

10.00% IPD UK Monthly Property Index

2.50% Ashmore Specific Index

7.50% FTSE All Stocks Index Linked

6.00% MSCI EMM 50% GBP Hedged

8.00% FTSE All World 70% GBP Hedged

4.00% FTSE All World

0.510.1 9.6-0.5 6.3 7.0 -0.7-0.5 6.7 6.6 0.1 11.6 12.1Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 98.8 0.3 0.7

18.9 20.1 13.4 13.7 -0.3Client Weighted Index Mar-16 44.9 2.1 2.0 0.2

10.4 9.4 1.00.213.2 12.8 0.4 7.0 6.8

10.8 9.4 1.4

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 1.5 1.3 0.2

13.6 12.8 0.8 7.4 6.8 0.7Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Gross) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 1.6 1.3

4.14.6 -3.80.3 3.5 -3.2 2.0 4.7 -2.7

13.5 14.2

Mar-16 3.0 -2.3 1.2 -3.4

7.4 7.4 0.1

1.4 12.7 17.2 3.5 13.7 18.3

0.3-1.1 1.1 2.6 -1.5 7.3 7.0

6.9 7.3 -0.4

Kames Capital Property Fund IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16 0.5 -0.2 1.1 2.1

3.2 2.6 0.6 6.6 7.0 -0.5

6.8 3.5

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Nov-16 1.0 0.7 -0.5 2.3 2.1 0.2

10.35.6 0.9 4.9 3.7 1.2

7.3

15.8 -3.5 -3.3 -0.2 3.3 2.2 1.0

1.2 0.5 0.63.3 0.7 2.6 1.4 0.5 0.82.2 0.2 2.1 3.1 0.5 2.6Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16

Apr-18

None

1.0

6.1

4.0

Dec-13 0.0

LIBOR 1 MonthCash Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Client Weighted Index

Millennium Currency Fund

Client Weighted Index

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Total Property Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

11.6

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Total Other Opportunities Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

12.7

18.3 0.0 0.0

-0.1

Total Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

-1.0

1.3

5.4 0.9 0.9 0.0 10.4

6.0

-0.1

6.9

0.2

-0.5

6.0

7.3 0.4

10.2 0.1

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 0.2

7.7

8.7 0.18.732.7 1.9 1.8

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 46.0 4.8 3.5 12.4 10.0

20.3

14.310.2

-1.2

22.3

20.4

8.6 9.0

10.7

10.1 10.3 -0.2

21.3 1.0

0.1

4.7 4.7 -0.1

0.5

9.9

0.0

0.0

10.5

-1.3

-3.2

-1.1

-1.41.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

Apr-07

1.2 -0.3

1.2Mar-16

2.1 -1.2

0.8

-1.7

-0.5

1.2 -2.9

FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex. Japan Index

0.0

Mar-13 0.6 0.6

0.2

Dec-13

FTSE All World Index

ERBMPF

20.4

6.3

10.4 0.1

1.7

7.2

10.4

1.20.8

25.0 25.0

9.7

9.9

12.9

19.2

BM

8.9

0.0 14.9

0.0

0.1

PF

10.30.0

6.7

7.4

1.9

2.5

Dec-13

Client Specific Index

LIBOR 1 Month

Client Specific Index

Dec-13

12.9

FTSE All Share Index

2.1 -0.5 1.2

2.2 1.54.9

8.8 1.2

-2.224.6

-0.5

-1.6

1.2

0.8 1.2

1.2

0.1

1.2

0.2

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

13.9

-2.1

0.0

0.7

Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

Dec-13

Mar-18

11.612.3

4.5

Client Weighted Index

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.7

Jun-16

-0.4

-1.1

0.6

286.7142.4

12.9

0.8

0.8 12.7

2.1

-1.3

2.3

0.8

1.4

2.3

-2.6

-1.0

0.82.1

-0.5

-0.6

0.9

-1.7

0.0

-1.2

2.1

2.6 -1.8

0.9

4.3

-4.8

-1.7

-2.2

56.4

7.0

10.4 1.2

QTR

BM ERPF

Year To Date

ER

1 Year 3 Year

1.3

Benchmark
Incep

Date

Weight 

%

Market 

Value 

(£m)

PF BM ER

4.1

1.1

FTSE All World Japan Index 2.6

Dec-13

0.2

4.0

Dec-13

MSCI Emerging Markets Index

22.3

0.7

-9.6 11.5

4.7 4.2

286.0

8.8

7.6

1.1

0.5 55.8

18.3

15.6 -0.69.4

7.6

14.3 1.3

-0.1

14.8 0.0 0.0

12.9

6.7

7.6

7.4

-1.9

0.4

5.2 7.0

7.2

2.6

-0.3

0.1

4.6

7.0

2.6

8.48.3

ER

0.0

0.3

1.3

13.4

8.6

0.0

-0.1

8.2 7.8

9.0

0.4

10.310.3

PF BM

12.9

0.1

6.5 0.16.6

14.9

0.916.0

0.5 13.614.2

13.0 -3.4

Since Inception

6.1 6.0 0.0

14.9

13.3

15.0

Dec-13

10.8

5.0

142.9 0.5Mar-16 0.2 183.8184.0

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Sep-15

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

2.3

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

3.1

3.6

3.6

0.0

Apr-15 0.6

Client Weighted Index

1.2

-1.6

FTSE All Stocks Index Linked Index Dec-13 7.1

0.0 1.2 -1.2

2.6

11.02.8

2.0 7.0-0.7 1.5

6.6

7.0

-8.5 -0.10.0

8.5

3.4

3.8-0.82.1

0.8 11.5

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund 0.40.6-8.5

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund 11.4 4.7 6.7 14.4

9.6

10.0 3.5 6.4

6.3 -0.10.4 0.5 6.4

4.7

2.0

9.94.6

4.6

9.516.0 6.5

10.5

-2.4

16.1

4.0

3.5 11.7 6.9

-0.2

2.0 9.0 5.0

2.9

4.7 3.5 1.1

3.4 3.5

12.3 3.5 8.8

3.7

6.7 3.5 3.1

2.3 4.7

20.9 4.7

6.4

4.7

3.5

4.7 3.6

-2.2 4.7 -6.9

4.7

4.6 -2.6

2.5 4.6 -2.0

2.7 4.6 -1.9

0.8

4.6 -1.43.2

3.6 3.7 -0.1

16.2

4.5 4.5 -0.1

20.8 4.5

4.5 -0.4

7.9

5.6 4.9 0.7

Manager Summary-Total Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Period Ended 31st December 2019

4.5 3.4

4.5 0.14.6

3.6 3.5 0.1 7.9 4.7 3.2

1.1 1.2 -0.1 3.4 3.5 -0.1 5.2 4.14.7 0.5 4.5 4.5 -0.14.6 -0.5

-1.6 1.5 -3.1 6.3 4.5 1.7 7.9 6.1 1.8

3.9 4.1LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 2.1 -3.2 1.2 -4.3

Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 1.1 -3.0 1.8

4.6

7.5 0.8

3.5 8.2 4.5 3.7-0.4

-4.8 7.7 5.6 2.2 8.3

0.4 6.3 4.7 1.6

13.1 7.5 5.6

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Nov-17 0.4 1.3 1.8 -0.5 4.2 5.6

5.1

-1.4 5.3 7.5

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 0.4 6.9 1.8

13.1 7.5 5.6-2.2

2.4

0.0 -0.4 -1.3 0.0 -1.3 0.0 0.0-1.8 -1.1 0.0 -1.1 0.20.2-1.8

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 23.5 -0.5 0.6 5.7

Apr-16 9.1

-0.4

3.6 4.5 -0.9

-0.6 -0.2

7.1 3.5

-0.4 5.8

Total Targeted Return Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Apr-16 10.4 -0.1

2.4

9.6 4.9

8.4

0.3 6.83.5

3.4

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund LCC - Ashmore EMM Debt Jan-14 2.4 -3.9 -4.2 5.2 4.2

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund FTSE All World Index Feb-19 8.1 2.4 1.5

5.0 -1.5 7.3 -0.5

4.0 -0.6 5.4 0.3

7.0

9.4

4.6 -2.1

9.6

Mar-16 98.8 0.4 0.7 -0.4 7.0

-0.1

0.4 12.0 12.1

0.2 8.0 6.7 1.3

6.6

Total Fund Benchmark

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Gross)

Net & Gross - Currently we have not received all the necessary manager data to complete this, therefore please use with caution. If you require additional information 

please contact us.

10.6Client Weighted Index

Notes:  

L&G may measure their funds versus different benchmarks     .  

9.6 1.0-0.3

7.8 6.7 1.0

-0.1 6.7

LGPSC Central Emerging Market Active fund FTSE All World Emerging Markets Index Jul-19 4.0 3.7 4.0 -0.3

Q1 2019: Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund & Kempen Global Equity Fund transferred to the LGPS Global Active Equity Fund as at 15th February 2019.

Adams Street: Data is on a 4 month lag therefore we have used the Q3 2019 data.

Catapult: Data is on a quarterly lag therefore we have used the Q3 2019 data.

JP Morgan: Lagged by 1 quarter due while awaiting data.

Christofferson & Entrust have been lagged by 1 month wile awaiting data 

-0.2 0.7 -0.8

PF = Portfolio Return     BM = Benchmark Return     ER = Excess Return  

16

165



Total Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund

LGPS Central Emerging Market Active Equity Fund

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Total Property Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Kames Capital Property Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

Total Targeted Return Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Total Other Opportunities Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund

Millennium Currency Fund

Cash Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

4,594,991 98.8 100.04,532,991 99.2 -0.9

0.0

30th September 2019

-0.7

-0.4

0.2

-0.1

-0.3

0.0

0.2

0.0

0.4

-1.6

0.1

-1.8

-0.9

0.1

-1.8

0.4

-0.1

100.0

-0.1

0.0

1.0

-2.1

-1.5

-1.0

-0.1

-0.5

-0.5

31st December 2019

Net Exp

(%)

1.8

1.0

0.9

2,086,697

Net Exp

(%)

2.6

0.0

0.1

-0.1

0.0

-2.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

-2.9

-0.9

-0.3

-0.3

-0.3

0.1

-0.5

-0.3

0.8

-0.1

-0.9

-1.6

-1.1

-0.2

-0.5

-0.5

0.0

1.1

0.5

0.0

0.1

0.5

0.1

-0.1

12.9

1.2

0.9

5.4

4.9

0.2

4.0 -0.1

2.6

1.1

281,853

186,985

2.1

1.444.9

18,258 0.4

6.1

0.8

0.2

1.8

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.2

54,288 1.2 50,688

234,539 5.1

84,240 1.8 97,606

1.0

-1,664 0.0

4.0

18,289 0.4

172,782 3.8

23,349 0.5

15,964 0.3

44,9190.5

665

20,433 0.4

0.0

0.628,353 0.6 28,3530.1

9.1

118,764 2.6 113,751 2.4

381,656 8.3

190,284 4.2

4.4199,606 0.4

423,957

481,477

168,406

166 0.0

147,651 3.2

169 0.0

734,686-0.5

0.2

47,206

26,081 0.6 0.0

0.1

25,318

226,350

252,462

Total Fund Reconciliation

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st December 2019
Market Value: £4.6bn

Market Val Exposure

1,493,841 32.7

(£000s)

1,522,268

326,973 7.2

13.0

2,082,054

594,813

2,043,378

5.5

0.1

-0.2

(%)

45.5

44.7

1.2

2.5118,214

87,132

8.1

7.4345,561

120,802

598,097

2,140,664 46.0

32.7

(%)

Market Val

(£000s)

Exposure

250,823

120,501 2.6

83,168

370,157 8.1

117,563 2.6

100.04,648,958

1,143,941 24.6

1.9

8.8

4,571,667 100.0

4.9

0.938,676

99,275

409,256

53,967

410,134

25.2

30,177 0.7

0.9

9.0

1,151,864

223,917

1.9

0.7

4.5

99,755 2.2

360,204 7.9

4.5

47,516 1.0

1.2 -0.4

741,730 16.2

87,900

206,605

65,928

0.5

1.0

55,820

95,670 2.1

2.3

23.91,092,148

142,135 3.1

3.1144,279

537,710 11.8 10.4

168,627

1,092,418

3.6

3.6

2.1

185,803

95,670 2.1

23.5

329,534

179,379 3.9 -0.1

378,627

1.4

138,115 3.0

30,412

15.8

7.1

207,045

105,438

17

166



 

1 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

 

 

ISSUE 8        December 2019 

FOR PROFESSIONAL 
CLIENTS ONLY 

167

ctuohy_4
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



 

2 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

Introduction  

Welcome to the 8th Edition of our LGPS Central Limited (“LGPSC”) Tactical Asset Allocation (“TAA”) Report. 

We see this report being used for short to medium term overlays over your strategic asset allocation to take advantage 
of current market conditions by refining your asset weights within your long-term allocation bands.   

Summary of Strategy Thoughts 

The last 12 months has seen good returns from Growth Assets led by a very strong Q4 from equity markets. Stabilising 
assets saw modest returns through the year after a disappointing Q4. Income assets have performed well except for 
Property which has suffered from the poor performance in retail. Sterling saw a strong rally in Q4 (+7.9% versus the US 
Dollar) as a result of the UK general election and the Brexit votes. This has meant that unhedged overseas investments 
will have seen a setback in sterling-based returns. 

Global Growth has been slowing (3% Global GDP expected in Q4 2019 from 3.6% long term average) all year on the back 
of trade growth and political uncertainty. Monetary policy is expected to remain stable, but we are seeing expansionary 
fiscal policy from the UK, US and China. We expect growth to stabilise at current levels, with the risk of a recession 
appearing to recede with temporary resolutions to the global trade wars, Brexit certainty and accommodative fiscal and 
monetary policy. 

LGPSC prefers Income Assets over Growth Assets preferring to remain underweight in Stabilising Assets. Growth Assets 
have been downgraded to neutral after the very strong returns in Q4.  Within Equities we favour UK, Asia Pac and Japanese 
equities and move to a significant underweight position in US Equities. Index-Linked remain underweight, Gilts move to 
neutral and US bonds remain at overweight within Stabilising Assets.  Within Equity Factors the only change is that the 
Quality/ESG factor has moved from neutral to overweight and Low Risk moved from overweight to 
underweight.  Infrastructure and Emerging Market Debt remain our favoured investments in Income Assets, though 
Property has moved from underweight to neutral. 

Our views on currency remain the same favouring Sterling against the Euro and Yen with the US dollar expected to be 
weakest.  Hedging foreign currency assets back to Sterling is something LGPSC continues to support in the current market 
environment.  

In this edition of the TAA report we have added a special feature from Ann-Marie Patterson on “Emerging Market Debt”. 
The quarterly update on Responsible Investing will be shared with you separately next week. 

Please read on for a more detailed analysis of our views. 

Jason Fletcher, 

 Chief Investment Officer 

 

 

CIO SUMMARY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168



 

3 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED’S VIEW ON WEIGHTINGS  
 
The following table gives a summary of our view on the 6-18 months tactical positioning horizon. 
 
Table1: Weightings 

 Significant Underweight Underweight Neutral Overweight Significant Overweight 

Estimated Probability 80-70% 70-65% 55-45% 70-65% 70-80% 

BROAD ASSET CLASS  Stabilising Growth Income  

GROWTH ASSET CLASS 

 
US Equities,   

 Private Equity 
 

GEM Equities  
 

UK Equities, 
EU Equities 

Commodities, 
Asia Pac Equities 

Japan Equities 

INCOME ASSETS  Credit 
Property, 
 EM Debt Infrastructure  

STABILISING ASSETS JP Bonds 
Index-Linked, 

 EU Bonds, 
 IG Bonds 

UK Bonds Gold US Bonds 

INVESTMENT STYLES  Low Volatility Size Growth 
Momentum,  

Value, 
 Quality/ESG 

  

CURRENCIES 
 

 US Dollar Euro, 
 Yen  GBP   

 

 

 

 

  

LGPSC’s view on “Weightings”: 
 LGPSC remains Underweight in Stabilising Assets and Overweight in Income Assets but downgrades Growth Assets from Overweight to Neutral.  
 Growth Assets retain a positive sentiment, however recent valuations look more expensive, hence LGPSC moves to a neutral position. 
 Stabilising Assets have done well. LGPSC’s outlook remains cautious on those but notes that they can provide downside protection in times of recession. 
 LGPSC prefers exposure to Income Assets as an alternative as Stabilising Assets where yields and expected returns will combine with a low correlation to those 

riskier Growth Assets. 
 

      Upgraded      Downgraded compared to previous quarter 

169



 

4 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

Source: Bloomberg Note: listed proxies have been used for Infrastructure, Property and Private Equity 

Source: Bloomberg (NB: assumes dividends were reinvested),  Note: Listed proxies have been used for Infrastructure, Property and Private Equity. 

 

BROAD ASSET CLASSES 
Table 2: Growth/Income/Stabilising Assets  

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

GROWTH 0 Neutral 
Downgraded from Overweight to Neutral mainly based on 

expensive valuations and increased market risk. Sentiment remains 
positive 

INCOME 2 Overweight 
Remains safe income in economic downturn, valuation looking 

attractive and positive sentiment 

STABILISING -1 Underweight 
Reiterate Low/Negative expected return, remains expensive, but 

could provide protection in a recession 
 
Table 3: Historical Annualised Returns in local currency (* except for the 3 months, where total return is used) 

 
3 months* One year Three years Five years Ten years 

Twenty 
years Bloomberg Ticker 

GLOBAL EQUITIES  9.3% 27.2% 13.0% 9.1% 9.4% 4.9% FTAW01 Index 

PRIVATE EQUITY 9.7% 39.3% 13.0% 15.0% 14.0% na IPRV LN Index 

PROPERTY 7.8% 28.7% 10.3% 8.5% 12.5% 11.8% REIT INDEX 

INFRASTRUCTURE 5.7% 26.9% 11.3% 6.5% 7.8% na SPGTIND Index 

HIGH YIELD 5.1% 13.4% 6.3% 7.0% 10.3% 10.1% HL00 Index 

UK GILTS 2.2% 7.3% 3.2% 4.1% 5.7% 5.6% G0L0 Index 

UK INDEX-LINKED -1.5% 6.5% 2.8% 6.1% 7.9% 6.6% G0LI Index 

GOLD 3.1% 13.9% 7.2% 8.6% 5.4% 10.0% XAUGBP Curncy 
 
 
Table 4: Correlation Matrix (5 year historical correlation) 

 FTSE All 
World AW 

TR GBP 

iShares 
Listed 

Private 
DJ REIT 

S&P 
Global 
Infra 

Sterling 
High-Yield UK Gilt UK Inf-Link 

Gilt 
XAUGBP 

Index 

GLOBAL EQUITIES 1 0.624 0.530 0.750 0.522 -0.222 -0.145 -0.253 

PRIVATE EQUITY   1 0.364 0.445 0.428 -0.133 -0.074 0.049 

PROPERTY   0.815 1 0.673 0.217 0.274 0.209 0.080 

INFRASTRUCTURE   0.033 0.029 1 0.431 0.096 0.097 0.033 

HIGH YIELD 0.778 0.058 0.082 0.418 1 -0.037 -0.042 -0.203 

UK GILTS 0.617 -0.16 -0.09 0.353 0.455 1 0.827 0.476 

UK INDEX-LINKED 0.525 0.267 0.203 0.218 0.657 0.31 1 0.406 

GOLD -0.231 0.407 0.349 -0.11 0.004 0.05 0.085 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
1 Refers to LGPSC model as described on page 7  

LGPSC’s view on Broad Asset Classes: 
 LGPSC favours Income Assets due to significant attractive valuations, mixed economic outlook and mixed 

signal as to where we are in the economic cycle. Growth Assets moved from Overweight to Neutral due to 
valuations looking more expensive and an increased market risk.  

 Equity markets have continued to rally towards the end of the year. Most asset classes have seen good returns 
above inflation over the last three, five, ten and twenty years.  

 Commodities and Gold provide good diversification against equity markets and could be added as a diversifier 
to any portfolios.  

 Fixed Income can be allocated to the portfolio for the same reason, but we remain underweight, given its 
poor valuation, low expected returns and LGPSC favours Income Assets. 

 

170



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

5 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

GROWTH ASSET VIEW 
Table 5: Growth Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

UK Equities 1 Overweight 
Good dividend yields, positive sentiment, neutral valuation and 

market risk has improved 

NORTH AMERICA 
Equities -6 Underweight 

Expensive valuations remain and economic risk is elevated 
compared to other geographies. Sentiment has turned more 

negative 

EUROPE Equities  2 Overweight 
No change, good dividend yields, neutral valuations, and improving 

sentiment, economic outlook is neutral 

JAPAN Equities 3 Overweight 
Less positive valuations, positive signal from trade deal, and 

economic outlook strong lead to less strong Overweight 

ASIA PAC Equities 1 Overweight 
No change, economic growth potential, sentiment now neutral but 

less overshadowed by fears of trade war  

GEMs Equities -1 Underweight 
Mixed picture remains unchanged, sentiment is back to neutral, 
economic growth concerns have improved, relatively expensive 

valuation 

PRIVATE EQUITY -4 Underweight 
High investment cost, long-term economic outlook uncertainty, we 

recommend selective positioning in quality and stable companies 

COMMODITIES 1 Overweight Neutral sentiment and exposure to weakening dollar but provides 
no yield 

 

 

 

 

 

 
INCOME ASSET VIEW 
Table 6: Income Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

CREDIT -2 Underweight 
Beneficiary of stable economy but, valuations have 

worsened, and sentiment remains negative 

EMERGING MARKET 
DEBT 

0 Neutral 
Economic play remains strong, and valuation has turned 

slightly expensive, sentiment remains neutral 

PROPERTY 0 Neutral 
Relative value, inflation protection, sentiment remains 

negative and high investment costs. UK property market 
outlook is better post-election. 

INFRASTRUCTURE 2 Overweight 
Relative value, inflation protection, neutral sentiment but 

high investment costs, Renewables & sustainable exposure 
is a positive for Infrastructure 

 

 

 

 

 

LGPSC’s view on Growth Assets: 
 The main change across Growth Assets is more expensive valuations which has changed the model weight 

for most Growth Assets.  Overall Growth Assets are now Neutral compared to Overweight from the previous 
quarter.  

 Only North America has worsened further mainly due to expensive valuations, negative sentiment and 
uncertainty on the economic cycle. 

 Japan is still the favoured equity market, scoring highest albeit with a lower score than the previous quarter 
as sentiment has turned neutral and valuations look less attractive. 

LGPSC’s view on Income Assets: 
 Income Assets are LGPSC’s favoured Asset Class for this quarter. Emerging market debt view changed to 

Neutral mainly due to more expensive looking valuations.  
 Property is upgraded by a further notch to Neutral due to reduced market risk after the General Election, 

and Infrastructure remains Overweight. 
 

171



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

6 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

STABILISING ASSET VIEW 
Table 7: Stabilising Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

UK BONDS 0 Neutral 
UK bonds outlook improved mainly due to outcome of 

General Election and are now rated neutral 

INDEX-LINKED -2 Underweight 
Unchanged, due to negative expected return and concern 

about long duration/interest rate leverage 

US BONDS 3 Overweight 
Based on uncertain economic outlook score has improved 

and is now our favoured region for Government Bonds. Fair 
value and low market risk are supportive 

JP BONDS -4 Underweight 
Unchanged, poor valuation and negative impact of 

Japanese economic cycle, in addition to currency risk 

EU BONDS -1 Underweight 
Slight improvement but remains underweight due to 

unattractive valuation, economic outlook and sentiment 

IG CORPORATE BONDS -1 Underweight 
Corp spreads neutral and anchored to Government Bond 

yields, but sentiment turned negative 

GOLD 1 Overweight 
Favoured Stabilising Asset, when we do not like other 
Stabilising Assets, but so current sentiment negative 

 

 

 

 

 

 
INVESTMENT FACTORS (EQUITIES) 
Factor Based investing provides a way of potentially adding outperformance relative to a market-cap-based approach 
at a much lower cost than active investing. It recognises that the market-cap-based index does not provide the best 
risk-adjusted return for a portfolio given its natural overweight to momentum, large cap and expensive stocks. In the 
following factor model, we have taken the seven factors of value, growth, income growth, size (small cap), ESG, low 
volatility and momentum and then applied the same criteria we use to consider other asset classes in our model 
assessing each factor for valuation, sentiment, economic suitability, risk suitability, investment cost and currency. 
Investment cost in factor-based investing is low relative to the other asset classes, though the momentum factor 
(given their higher turnover) and ESG factors (given their higher index costs) are both scored neutral. Given all 
strategies are global, the currency scores are all neutral. Note that ESG and quality share similar characteristics. 
Climate change as a factor is little correlated to specific economic cycles given its long-term investment impact horizon 
of 10-20 years. The graph below summarises the preferred overweight factor(s) depending on the various stages of 
the economic cycle. 
Economic Cycle and Investment Factors: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 8: Investment Factors 

LGPSC’s view on Stabilising Assets: 
 LGPSC remains Underweight for most Stabilising Assets mainly based on the low/negative yields but 

recognises that they should represent a proportion of the portfolio given the downside protection they can 
offer. 

 However, most Government Bond Assets have received a higher model score due to better sentiment and 
lower market risk. US bonds remain LGPSC’s favourite bond market but are less confident in £ terms. In £ 
terms we would prefer UK gilts given the prospect of lower UK rates. 

 Gold offers good diversification and a safe haven in turbulent markets and protects against political and 
economic risks.  

Boom Slowdown Recession Recovery 

Positive 
economic 
growth 

Negative 
economic 
growth 

Growth 
Value 
Momentum 
Low Size 

Quality/ESG 
Low Volatility 

Growth 
Value 
Momentum 
Low Size 

Quality/ESG 
Low Volatility 

 Now 
Increased uncertainty 
where we are in the cycle 

172



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

7 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

FACTOR ASSET VIEW 
Table 7: Investment Factors 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

Value 1 Overweight 
Very attractive valuations, unloved, but economics now less 

favourable for value factor 

Growth 0 Neutral Poor sentiment and increased risks, score unchanged 

Size -2 Underweight 
Less negative score due to improved sentiment and 

uncertainty over the economic cycle 

Momentum 1 Overweight 
Overweight based on current attractive valuation and 

sentiment 

Low Volatility -3 Underweight 
Poor long-term performance and less attractive after recent 

market rally and lower sentiment 

Quality/ESG 2 Overweight 
Positioning in light of potential economic slowdown and 
protection against market declines, improved sentiment 

 

ABOUT LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED’S SCORING MODEL 
LGPSC’s model scores each asset class against its valuation, sentiment, economic outlook, market risk, currency and 
investment cost (scored between -2 and +2). Positive scores suggest strong overweight and negative scores, strong 
underweight positions. Where a zero is assigned, our view is neutral. The scores for the different assessment areas, 
e.g. valuation, sentiment etc. are then added to derive the final score for that asset class. We are constantly 
developing this scoring to include other variables such as ESG measures and technical factors.  
 
RECESSION WATCH 
Key indicators for a recession have stabilised over the last quarter with now providing a mixed picture 1) a positive 
yield curve, 2) stabilising employment and 3) the changing monetary environment in the UK. The amount of corporate 
debt is a worry in certain markets alongside EU banks’ non-performing loans. Chinese domestic corporate leverage is 
of concern and some areas of the high yield market could pose problems especially if rates were to rise more sharply 
than expected. Auto finance is also 
showing some signs of stress. The 12-
month recession probability indicator 
has strongly declined over the last 
quarter.   
 
LPGS Central Limited View –We see the 
likelihood of a recession as medium 
over the next 12 months. 2020 could 
mark the start of the next recession. 
 
 
 

LGPSC’s view on Investment Factors: 
 LGPSC’s view on Investment Factors changes slightly due to uncertainty over the economic cycle. 
 Our favourite factor changes from Value to Quality/ESG. LGPSC’s view is that Quality is best suited to address 

Climate Change risk. 
 Least favoured factor is now Low Volatility and no longer size, mainly due to a sentiment change carried by 

recent market rally. 
 

Source: Bloomberg 

173



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

8 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

Q4 LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED MARKET UPDATE2  
All major indices experienced a strong end to 2019, with Q4 figures showing the S&P 500 up 8.22%, the Nikkei 
225 up 8.74% and the FTSE 100 up 2.41% (all in local terms). The final quarter of 2019 also ended on a positive 
note for emerging markets indices, with the MSCI Ex Japan, up 10.66% and the Russian IMOEX index up 10.87%. 
The positive performance of Q4 echoed the year’s performance, with a number of both developed markets and 
emerging markets indices experiencing double-digit growth over 2019.  The strongest performers within the 
developed markets were the S&P 500 index which grew by 28.50%, the Euro Stoxx 50 by 24.89% and the Nikkei 
225 by 18.20% with the emerging market MSCI Ex Japan seeing a gain of 16.43% over the year. 

* 

The growth of equities was even more impressive given that global macroeconomic indicators deteriorated over 
the year showing signs of a global slowdown in trade and a prolonged dispute between the world’s two largest 
economies. The EU Area Manufacturing PMI over the course of 2019 pointed to contraction in manufacturing 
activity with a decline in new orders and an increase in job cuts not seen since 2013. In addition, throughout 
2019, the US and China imposed retaliatory tariffs on each other dampening investor sentiment periodically 
throughout the year. However, the easing of tensions between the two nations, contributed to a strong rally in 
global equities during the final month of Q4. 

* 

The Michigan Consumer Sentiment Index has shown a strong increase in consumer confidence in the US over 
the last ten years, with 2017 to 2019 showing an average index figure of 97.0, the second highest average on 
record since the 1997 to 2000 average when the figure was 105.3. The VIX average for Q4 was 14.02, slightly 
lower than the 15.43 average experienced throughout 2019, indicating that the final quarter of the year saw US 
equities experience less volatility than the year, further cementing the positive momentum of equities. 

* 

Politically 2019 was a turbulent year in the UK. The year started with the prime minister Theresa May failing on 
three occasions to pass through parliament the EU withdrawal agreement negotiated over two years. 
Subsequently, Theresa May resigned, and Boris Johnson won the Conservative party leadership contest and 
assumed the role of prime minister in July. Failing to pass a revised withdrawal agreement, Parliament agreed 
to call a General Election for December which saw a comfortable Conservative majority. The Conservative 
Government successfully passed the withdrawal agreement through the House of Commons and is now being 
debated through the House of Lords. This will end the first phase of the UK’s withdrawal from the European 
Union and allows for the second phase, which will be on trade negotiations and the UK’s future relationship with 
the EU. 

* 

Sterling and the FTSE reacted very positively to the Conservative victory. In quarter four, sterling rallied against 
the dollar, gaining 6.71% after the election and UK utilities and telecom equities performed strongly, as the 
threat of nationalisation under a Corbyn led Labour government subsided. The Conservative’s manifesto 
pledged to lower taxes on businesses and stated that there will be no raises in income tax, national insurance 
or VAT resulting in their manifesto being viewed as business friendly. 

* 

Q4 of 2019 continued the year-long positive trend for oil and gold, with both experiencing double digit gains of 
12.60% and 2.90% respectively. The major event in commodities last year was the flotation of the Saudi Arabian 

 
2 Performance for the quarter measured over period of 30/09/2019 to 31/12/2019 

174



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

9 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

state owned oil company Aramco on the Saudi stock exchange. The Saudi Government sought a valuation in 
excess of two trillion dollars, however given concerns about reliable figures on Saudi oil reserves, global 
decarbonisation trends, Middle East political instability and ESG concerns, Aramco was valued at $1.7 trillion. 
Oil prices increased last by 27.27% in 2019 owing to production cuts by OPEC, US sanctions on oil producers Iran 
and Venezuela and continued Middle East political instability. Gold prices also increased over the year gaining 
18.13% in value as investors grew concerned about the US-China trade dispute, geopolitical tensions and buying 
from central banks. 

* 

UK Bonds experienced a positive final quarter of 2019, due to political certainties following the general election. 
UK 10 Year Gilts and the UK Government 10 Year note saw growth of 38bps and 37bps respectively as investors 
backed the UK economy following the election defeat of Corbyn’s Labour party and the Conservative’s clear 
direction with regards to Brexit. Overall however, the bond markets performed poorly with 2019 experiencing 
the first yield curve inversion in US bonds since 2007. This is often seen as an indicator of a potential recession 
in the near term. US 10 Year Treasury experienced a 34.49% decline in value, though it did increase by 7.4bps in 
quarter four as global investors grew concerned with the US-China trade dispute and its impact on global 
demand. 

* 

Central banks across the developed world signalled that interest rates will not be raised in 2019, with the US 
and Australia cutting rates, this resulted in a stellar year for several asset classes. 

* 

On the next two pages, we have summarised the FTSE 100’s and MSCI All World’s journey over the year 2019.

175



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

10 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

FTSE 100 in 2019 

 

 
Source: Bloomberg, LGPSC 

176



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

11 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

MSCI All World in 2019 

Source: Bloomberg, LGPSC 

177



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

12 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

RISK ANALYSIS 
Table 8: Risk in order of probability 

RISK LGPSCL 
Possibility 

LGPSCL 
Impact 

Change on 
quarter Comment LGPSC favoured assets to 

protect against the risk 

EQUITY 
DOWNTURN Medium Moderate  

Slightly increased possibility for this risk, but not 
enough to assign “high” possibility. Exaggerated 
growth expectations, profit taking in the equity 

market, increased recession risk and limited 
monetary policy stimulus available could see 

equity markets fall. 

Safe haven assets such as 
government bonds and 
gold, increased demand 

for equity downside 
protection makes 
volatility rise, buy 

volatility early, as short-
term measure protect 
through selling futures 

NO DEAL BREXIT Medium Medium 
 

Brexit uncertainty reduced since General Election, 
however a no trade deal risk remains, which could 

set the economy back by 10%. Uncertainty 
remains as to whether Brexit will be done in 2020. 

The possibility of no Brexit seems to have 
receded. 

A hard Brexit would have 
a negative impact, but 

there is a favourable view 
that a trade deal can be 

done which would be 
positive 

GLOBAL RECESSION  Medium/ 
High 

Moderate  

Recession watch factors have been pointing 
towards a possible global recession in 2020 fuelled 
by US growth stagnating, Chinese debt leverage 
and elevated interest rates in the US. However, 

recent indicators now show a more mixed picture 
compared to 2019, with increased uncertainty 

over where we are in the cycle. 

Factors such as 
Quality/ESG and Low 

Volatility perform 
relatively well in a 

recession.  
Stabilising and income 

assets will outperform if 
economy enters 

recession 

POLITICAL RISKS Medium Low 
 There is a considerable amount of political risk 

around the globe, such as the Syria/ Turkey 
situation and domestic US political risks.  

Overweight protective 
assets such as Gold, non-

Euro assets, buy US 
Dollar 

ISOLATION & 
PROTECTION/CHINA 

Medium Medium 
 

General trade war concerns from 2019 soften their 
trend in 2020 with more positive sentiment and 
less worries about the possible consequences. 

Recent US-China trade deal news is positive but 
one deal does not mean the end of the war. 

Exports are down everywhere. 

Slowdown of economic 
growth and de-stabilising 

effect, overweight Gold 
and insurance linked, 

overweight US equities, 
underweight GEMs 

CREDIT RISK/DEBT 
ISSUES High Moderate  

In the event of a marked slowdown, highly 
leveraged corporates might find it difficult to 

refinance cheaply, at a time when profitability is 
under pressure. Corporate bond spreads might 

also widen. EU banks have not taken enough non-
performing loan action, China and Automotive 

debt are concerns at present. 

Underweight EU and 
China, underweight 

selective credit, such as 
Automotive. 

Incorporating ESG 
reduces Credit Risk. 

US$ WEAKNESS Low Moderate  
If significant GDP slow down occurs and US rates 

decrease by 200bps the US$ could fall around 
10%. 

Overweight US$ 
Government Bonds, 

hedge the US$, 
Overweight EM equities 

CLIMATE-RELATED 
TRANSITION RISK  Medium  Moderate  

 

- EU carbon price over €20 per tonne since March 

- Sales of Tesla units nearing 100,000 per Q 

- Labelled green bond issuance USD117.8bn in H1 
2019 (up 48% on H1 2018)  

Underweight Energy & 
GEMs, overweight 

Renewables and 
Sustainable Investment 

themes such as 
Infrastructure  

CLIMATE-RELATED 
PHYSICAL RISK  Medium  Moderate  

 

- US Billon Dollar Disaster (BDD) Event Frequency: 

10 US BDDs as of October 2019; annual average is 

12.6 

- 77% year on year increase in Amazonian forest 
fires 

Hold a well-diversified 
portfolio  

 

 

 

178



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

13 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

 

 

 

 

 

LGPSC’s view on “Scenario Risks”:  
 LGPSC’s view is that with a well-diversified portfolio, the majority of key risks from these scenarios should 

balance out potential strong negative impacts. Alternatively, short term asset adjustments can be made to the 
portfolio to seek protection or a derivative overlay can hedge out undesired potential negative impacts and 
provide protection. 

 We have not made any major changes to this quarter’s risks and they remain broadly the same. The two main 
changes to mention is the reduced risk of a ‘no deal’ Brexit due to the General Election outcome. We reiterate 
that uncertainty remains until a trade deal is closed. Similarly, the trade deal between China and US is positive 
and reduces market risks, however one deal does not necessarily mean the end for the trade war.  

 It remains our view that the next 12 months should produce a positive return for Income Assets and will 
probably see low to negative returns for Stabilising Assets. Our opinion is that fixed income does not offer 
good risk adjusted returns relative to equities for pension fund money at this time and should remain 
underweight. Growth Assets have become less attractive due to a change in sentiment and the year-end rally, 
but we note the lack of opportunities elsewhere. As a result, we have reduced the equity downturn risk 
although there remains a risk of a recession that is deeper than is currently priced into markets and this 
outcome would be very negative for equity valuations. Added uncertainty over where we are in the economic 
cycle further adds to difficulties in predicting the way forward. 
  

179



 

14 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

Ann-Marie Patterson 
PM Fixed Income 
 

Ann-
Marie.Patterson@lgpscentral.co.uk 
Phone: 01902 916189 
 
 

SPECIAL FEATURE 1: EMERGING MARKET DEBT 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LGPSC’s Thoughts on Emerging Market Debt 

The investment case for allocating to Emerging Market debt remains solid. The long-
term risk- reward has been and remains compelling. Most emerging market 
countries are in relatively healthy economic shape, both in external and in domestic 
terms. They are growing in an environment characterized by relatively benign 
inflation and relatively undervalued currencies, while commodity prices, especially 
oil, have been stable or higher over the recent past. 

 Given the moderately high real yields and this benign inflationary backdrop, EM central banks continue 
to have some room to ease monetary policy, which could boost economic growth. So, what are emerging 
markets? 

The modern market for Emerging Markets (EM) sovereign Dollar-denominated bonds – known 
collectively as EM external debt (or ‘less developed markets’) – traces its origins to the Petrodollar loan 
boom, which emerged during the oil price shocks of the 1970s (1). As a result of the oil price which 
tumbled in the 1980s, Western banks found themselves with enormous exposures, which they were 
unable to trade due to the low liquidity of the instruments. In order to help the banks, US Treasury 
Secretary Nicholas Brady introduced a program to package the loans into so-called ‘Brady bonds’ (2), which 
were large liquid securities, which could trade freely in London and New York. The Brady bonds were 
later replaced by so-called Eurobonds, which today constitute the backbone of the EM external debt 
asset class. Eurobonds are large, Dollar-denominated, Euroclearable bonds issued under New York or 
English Law. In the 2000s, many EM countries began to establish internal pension funds, which enabled 
them to begin to secure financing in their own currencies. The local currency government bond market 
has since replaced external debt as the primary funding source for most established EM countries. 
However, the external debt asset class continues to grow because incumbent issuers continue to issue 
and new countries, typically lower income EM countries, which do not yet have local pension funds, 
regularly enter the asset class. Thus, EMD includes defined separate markets Hard Currency Sovereign 
(external debt) (HCS), Local Currency Government debt (LCS) and Hard Currency Corporate debt (HCC).  

HCS is the smaller part of the USD 26.5 tn (3) EM fixed income universe (23% of overall global fixed income 
at the end of 2018 (3)) and comprises sovereign and quasi sovereign bonds denominated in USD and other 
developed market currencies. About 82% (3) of EM bonds are denominated in local currency (LCS) but 
despite this difference in size, the HC market is more diversified in term of country representation (73 vs 
19). EM government issues make up 45% of all EM bonds with the remainder issued by corporate entities. 
Asia dominates the EM fixed income market with 78% of all outstanding bonds but with little external 
issuance (HCS) as they have well developed domestic markets which provide the bulk of the financing 
for the indigenous government. As an example, Thailand has no outstanding external debt! 

Noticeable developments within the EMD marketplace have included the steady growth in LCS bond 
issuance. Whilst the HCS universe has grown by about US$ 50bn per year since 2000 (3) it has declined as 
a percentage of GDP with the even faster increase in EM nominal GDP. However, by the start of 2019, 
LCS markets made up 82% (3) of the total EMD market. This has been overstated potentially as the 
valuations are liable to show relatively high degrees of volatility given that the market size is expressed 
in terms of USD. 

 

180



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

15 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Relative currency moves can have a significant effect on market valuations as local markets appear to 
increase much faster in times of USD weakness and vice versa. 

Given the predominance of government borrowers in the LCS EMD market, the overall credit quality of 
the LCS market is higher according to the average of market indices adopting the major three recognised 
credit agencies. Currently, the major LCS market index (JPM GBI EM Global Diversified Index) has an 
average credit rating of BBB as against the HCS market index (JPM EMBI Global Diversified Index) with a 
comparable rating of BB+. To complete the universe, the HCC index has an average rating of BBB- 

Other notable characteristics between the three defined EMD markets include the number of issues, 
duration, geographical and rating split as seen in Table 1 below: 

 

Source M&G 

Characteristically, EMD markets have combined a variety of rapid economic growth, low per-capita 
income, maturing capital markets, volatility and potentially high returns. An emerging market economy 
has been defined as an economy with low to middle per-capita income (4). They have a real GDP growth 
rate of around 5%, which compares to c.2% growth rates among developed economies (5). Over the last 
40 years there have been several serious periods of crisis when both EM currencies and/or market prices 
have plunged leading to severe negative performances. These date back to the Latin American crisis in 
the 1980’s, the Mexican Crisis of 1994-1995, the Asian meltdown starting in 1997 in Thailand and the 
Russian currency event in 2015. More recently there has been idiosyncratic ‘meltdowns’ in Argentina 
(for a second time), Brazil and Chile with South Africa potentially on the brink of both political and 
economic uncertainty linked to recent election results and ongoing uncertainty as to the future 
ownership structure of ESCOM, the impoverished government owned electricity company. 

 

181



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

16 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These crises have occurred due to a variety of events and policies. Some from outstanding loans that 
could not be repaid; Poland informed its bank creditors in March 1981 that it could not repay its 
obligations beginning the so called ‘International Debt Crisis’ lasting until 1989 and affecting 20 other 
countries facing serous debt problems but each one had unique problems in origin and implications. 
However, by 1989 there was a marked improvement in external economic environment facing many of 
the indebted nations. The result of these crises, and in some cases associated IMF bailouts and related 
fiscal and monetary prudence, has improved the economic standing of many of the current EM 
countries. This was most noticeable during the International Financial Crisis (2008) when the health of 
the EMD markets compared favourably to those of the developed markets with EMD having set their 
banking systems and economies on a better footing. 

The performance of the various parts of the EMD universe can return quite diverse numbers as the table 
below shows (best performers in GREEN, worst in RED):   

Following analysis, we have discerned that HCS has been the best and consistent performing EMD asset class 
historically when compared to LCS and HCC but it would have been possible to outperform an HSC 
benchmark with active allocations to LCS and HCC asset sectors. It should be noted that the LCS has 
historically been the weakest performer but as mentioned, it is also the fastest developing asset class.  

From an asset allocation standpoint, EMD offers an increase in available yields compared to developed 
markets (governments and credit) but not at the expense of lower quality assets (as defined by rating agency 
criteria). This yield pickup allows for strong total return given relatively high current income. EMD ticks the 
diversification ‘box’ and whilst this can sometimes come with additional risks such as political instability and 
periods of poor liquidity, the recent improvement in many EM economies’ domestic positioning has allowed 
those markets to perform well. In many cases, the government debt levels are significantly lower in EMD 
than many developed markets. A final advantage of exposure to EMD markets is the associated currency 
allocations which can themselves be sources of additional performance. 

Footnotes: 
1: The case for EM external Debt – Ashmore Investment Limited May 2019 
2: Brady Bonds Debt securities issued as part of a Brady Plan restructuring, or any similar debt restructuring or financing plan. The term Brady Bond includes debt securities that may or may not be 
collateralized, provided that they were issued either in exchange for commercial bank loans (or accrued interest thereon) or, in the case of some New Money Bonds, as one of the menu options 
made available as part of a sovereign debtor's restructuring or refinancing of its external indebtedness. *Remember* While both Par and Discount Bonds are 30-year collaterized bonds, a number of 
nations also issued uncollateralized bonds with shorter tenors (e.g., Floating Rate Bonds and Front Loaded Interest Reduction Bonds). Some nations also issue bonds in exchange for unpaid interest 
on defaulted loans (e.g., Past Due Interest Bonds or Interest Arrears Bonds). Each Brady country negotiated the specific terms and details of its Brady restructuring during discussions with its 
commercial bank creditors, who were offered a menu of options for their exchange of eligible debt.   (Bloomberg) 
3: Bank of International Settlements data as of end 2018 
4: Antoine W. van Agtmael  1981, IFC, World Bank     
5: JP Morgan  December 2017    

 

182



 

17 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

Source: Bloomberg, OECD, data as of 31/1/2019 

APPENDIX 1: ECONOMIC OUTLOOK  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

183



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

18 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

Source: Bloomberg, OECD, data as of 31/1/2019 

APPENDIX 2: MARKET OUTLOOK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Dividend yields carry on their upward trend, with the UK offering 
a strong yield over the last couple of years 

Corporate bond spreads have fallen over the last quarter 

184



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

19 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

 
 Election results dramatically reduce risk of renationalisation of some UK sectors 
 Brexit direction clear but detail important  
 Overseas assets marginally cheaper on Sterling strengthening but not enough to 

allay concerns over entry values 
 Infrastructure assets historically expensive but investor demand is increasing 

despite this 
 Increased investor demand may lead to declining but still attractive, returns  
 

 Brexit clarity but risks still evident 
 Confidence should be higher post-election but still expect some nervousness in 

coming 12 months  
 Product availability has increased as open-ended funds look to meet liquidity 

requirements  
 Anecdotal evidence points to other potential vendors ‘testing’ market 
 Preceding points should result in quality investment stock being more easily 

acquired than in recent years 
 Yield still attractive to institutional investors  

Jason Fletcher 
CIO 
 
Jason.Fletcher@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 170 
 
 

Colin Pratt 
ID Manager of 
Managers 
 
Colin.Pratt@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 209 
 

 

David Evans 
ID Passive Equities 
 
David.Evans@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 199 

 
 

Michael Marshall 
Director of Responsible 
Investing & Engagement 
 
Michael.Marshall@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 193 
 

Jaswant Sidhu 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
Private Equities 
 
 
Jaswant.Sidhu@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 185 

 

Mark Davies 
Senior Portfolio Manager  
Active Equities 
 
 
mark.davies@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 195 

 

 0.70% nominal yield on benchmark 10-year Gilt remains unattractive on a real return’s basis 
and with prospect of increased supply. 

 Intermediate European Government Bonds remain attractive investments hedged back to 
GBP. 

 G10 monetary policy likely to remain accommodative until there are signs of above-target 
inflation. 

 Investment opportunities remain with active yield curve management 

 LPs expect to continue deploy to PE, proof of their resilience and commitment to the asset 
class despite macroeconomic concerns 

 High valuations persist in this late-cycle environment – favour recession resilient businesses, 
with low cyclicality and assets with value-creation potential in sub-sectors with above average 
growth rates 

 Large amount of PE ‘dry powder’ particularly in the Mega buyout space – favour mid-market: 
more opportunities for deployment  

 Global recessionary fears so avoid cyclical industries 

Mike Hardwick 
ID Property &  
Infrastructure 
 

Mike.Hardwick@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 552 089 
 

Vania Clayton 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
(Equity, Fixed Income, Derivatives) 
 
Vania.clayton@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 206 
 
 

Callum Campbell 
Head of Client Services & 
Stakeholder Relations 
 
Callum.Campbell@lgpccentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 204 
 
 

Gordon Ross 
Deputy CIO, 
ID Fixed Income 
Gordon.Ross@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 167 
 
 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3: INVESTMENT IDEAS – MEET THE TEAM  

 

 
  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please contact Callum Campbell, Head of Client Services and Stakeholder Relations, if you would like to discuss the 
views outlined in this report with LGPS Central’s Investment Directors  

Selective Overweight Private Equity (J. Sidhu) 1

Neutral property – Positive Outlook (M. Hardwick) Overweight infrastructure (M. Hardwick) 3 4
. 

Underweight Fixed Income (G. Ross) 2
. 

185



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 8 
 

20 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

GLOSSARY: 

ESG   Environmental, social and governance 

FAANG   Facebook, Apple, Amazon, Netflix & Google 

GEMs   Global Emerging Markets 

IG   Investment Grade 

IPO   Initial Public Offering 

LTM   Last twelve months 

OPEC   Organisation of Petroleum Exporting Countries 

PE    Private Equity 

UNPRI   United Nations Principles for Responsible Investment 

VIX   S&P Implied Volatility Index 

YTD   Year to date 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

186



 

21 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                           For professional clients only 
 

Classified as Internal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This document has been produced by LGPS Central Limited and is intended solely for information purposes. 
Any opinions, forecasts or estimates herein constitute a judgement, as at the date of this report, that is subject 
to change without notice. It does not constitute an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of LGPS Central 
Limited to any person to buy or sell any security. Any reference to past performance is not a guide to the 
future. The information and analysis contained in this 
publication have been compiled or arrived at from sources believed to be reliable, but LGPS Central Limited 
does not make any representation as to their accuracy or completeness and does not accept any liability from 
loss arising from the use thereof. The opinions and conclusions expressed in this document are solely those of 
the author. This document may not be produced, either in whole or part, without the written permission of 
LGPS Central Limited. 
 
All information is prepared as of 17.01.2020, if not stated otherwise. 
 
This document is intended for PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS only. 
 
LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 
Registered in England Registered No: 10425159. 
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 

187



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 28 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
 
Purpose 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of any changes relating to the 
risk management and internal controls of the Pension Fund, as stipulated in the 
Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice. 

 
Background 

 
2. The Pension Regulator’s (TPR) code of practise on governance and administration 

of public service pension schemes requires that administrators need to record and 
members be kept aware of ‘risk management and internal controls’. The code 
states this should be a standing item on each Pension Board and Pension 
Committee agenda. 

 
3. In order to comply with the code, the risk register and an update on supporting 

activity is included on each agenda. 
 

Risk Register 
 

4. The updated Risk Register is attached as an appendix to this report. Progress 
updates have been made to the following risks:  
 

 Risk 13 - Utilisation of dedicated Responsible Investment (RI) team at LGPS 
Central and preparation of a RI plan for the fund. 

 
5. The following risks have also been added to the risk register:- 

 

 Risk 4 - A new risk relating to cyber security has been added to the risk 
register following the Pension Regular’s deep dive into Pension Fund 
administration.  

 

 Risk 5 - Introduction of IConnect and statutory deadlines – The on boarding 
of monthly posting for Leicester City and De Montfort University via IConnct 
could impact on year-end statutory deadlines, given the size and timing of 
these two employers. 

 

 The reintroduction of Risk 6 - The Pensions Section has agreed with the 
three Fire Authorities to extend the administration to the 31 December 2020. 
It was initially planned to end the administration on 31 March 2020. The 

189 Agenda Item 12



extension has been agreed on a reduced service and with all parties aware it 
brings with it risks, as detailed on the risk register. 

 
Identified Risks of Concern 

 
6. There are currently no identified risks of concern. 

 
 

 
Recommendation 
 

7. The Local Pension Committee is asked to approve the revised risk register of the 
Pension Fund. 

 
Appendix 
 
Risk Register 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr I Howe, Pensions Manager, Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6945 Email: Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk  
 

190



Leicestershire Pension Fund Risk Register January 2020             APPENDIX 

Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

1 Pens 

 If the Pension Fund 

fails to reconcile HRMC 

Guaranteed Minimum 

Pension (GMP) data 

with the Pension 

Section data there is a 

risk of overpayment of 

Pensions Increase 

 

From 2018 the pensions 

section has had 

responsibility for GMPs 

creating the need to ensure 

that this is accounted for in 

the pensions increases  

Overpaying 

pensions (i.e. for 

GMP cases pension 

increases are lower) 

Reputation 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Checking of HMRC 

GMP data to identify 

any discrepancies  

Full time person 

recruited to work on 

the project 

3 3 9 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

Working through cases 

Developed reporting 

tools to assist 

HMRC have closed their 

window for new 

submissions 

2 1 2 

 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 

 

2 Pens 

 If the Pension Fund 

fails to implement a 

pension administration 

system, pensioner 

payroll and immediate 

payments system the 

Pension Section will fail 

to deliver its statutory 

duties. It will also be 

unable to pay 

pensioners and other 

single payments (e.g. 

lump sums) 

A new system has been 
implemented, with several 
features subject to a gradual 
roll-out. 
 

 
Unable to pay 
pensioners 
 
Unable to pay single 
payments 
 
Unable to meet 
statutory 
requirements 
 
Manual calculations 
 
Huge increase in 
administration time 
causing delays 
 
Increased appeals 
 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Gradual 

implementation of 

member self-service 

functionality  

Working in 

partnership with 

another Fund 

Phased approach to 

implementation, with 

single payment the 

most significant piece 

of functionality 

remaining. 

4 2 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

 

Detailed project 

planning for final phase, 

accounting for other 

pressures in the section 

Pensioner payroll and 

MSS completed.  

Immediate payments to 

be completed by the 31 

March 2020 

 

2 1 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 

191



3 Pens 

If the pensions fund fail 

to receive accurate and 

timely data from 

employers scheme 

members pension 

benefits could be 

incorrect or late  

 

 

A continuing increase in 

Fund employers is causing 

administrative pressure in 

the Pension Section. This is 

in terms of receiving 

accurate and timely data 

from these new employers 

who have little or no pension 

knowledge 

 

Late or inaccurate 

pension benefits to 

scheme members 

Reputation 

Increased appeals 

Greater 

administrative time 

being spent on 

individual 

calculations 

Ian 

Howe 

Training provided for 

new employers 

Guidance notes 

provided for 

employers 

Amended SLA and 

communication and 

administration guide 

distributed to 

employers making   

IConnect a statutory 

requirement by 

31/3/2021) 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Implement IConnect 

with employers so they 

provide monthly data in 

a secure and timely 

manner 

Inform the Local 

Pension Board each 

quarter on progress 

made 

 

3 2 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 
Howe 

4 Pens 

 

If the Pensions Section 

fails to meet the 

information/cyber 

security and 

governance 

requirements then 

there may be a breach 

of the statutory 

obligations. 

 

Pensions database now 

hosted outside of LCC. 

Employer data submitted 

through online portal. 

Member data accessible 

through member self service 

portal (MSS). 

Data held on third party 

reporting tool (DART). 

Greater awareness of 

information rights by service 

users. 

 

Diminished public 

trust in ability of 

Council to provide 

services. 

Loss of confidential 

information 

compromising 

service user safety. 

Damage to LCC 

reputation. 

Financial penalties. 

 

Ian 

Howe 

Regular LCC 

Penetration testing 

and enhanced IT 

health checks in place. 

LCC have achieved 

PSN compliance. 

New firewall in place 

providing two layers 

of security protection 

in line with PSN best 

practice. 

5 2 10 Treat 

Work with LCC ICT and 

Aquila Heywood 

(software suppliers) to 

establish processes to 

reduce risk, e.g. can 

Aquila Heywood 

demonstrate that they 

are carrying out regular 

penetration testing and 

other related processes 

take place. 

Liaise with Audit to 

establish if any further 

processes can be put in 

place in line with best 

practice. 

5 1 5 

Stuart 

Wells 

5 Pens 

2019/20 Data in respect 

of some new ‘i-Connect 

Employers’ may not be 

uploaded to altair in 

time to meet the Fund’s 

statutory obligations. 

Process of onboarding 

Leicester City Council to 

iConnect still ongoing, due to 

the large number of 

discrepancies that need to 

be resolved and a lack of 

available resources. 

Twelve monthly submissions 

will still require loading by 

end of June at the latest. 

Initial load is expected to be 

extremely time consuming 

Some or all of these 

employers’ LGPS 

scheme members 

are not issued with 

annual pension 

statements by 

statutory deadline 

of 31.8.20. This is 

potentially 

reportable to The 

Pensions Regulator 

as a breach of The 

Pensions Act. 

Ian 

Howe 

Allocating as much 

Pensions Section 

resource as possible. 

Currently recruiting to 

increase resources 

allocated to team 

responsible for data 

load. 

Regular contact with 

Leicester City Council 

payroll to ensure that 

2 3 6 Treat 

Ensure that following 

the initial load only the 

minimum number of 

queries are raised with 

Leicester City Council to 

reduce time before 

subsequent loads are 

submitted to Pensions. 

Importance of timely 

submission of data 

raised with DMU and to 

be emphasised at 

2 2 4 

Stuart 

Wells 

192



for both Pensions and 

Leicester City Payroll and 

many queries will require 

resolving before the second 

load is able to be loaded. 

The situation is similar at De 

Montfort University where 

currently, only April’s data 

has been loaded. Delays at 

DMU, in part due to illness, 

have meant a proposed visit 

to their offices to load data 

has been postponed. This 

has been provisionally 

rescheduled for 10th Feb by 

which time it is expected 

that May and June data will 

be ready for loading. This 

leaves 9 monthly returns still 

to load. 

Some of these 

employers’ LGPS 

scheme members 

are not issued with 

Pensions Saving 

Statements by 

statutory deadline 

of 6.10.20. This is 

potentially 

reportable to The 

Pensions Regulator 

as a breach of The 

Pensions Act. 

Damage to LCC 

reputation. 

Possible financial 

penalties. 

Up to date data 

cannot be shown on 

section’s Member 

Self Service portal, 

leading to reduced 

confidence in the 

portal’s ‘Benefits 

Projector’ 

functionality. 

 

they provide Pensions 

with data in a timely 

fashion. 

Schedule agreed with 

DMU to provide May 

and June’s data, with 

a handover meeting 

provisionally 

scheduled for 10 Feb 

2020. 

 

February meeting. 

Prioritise this work and 

resources within 

Pensions iConnect team 

to maximise chances of 

loading data in time. 

6 Pens 

Retaining the 

administration of the 

Firefighter Pension 

Schemes until Dec 2020 

could negatively impact 

on the Pensions 

Section. 

The three Fire Authorities 

have opted to undergo a full 

tender process for the 

pensions administration, 

meaning that the initial plan 

to for LCC to cease 

administration in April 2020 

has ceased. 

Following the original plan to 

cease administering Fire 

Pensions, a member of the 

team has decided to resign, 

reducing staff from three to 

two. 

In addition to 

dealing with regular 

casework with less 

resource; 

2020 is a valuation 

year for Fire, which 

will result in extra 

work; 

There is a 

potentially new 

area of Fire work 

pending relating to 

the new modified 

retained exercise; 

Ian 

Howe 

Reduction in KPI 

targets, increasing the 

timeline for replies to 

cases; 

Cessation of estimates 

except in cases where 

6 months from 

retirement; 

Cease deferred annual 

statements for 1992 

members as this is not 

statutory; 

Cease projecting 

figures forward on 

4 3 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Investigate additional 

resource, e.g. overtime; 

Fire Team Manager to 

spend more time on 

casework; 

Checking of some areas 

of work to move to 

Pensions Manager; 

 

 

 

4 2 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 
Howe 

193



The remedy for the 

McCloud situation 

could be confirmed 

before the end of 

the contract period; 

The possibility of 

the fire 

administration 

system moving to 

Civica has 

increased, 

potentially resulting 

in increased work 

for the section in 

comparison to the 

work involved in 

moving to another 

altair based 

authority; 

Fire Team staff will 

not be able to 

transfer to the LGPS 

administration 

teams and assist 

with their work, 

improving KPIs; this 

will also impact 

around work on 

office 

improvements 

during 2020. 

2020 active annual 

benefit statements; 

Cease to provide 

metric data to Fire 

Authorities; 

Cease providing ad 

hoc reports when Fire 

Authorities ask for 

people’s NRDs etc 

Abandon plans to 

implement MSS for 

Fire scheme members 

Do not do the new 

modified retained 

exercise, leaving it for 

the next 

administrator, with 

the exception of any 

statutory areas. 

It is felt unlikely that 

McCloud will be 

resolved by December 

2020, though remains 

a possibility. 

 

 

Fire Authorities to 

request support from 

their Pension Boards to 

reduce estimate 

requests from fire-

fighters, thereby 

reducing work coming 

into the Pension Section 

Fire Authorities 

colleagues to help 

provide resource and 

assistance for the 

Pension  

 

7 
Pens/ 
Invs 

The resolution of the 

McCloud case could 

increase administration 

significantly resulting in 

difficulties providing 

the ongoing pensions 

administration service  

The liabilities of the 

Fund are expected to 

increase for all 

employers 

Mr McCloud winning his 

appeal on age discrimination 

on public sector pension 

schemes and the protection 

afforded to older members 

during the move to career 

average benefits, followed 

by Government losing their 

right of appeal. 

Ultimate outcome 

currently unknown 

but likelihood is; 

Increasing 

administration 

Revision of previous 

benefits 

Additional 

communications 

Ian 

Howe 

Guidance from LGA, 

Hymans, Treasury  3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat once 
details are 
confirmed 

Working with Hymans 

to include an estimated 

cost in the valuation 

Employer bulletin to 

employers making them 

aware of the current 

situation 

Await proposed 

resolution from the 

employment tribunal 

2 3 6 

 
 
 
Ian 
Howe  

194



Complaints/appeals 

Increased costs 

8 

Invs 
 
 
 
 
 

Employer and employee 

contributions are not 

paid accurately and on 

time 

Error on the part of the 

scheme employer 

Potentially 

reportable to The 

Pensions Regulator 

as late payment is a 

breach of The 

Pensions Act. 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Receipt of 

contributions is 

monitored and late 

payments are chased 

quickly 

 

2 4 8 

 
 
Treat Late payers will be 

reminded of their legal 

responsibilities. 
2 3 6 

 
 
Declan 

Keegan 

 

9 Invs 

Assets held by the Fund 

are ultimately 

insufficient to pay 

benefits due to 

individual members 

Ineffective setting of 

employer contribution rates 

over many consecutive 

actuarial valuations 

 

Significant financial 

impact on scheme 

employers due to 

the need for large 

increases in 

employer 

contribution rates.  

 

Chris 

Tambini 

 

 

Input into actuarial 

valuation, including 

ensuring that actuarial 

assumptions are 

reasonable and the 

manner in which 

employer contribution 

rates are set does not 

bring imprudent 

future financial risk 

 

 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Actuarial assumptions 

need to include an 

element of prudence, 

and Officers need to 

understand the long-

term impact and risks 

involved with taking 

short-term views to 

artificially manage 

employer contribution 

rates.  The 2019 

valuation will assess the 

contribution rates with 

a view to calculating 

monetary contributions 

alongside employer 

percentages of salaries 

where appropriate. 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

10 
Pens/ 
Invs 

Sub-funds of individual 

employers are not 

monitored to ensure 

that there is the correct 

balance between risks 

to the Fund and fair 

treatment of the 

employer 

Changing financial position 

of both sub-fund and the 

employer 

 

 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates. 

Risk to the Fund of 

insolvency of an 

individual employer. 

This will ultimately 

increase the deficit 

of all other 

Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

Ensuring, as far as 

possible, that the 

financial position of 

each employer is 

understood. On-going 

dialogue with them to 

ensure that the 

correct balance 

between risks and fair 

treatment continues. 

 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Dialogue with the 

employers, particularly 

in the lead up to the 

setting of new employer 

contribution rates. 

Include employer risk 

profiling as part of the 

Funding Strategy 

Statement update. To 

allow better targeting of 

default risks 

Investigate 

arrangements to de-risk 

funding arrangements 

for individual 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

195



employers.  

 

employers. 

Ensure that the 

implications of the 

independent, non-

public sector status, of 

further education, sixth 

form colleges, and the 

autonomous, non-

public sector status of 

higher education 

corporations is fully 

accounted for in the 

Funding Strategy 

 

11 Invs 

 Market investment 

returns are consistently 

poor and this causes 

significant upward 

pressure onto employer 

contribution rates 

Poor market returns, most 

probably caused by poor 

economic conditions 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to the need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that strategic 

asset allocation is 

considered at least 

annually, and that the 

medium-term outlook 

for different asset 

classes is included as 

part of the 

consideration 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
Treat 

Making sure that the 

investment strategy is 

sufficiently flexible to 

take account of 

opportunities and risks 

that arise, but is still 

based on a reasonable 

medium-term 

assessment of future 

returns 

4 2 8 

 
Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

12 Invs 

Market returns are 

acceptable but the 

performance achieved 

by the Fund is below 

reasonable 

expectations 

Poor performance of 

individual managers, or poor 

asset allocation policy 

Opportunity cost in 

terms of lost 

investment returns, 

which is possible 

even if actual 

returns are higher 

than those allowed 

for within the 

actuarial valuation 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that the 

causes of 

underperformance 

are understood and 

acted on where 

appropriate 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
Treat 

After careful 

consideration, take 

decisive action where 

this is deemed 

appropriate.  It should 

be recognised that 

some managers have a 

style-bias and that 

poorer relative 

performance will occur.  

Decisions regarding 

manager termination to 

consider multiple 

factors including 

performance versus 

mandate and it’s reason 

for original inclusion. 

2 2 4 

 
Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

196



13 Invs 

Failure to take account 

of ALL risks to future 

investment returns 

within the setting of 

asset allocation policy 

and/or the 

appointment of 

investment managers 

Some assets classes or 

individual investments 

perform poorly as a result of 

incorrect assessment of all 

risks inherent within the 

investment. 

Opportunity cost 

within investment 

returns, and 

potential for actual 

returns to be low. 

This will lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been necessary. 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that all 

factors that may 

impact onto 

investment returns 

are taken into account 

when setting the asset 

allocation.  

Only appointing 

investment managers 

that integrate 

responsible 

investment (RI)  into 

their processes. 

Utilisation of 

dedicated RI team at 

LGPS Central and 

preparation of a RI 

plan for the fund. 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Responsible investment 
aims to incorporate 

environmental, social 

and governance (ESG) 

factors into investment 

decisions, to better 

manage risk and 

generate sustainable, 

long-term returns. 

Annual refresh of the 

Fund’s asset allocation 

allows an up to date 

view of risks to be 

incorporated and avoids 

significant sort term 

changes to the 

allocation. 

Asset allocation policy 

allows for variances 

from target asset 

allocation to take 

advantage of 

opportunities and 

negates the need to 

trade regularly where 

investments under and 

over perform in a short 

period of time. 

2 2 4 

 

 

 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

14 Invs 

Investment pooling 

within the LGPS fails to 

deliver a higher long 

term net investment 

return 

LGPS Central fails to deliver 

better net investment 

returns than the Fund would 

have expected to achieve it 

investment pooling did not 

occur 

Lower returns will 

ultimately lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been the case 

Chris 

Tambini 

Shareholders’ Forum, 

Joint Committee and 

Practitioners’ Advisory 

Forum will give   

significant influence in 

the event of issues 

arising. 

Appraisal of each 

investment products 

before a commitment 

to transition is made 

 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

The set-up of LGPS 

Central is likely to be 

the most difficult phase. 

The Fund will continue 

to monitor closely how 

the company evolves 

Programme of LGPS 

Central internal audit 

activity, which has been 

designed in 

collaboration with the 

audit functions of the 

partner funds 

2 2 4 

 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

197



 

 

Risk Impact Measurement Criteria 
 

Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

1 Negligible 
Little impact to objectives 
in service plan 

Limited disruption to operations and 
service quality satisfactory 

Minor injuries 
Public concern 
restricted to local 
complaints 

Pension Section 
  <£50k 
Investments 

Losses expected to be 
recovered in the short 
term 

15 Invs 

Investment decisions 

are made without 

having sufficient 

expertise to properly 

assess the risks and 

potential returns  

The combination of 

knowledge at Committee, 

Officer and Consultant level 

is not sufficiently high 

Poor decisions likely 

to lead to low 

returns, which will 

require higher 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Continuing focus on 

ensuring that there is 

sufficient expertise to 

be able to make 

thoughtfully 

considered 

investment decisions  

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
Treat 

On-going process of 

updating and improving 

the knowledge of 

everybody involved in 

the decision-making 

process 

2 2 4 

 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

16 Invs 

The transition of 

investment assets to 

LGPS Central is not 

successful 

Pooling does not reduce the 

on-going management costs 

of assets 

Transition costs are 

significantly higher, for 

example the cost of selling 

the existing investments and 

buying new ones.  

Savings available do 

not justify the 

transition costs and 

on-going cost of 

running LGPS 

Central 

Chris 

Tambini 

Central maintains the 

flexibility to run funds 

internally. 

Specialist transition 

manager being 

appointed, with 

independent specialist 

oversight. 

Formal review follows 

each transition. 

Implementation being 

phased, allowing 

capacity to be 

managed and lessons 

learned. 

2 3 6 Treat 

Approach for each 

transition assessed 

independently. 

Views from 8 partners 

sought throughout the 

transition process.  

 

LGPS Central’s Internal 

Audit plan includes an 

assessment of the 

governance surrounding 

the transition 

2 2 4 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

198



Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

2 Minor 
Minor impact to service as 
objectives in service plan 
are not met 

Short term disruption to operations 
resulting in a minor adverse impact 
on partnerships and minimal 
reduction in service quality. 

Minor Injury to those in 
the Council’s care 

Minor adverse local / 
public / media 
attention and 
complaints 

Pension Section 
£50k-£250k Minimal 
effect on budget/cost 

Investments 
Some 
underperformance, but 
within the bounds of 
normal market volatility 

3 Moderate 
Considerable fall in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Sustained moderate level disruption 
to operations / Relevant partnership 
relationships strained / Service 
quality not satisfactory 

Potential for minor 
physical injuries / 
Stressful experience 

Adverse local media 
public attention 

Pension Section 
£250k - £500k Small 
increase on 
budget/cost: Handled 
within the team/service 

 
Investment 

Underperformance by a 
manager requiring 
review by the 
Investment Sub-
committee 

4 Major 
Major impact to services 
as objectives in service 
plan are not met.  

Serious disruption to operations with 
relationships in major partnerships 
affected / Service quality not 
acceptable with adverse impact on 
front line services. Significant 
disruption of core activities. Key 
targets missed. 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
creating potential for 
serious physical or 
mental harm 

Serious negative 
regional criticism, with 
some national 
coverage 

Pension Section 
£500-£750k. Significant 
increase in budget/cost. 
Service budgets 
exceeded 

 
Investment 

Underperformance of 
significant proportion of 
assets leading to a 
review of the 
Investment or Funding 
strategy 

199



Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

5 
Very 
High/Critical 

Significant fall/failure in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Long term serious interruption to 
operations / Major partnerships under 
threat / Service quality not acceptable 
with impact on front line services 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
leading to potential 
loss of life or 
permanent 
physical/mental 
damage. Life 
threatening or multiple 
serious injuries 

Prolonged regional 
and national 
condemnation, with 
serious damage to the 
reputation of the 
organisation i.e. front-
page headlines, TV. 
Possible criminal, or 
high profile, civil 
action against the 
Council/Fund, 
members or officers 

Pension Section 
>£750k Large increase 
on budget/cost. 

 
Investment 

Employer contributions 
expect to increase 
significantly above 
Funding Strategy 
requirement 

 
Risk Likelihood Measurement Criteria 

 
Rating Scale Likelihood Example of Loss/Event Frequency Probability % 

1 Very rare/unlikely EXCEPTIONAL event. This will probably never happen/recur. <20% 

2 Unlikely Event NOT EXPECTED. Do not expect it to happen/recur, but it is possible it may do so. 20-40% 

3 Possible LITTLE LIKELIHOOD of event occurring. It might happen or recur occasionally. 40-60% 

4 Probable  /Likely Event is MORE THAN LIKELY to occur. Will probably happen/recur, but it is not a 
persisting issue. 

60-80% 

5 Almost Certain Reasonable to expect that the event WILL undoubtedly happen/recur, possibly frequently. >80% 

 

 

Risk Scoring Matrix 
     

       

 
Impact 

     

 
5  Very High/Critical 5 10 15 20 25 

 
4  Major 4 8 12 16 20 

200



 
3  Moderate 3 6 9 12 15 

 
2  Minor 2 4 6 8 10 

 
1  Negligible 1 2 3 4 5 

  
1 2 3 4 5 

  
Very Rare/Unlikely Unlikely     Possible/Likely 

        Probable/ 
Likely    Almost certain 

  

Likelihood of risk occurring over lifetime of objective (i.e. 12 mths) 

 

201



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

203 Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

231 Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

267 Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

339 Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

357 Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

375 Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

377 Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

399 Agenda Item 23
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

407 Agenda Item 24
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

413 Agenda Item 25
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

425 Agenda Item 26
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

459 Agenda Item 27
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

491 Agenda Item 28
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

511 Agenda Item 29
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

535 Agenda Item 30
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2020.
	6 Review of Delegated Powers to Heads of Departments.
	Appendix - Delegations to the Director of Law and Governance

	7 Quarterly Stewardship Report Update and RI Training.
	Appendix A - QSR REPORT 02.20 Q3 2019 20
	Appendix B - Leicestershire PF RI training 28 Feb 2020

	8 LGPS Central Product Development Update.
	9 Funding Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy Statement.
	Appendix A - Funding Strategy Statement 2019 (Hymans post valuation) 28022020 (final)
	Appendix B - Investment Strategy Statement Feb 2020

	10 Pension Fund - Business Plan and Budget 20/21.
	Appendix - Pensions Service Plan 2020-21 (f)

	11 Summary Valuation of Pension Fund Investments and Investment Performance of Individual Managers.
	Appendix A - Portfolio Evaliation - Quarterly Risk and Return Analysis
	Appendix B - LGPS Central - Tactical Asset Allocation

	12 Risk Register and Internal Controls.
	Appendix - Pensions Risk Register

	16 LGPS Central Limited - Quarterly Investment Report 31 December 2019
	17 IFM Investors Quarterly Report
	18 JP Morgan Quarterly Report
	19 Colliers Capital Quarterly Report.
	20 Kames Active Value Quarterly Report
	21 Kames Capital Quarterly Report.
	22 LaSalle Quarterly Report.
	23 Ruffer Quarterly Report
	24 Aspect Capital Quarterly Report
	25 Pictet Quarterly Report
	26 Ashmore Quarterly Report
	27 Legal and General Investment Manager Quarterly Report
	28 M&G Quarterly Report
	29 Millennium Global Quarterly Report
	30 Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report



